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About us

Founded in June 1995, China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited (referred to as “China VAST Development”,
Stock Code: 6166.HK) is one of the pioneer providers in the planning, development and operation of large-scale industrial town
projects. Riding on its experience in property development accumulated in the initial stage, China VAST Development was
transformed into a pioneer in new urbanization construction in 2005. The Company has been committed to develop large-
scale industrial town projects in the strategic planning areas under the integration of Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei and “Two Horizontal
& Three Vertical Urbanization Plan”, demonstrating its four comparative advantages including: unique abilities in industrial town
planning, designing & positioning, abilities in infrastructure investment and construction, abilities in marketing & promotion, and
related auxiliary facilities for logistics, residential & commercial properties. Through cooperation with local governments under
long-term agreements, unlike other ordinary property developers, industrial towns are designed to provide a wide spectrum of
comprehensive and professional services for regional industrial development and development in towns, including planning and
design, industry positioning, land preparation, infrastructure construction, marketing and promotion and related auxiliary facilities
for logistics, residential and commercial properties. Currently, China VAST Development has around 60 subsidiaries including
Langfang VAST Urban Development Co., Ltd., Shijiazhuang Vast Urban Development Co., Ltd., Shijiazhuang Gaocheng Vast Urban
Development Co., Ltd., Ezhou Vast Urban Development Co., Ltd., Zhangjiakou Vast Industrial Urban Development Co., Ltd. and
Langfang City Property Development Co., Ltd., all of which are responsible for construction and development service of different
industrial towns. China VAST Development is working together with local government of Langfang, Zhangjiakou and Shijiazhuang
of Hebei province, Chuzhou, Anhui province and Ezhou, Hubei province in respect of development of 10 industrial town projects
with project planning areas of approximately 151.7 sq. km. Focusing on the optimization of infrastructures in the abovementioned
regions, transformation of industry and construction of urbanization as well as building and realizing full integration of working and
living communities for its residents, China VAST Development will spare no effort to become a leading provider and operator of
industrial town in China.
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Financial Highlights
MBERHE

(in RMB'000 A R #F )
Revenue Gross profit
& EF|

1,966,076

1,965,181

@

2017 2016 2017 2016
Profitﬂgﬂare tax Profit Qr the year
BRBE AT % A FERF

1,080,834

I y

2017 2016 2017 2016

I £

For the year ended 31 December
HE12 A31HIEFE

Approximate

Change %

Revenue Wiz 2,935.0 million 5& 1,965.2 million & & 49.4
Gross profit £ 1,966.1 million B8 624.4 million B & 214.9
Profit before tax BRAE AR 1,497.5 million §& 941.3 million B & 59.1
Profit for the year FERF 1,080.8 million BE 668.4 million & 61.7
Proposed final dividend BRARERE (BR) HK25 cents &4l HK12 cents F# 11l 108.3

per share
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Financial Highlights
MBERHE

(in RMB'000 A FE#F 1)

Segment revenue

panidl s
48.6%
RMB954.3 million
AR¥9543EE 1.1%
RMB21.2 million
17 BEE 94.6% 16 BIEE
4_2% RMB2,935.0 million RMB2,775.3 million RMB1,965.2 million
RMB122.9 million ARM2,935.068 ARW2775.388 AR%1,965.208
ARB1229EE
50.3%
1.2% RMB989.7 million
Rl\iﬁégég :l’;llﬁltg AR#989.75E
Segment gross profit
DEBEF
98.6%
RMB1,939.0 million
AR%1,939.088
60.1%
RMB375.2 million
FY17 ARM37528 8 FY16
17 BTREE 16 BIREFEE
RMB1,966.1 million RMB624.4 million
0.5% AR%1,966.158 AR#624.458
. (o]
RMB9.6 million Rsﬂn%t')l/% 3 milli
AR 6HE .8 million

0.9%
RMB17.5 million
AR¥17588

@ Land development
T HbBAEE

@ Property development
MR

( Property leasing
MELE

AR¥18.88E

36.9%

RMB230.4 million
AR¥230488
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Chairman’s Statement

EEBE

Dear Shareholders,

In this beautiful spring season, when the breeze spits green and the trees
are sprouting, | am pleased to show our greatest gratitude and best wishes
to all shareholders and investors on behalf of the board of directors of the
Company and myself!

In 2017, China VAST achieved a record high revenue since its listing. The
Company had a revenue of RMB2,935 million, representing a year-on-year
increase of 49.4%; a gross profit of RMB1,966 million, representing a year-
on-year increase of 214.9%; net profit of RMB1,081 million, representing a
year-on-year increase of 61.7%; and basic earnings per share were RMBO0.46.
We maintained a rapid growth against the backdrop of the new normal and
industrial transformation.

MEHZAER
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Chairman’s Statement

ESEE

Strategic cooperation and development for synchronous
advancement. In 2017, the Company entered into strategic cooperation
with China Steel, HNA, China National Building Material, China Construction
Eighth Engineering Division, Science Park of Shenzhen, Beijing Vanke, IAIT
of Germany, IAl of Israel, Green Group of Italy, Sino-American Innovation
Center and Dutch Cathay Tulip Association. Specific cooperation with
these associations had been speeded up in various degrees. Focusing on
the coordinated development in Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei and Yangtze River
Delta Economic Zone, we actively communicated with local governments
of Pingshan in Shijiazhuang, Zhangbei in Zhangjiakou, Xinglong in Chengde
(Hebei); Gaochun and Zhenjiang (Jiangsu); Laohekou, Danjiangkou and
Xiangyang (Hubei); Jinzhong (Shanxi); Zunyi (Guizhou), Weifang (Shandong) to
develop connecting aviation park, marine airfield and tourist town projects.

Promotion of industrial town strategy. The Company set up a joint
venture with China Electronics Data. Framework agreement was signed for
establishing a health medical big data center in the industrial park in Xiging
District, Tianjin. An aviation industrial park was contracted to settle in Wei
County, Handan. An overall tourism development project was signed with
Fengning, Chengde. The Ezhou Aviation Park cooperated with Shunfeng
International was about to kickoff. A network of industrial parks is under
construction. An office of China VAST was established in Houston, the
Us, providing a new strategic pivot for the marketing towards creative
industries. At the same time, our Tron Space continued to develop in China
and overseas, where Two Tron Space were set up in Zhangzhou, Fujian and
Dusseldorf, Germany.

Accelerating development of existing industrial towns. For Longhe
Park, we are concentrating on the development of 10 key projects. 21
innovative and entrepreneurial projects have been successfully introduced
in the SME Enterprise Base and Withub & Dreamwork. The Joyland Resort
project in Gaocheng Industrial Park was under construction. Shijiazhuang
General Aviation Industrial Park signed cooperation agreements with 6
companies, including Zhonghang Electronic Measuring and Shijiazhuang
Huayan, during the China International General Aviation Expo, while another
3 projects with a total investment of RMB8 billion were contracted. Moreover,
during Wuhan World Flight Conference, about 16 projects were signed,
with a total investment of more than RMB30 billion. This strengthened
the impact of China VAST brand in the general aviation field. Zhangjiakou
City Modern industrial park was under construction. Ezhou Yangtze River
Zhihui Port was included in the PPP project bank of the State Ministry of
Finance; Shijiazhuang Aviation Town has been granted a national navigation
comprehensive industry demonstration area, the first batch of featured towns
in Hebei Province, and a tourism town in Hebei Province. Anci District Beitian
Mancheng International Town has been awarded the first batch of pilot
sports and leisure towns in China, the first batch of featured towns in Hebei
Province, and a tourism town in Hebei Province.
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Chairman’s Statement

ESEE

Significant Progress made in construction works. Longhe Park
introduced 23 industrial innovation projects such as new energy vehicles.
It completed the demolition and relocation of 3 village or streets, while
industrial output value and tax revenue rose to new records. For other
locations, project investment and construction has achieved remarkable
progress. Rapid development of bases and trunk roads were noted in Ezhou
Park. Building of parks, plazas, and road infrastructures are continuing in
Gaocheng Park. Planning and construction of the Tron Space in Zhangjiakou
City Modern Industrial Park was initiated. We cooperated with the Langfang
Municipal Party Committee and the municipal government to invest in the
construction of the Rule of Law Mission Center in the Longhe Park. The
construction of core business area in Longhe Park will start; The Beijing-
Tianjin-Hebei International Table Tennis Exchange Center opened and the
supporting functions of the park have been continuously improved.

Enhancement of corporate brand in all aspects. The Company
organized major branding events such as the “5-18" high-end conference, the
IAF World Flyer Conference, the China International General Aviation Expo,
the establishment of Hebei Alumni Association of Cheung Kong Graduate
School of Business, and the Shijiazhuang-Singapore Investment Exchange
Conference, as well as seven national table tennis tournaments. We won a
number of honorary titles: ranked the fourth in China’s top 30 industrial real
estate industry; won the “2017 Best Industrial Town Integration Enterprise in
China” award; ranked sixth in the “2017 China Industrial Park Operator Top
50", winning the sub-list of “China’s Best Industrial Town Developer”; won
the "2017 China Best Industrial Town Developer Award” at 2017 China Urban
Development Summit. At the first Hong Kong Listed Company Development
Summit Forum, we won the “Top 100 Most Powerful Growth Award for Hong
Kong stocks”. The corporate brand continued to be enhanced. In addition,
the Company released the first social responsibility report, which enabled the
public to have a deeper understanding of the development of China VAST.
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Chairman’s Statement

ESEE

Efforts for community. The Company set up a designated area for the
Party in the China VAST exhibition hall in the law enforcement mission center
in Langfang as well as in China VAST Building. We made a donation of RMB2
million to the Cheung Kong Education Development Foundation for cultivating
leading talents in the “Belt and Road Initiative”, fully demonstrating that China
VAST did not forget the community during its development. This earned us
good reputation and social influence.

Strong determination and gradual development lead to success.
The achievement of these results is the result of the joint efforts of the
Company's board of directors, senior management team and all employees.
It also benefits from the full support of all shareholders, investors and the
community.

Looking back the past for a brighter future. In 2018, all work has been fully
started. The Company will continue to uphold its business philosophy of
“steady investment, rapid development, fine management, and quality
improvement”. We will stress our priority in industrial town development, and
strengthen industrial town operations, striving to achieve sustained growth in
business performance and optimization of business structure.
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Chairman’s Statement

ESEE

Reserving resources for general aviation industry to create “General
Aviation + Tourism” model. We will develop the “General Aviation
+ Tourism” model in Hebei Province, by connecting with domestic and
internationally renowned research institutions, general aviation industry
alliances and high-quality enterprises, with Shijiazhuang as the center region,
focusing on air travel in Handan, Zhangjiakou, Chengde and other cities, and
radiating to Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei and northern China. A one-hour tourism
circle, a one-hour commuter circle and a one-hour business circle are
constructed. On the basis of the first “1+6" marine airfield network in Hubei
Province, we will continue to build a batch of marine airfields around Yichang,
Xiangyang, Shiyan, and Jingzhou in the “two laps and two belts”. By applying
the "General Aviation+" model and using local tourism resources, we will
build coastal waterfront tourist towns with local characteristics.

Integration of innovation and high-end industrial resources. The
first is to start the tourism industry projects by constructing a platform for
cultural performances to develop tourism. We will try to integrate the cultural
tourism resources in Beitian Mancheng, Zhangbei, and Chengde, by using
landscapes, architecture, networks and other carriers, through investors,
developers and operations management, to promote the transformation of
traditional industries, stimulate the urban consumer market, and promote
the integration of related industries. We will explore the new path of content
design, capital operation, operation management, and social services in the
entire industry chain of the cultural tourism industry. We will scientifically
layout cultural tourism featured towns to enhance the connotation and value
of China VAST industrial town model. The second is to accelerate the layout of
the greater health industry. We will implement the strategic cooperation with
China Electronics Data, Tianjin Xiging, Guoke Holdings, and the State General
Administration of Sports, and to grasp the investment opportunities in the
health industry by expanding new industrial parks and introducing health
projects in our parks. The third is to improve internal mechanisms to promote
business development. The establishment of technological innovation group,
general aviation group, industrial town group, cultural tourism group, etc.,
will be an upgrade of our original business operation. We will improve our
headquarters functions such as investment promotion center, planning
center, capital center and financial center, and pay close attention to the
business opportunities. The operation groups and the functional centers must
work together to complement each other and create a huge synergy.

ENBH - A EMN+IRE 1 - 2EREA
ERTBf+IE RRGAR - HERER - BERM
AMARBIBMITERE - BEAE - UAK
HRhoRE - ERERES kKA - AEEH
oM z=iReE - |ETOFEMEL R - BT
NEFIRBERE 1/ NSRBI NS IS o
IEREMNM+6 PR EBISREMER L - BEE
mImERT]  £HS - BB - TE - FiNSH
o B —HK E#5 - mIRDB/+ B2 KFEE
WiREEIR - TEE G S eRE B RE
MR o

BMERN  BERRERER - —2MESUKE
%IEEE%& R A LB - BAILEE
TJJJZ CoRdE - AEXREIR - HIREE - RERHE
2B  EBRE - B EREHE
EM% REFERL  WEMTEETS - RERR
EXAFRS  EXREEXERTRIARR
B BAREE - BEERE - HSRBEHRE
ﬂﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁéd\fﬁ CRARREFTHEER
HWPORANEE - —RINMRABRRERMD - 2E
HEARE R %iﬁa BIRHER - BXRiEE 4
RERREE  EERRERENEXRERS
MR- ETEERR  SHERREXSHER - T
BRI R :xam%lﬁ.:ﬁ%%%ﬂ?ﬁiﬁ%
BRR - KIBRAFEE  BRAREEE  E
EMEEE  CREEES - BRENREIT
EREBLCEXESZ RBE2FEEHL  REP
O BEN - BBROEEEREE RIS
HZE  EFRSESEBEDO2REES 0 BE
AL - TWRERBE T °

=
=t

B R E ETEE R AR A A China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited



Chairman’s Statement

ESEE

Broadening fund raising channel by using financial resources. We will
strengthen our liaison and cooperation with Central and Eastern European
countries, and make full use of foreign resources in Asia and the North
America to expand international and regional innovation cooperation. We
will make full use of the financial management center and Hong Kong team
resources to integrate international and domestic fund resources through
equity participation, mergers and acquisitions, restructuring, etc., and to
attract international and local funds. We will broaden fund-raising channels
to guarantee funding for our operations in various fields such as navigation,
travel, sports, and biomedicine.

With the gradual implementation of our country’s major development
strategy, the Company will usher in a new round of major developments. The
Company'’s board of directors and management must always bear in mind
the mission, shoulder the heavy burden, work hard, make due diligence, and
strive for better development and better performance. In order to give back
to the society, reward the shareholders, and benefit the employees. Those
who work and walk will be often successful. As long as all China VAST people
do not forget their hearts, be down-to-earth, and make concerted efforts, we
will write a more brilliant chapter in the new journey.

Wwong Jianjun
Chairman
29 March 2018, Hong Kong

EEAHK HREFESEE - REMREE
RHBBESIE - ROFABMRILEXERINE
R hRERERAFGE - TONAERER
b BEERER G BBE2KR 1K BAF

FRAEAEE  BRESER  ZER Y’IE%?\/E.\
E2NEZES  hRESHETE  RARE

HER
B XK BE - EVMBESZEENEBR

HIREES -

PEEEREAERERNZESHE - RBHLRK
M—WOAER  AREZRNEEE —EE#H
it BRAER  n¥nf FREL UE
FHBR - BEMEE - mEHE MR-
ERET - REREK 1TERE  REZ2BESR
AT - BB - BB - BHABS8HE
WL EREIMEENRE

IEE

EF5

2018%3H29H - &

Annual Report 2017 %R

11



/

HL

MANRAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

B,

EEE LYk







14

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENMNE DI

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Our revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017 was substantially
generated from: (i) fee and service income relating to/arising from land
development projects/arrangements, representing our fee income derived
from development of industrial town projects; (i) revenue from sales of
properties; and (iii) a minor portion derived from revenue from property
leasing. The table below sets forth a breakdown of our revenue:

Bt 7% B

(6

HPEZE2017F12A3MB EFENREEBR
B ()FETHEER LA - BR
MEREXTEEBENERRA  (NVEHEE K
= AN RAG)DERERE - TRET
H AP U R RA A -

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HLLEE
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥F T ARETT

Fee and service income relating to/arising from e+ FI%IE B AUk

land development projects/arrangements 2,775,327 954,305
Revenue from the sales of properties Y SHE W 122,850 989,716
Revenue from property leasing bIEEN=gloe 36,840 21,160
2,935,017 1,965,181

Revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 amounted to
RMB2,935.0 million, representing an increase of 49.4% compared with the
total revenue of RMB1,965.2 million for the same period in 2016. The increase
in revenue was mainly due to the increase in income arising from land
development projects as a result of resumption of the sales of land use rights
of the land in Longhe Park by the local government, supplemented by the
revenue arising from three other industrial parks.
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As for the land development business, we recorded revenue arising from
land development projects for sale of RMB2,775.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2017, representing an increase of 190.8% compared with
RMB954.3 million for the same period in 2016.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, an aggregate of 589,431 sg.m. of
land in Longhe Park was sold by the relevant local government at a total land
premium of RMB4,107.8 million. Compared to the aggregate of 30,015 sg.m.
of land sold in Longhe Park by the relevant local government at a total land
premium of RMB54.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2016, there
were significant increases in the area of land sold and the land premium.
We recorded total fee income of RMB2,032.0 million from Longhe Park
for the year ended 31 December 2017, representing a significant increase
as compared with RMB155.2 million for the same period in 2016. The fee
income received from sales of land was RMB1,912.3 million as compared
with RMB35.1 million for the same period in 2016. In addition, we received
other comprehensive services fee income of RMB119.7 million, representing
an increase of 28.6% as compared with RMB93.1 million for the same period
in 2016, which was calculated and charged with reference to a certain
proportion to the tax imposed on Longhe Park resident enterprises during the
year.

In addition, we also received income from the land development projects
from other parks. For Shijiazhuang General Aviation Industrial Town Park, the
Company was mainly engaged in land preparation and investment services,
the income from which was RMB256.7 million, representing a decrease of
48.8% as compared with the same period in 2016. For Shijiazhuang Gaocheng
VAST Industrial Town Park, the Company was mainly engaged in land
preparation and investment services, the income from which was RMB361.6
million, representing an increase of 545.7% as compared with the same
period in 2016. For VAST Ezhou Industrial Park, the Company was mainly
engaged in land preparation and investment services, the income from which
was RMB124.3 million, representing an increase of 37.0% as compared with
the same period in 2016. The income from such three parks was calculated
using the cost plus method.

For property development business, we recorded revenue from the sales
of properties of RMB122.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2017,
representing a decrease of 87.6% as compared with RMB989.7 million for
the same period in 2016. This was mainly due to the fact that for the year
ended 31 December 2017, we delivered the area of commercial, residential
and industrial properties of 13,492 sq.m., representing a decrease of 115,074
sg.m. as compared with the area of property delivered of 128,566 sg.m. for
the same period in 2016, which resulted in a decrease in the overall property
sales revenue.
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Our cost of sales and services consists of (i) cost of development projects
of land arrangements, (i) cost of properties sold, and (iii) direct operating
expense of property leasing. For the year ended 31 December 2017, our
cost of sales and services amounted to RMB968.9 million, representing a
decrease of 27.7% as compared with that of RMB1,340.8 million for 2016.
Such decrease was primarily due to the decrease of property selling cost for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, our gross profit amounted to
RMB1,966.1 million, which represented an increase of 214.9% compared with
RMB624.4 million for the the same period of 2016. Our gross profit margin
was 67.0% for the year ended 31 December 2017, compared with 31.8% for
the same period in 2016, which was due to the resumption of the sales of
land use rights of the land in Longhe Park in 2017, the gross profit margin of
which was higher than that of other industrial parks and properties.

Our other income decreased from RMB458.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2016 to RM127.0 million for the same period in 2017, representing
a decrease of RMB331.2 million. The decrease was mainly because there was
an income from the transfer of part of land development rights of RMB305.0
million in 2016, which there was no such income in 2017.

Other gains and losses decreased from RMB335.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2016 to RMB44.6 million for the same period in 2017. The
decrease was mainly because the Company recorded a gain of RMB368.6
million from the disposal of a subsidiary in 2016, which there was no such
gain in 2017.

Our finance cost increased by RMB91.9 million, or 37.9%, from RMB242.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2016 to RMB334.4 million for the
same period in 2017. The increase in finance cost was mainly due to an
increase in our average outstanding balance of bank loans and other loan
facilities.
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Our profit before tax increased by RMB556.2 million, representing an increase
of 59.1%, from RMB941.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2016 to
RMB1,497.5 million for the same period in 2017.

Income tax expense increased from RMB272.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2016 to RMB416.7 million for the same period in 2017, representing
an increase of RMB143.8 million or 52.7%, which was primarily due to an
increase in profit before tax recorded for the year ended 31 December 2017.

As a result of the foregoing factors, net profit of the Company increased
by RMB412.4 million or 61.7% from RMB668.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2016 to RMB1,080.8 million for the same period in 2017, which was
primarily due to the increase in the fee income of land development projects.

The basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2017 calculated
based on the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 1,637,641,000
was RMBO0.66, while the diluted earnings per share was RMB0.61 (basic and
diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2016: RMBO0.41).
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Our cash and cash equivalents decreased by RMB996.8 million to RMB1,710.7
million as of 31 December 2017 from RMB2,707.5 million as of 31 December
2016, principally attributable to: (i) the net cash outflow of RMB7.5 million
from our operating activities; (i) the net cash outflow of RMB934.4 million
from investing activities which was primarily resulting from withdrawal of
deposits with original maturity over three months of RMB299.5 million, offset
by the placement of deposits with original maturity over three months of
706.0 million, payments for investment in associates of RMB104.6 million,
payments for acquisition of property, plant and equipment of RMB210.7
million, and loans to related parties of RMB152.8 million; (iii) the net cash
outflow of RMB49.8 million from financing activities which was primarily due
to new bank loans and other loans of RMB2,181.4 million, the repayment of
bank loans and other loans of RMB1,824.4 million and the interest payment of
RMB466.0 million, as well as the dividend payment of RMB170.1 million.

The Group’s total borrowings increased by RMB457.0 million from
RMB4,610.7 million as at 31 December 2016 to RMB5,067.7 million as at 31
December 2017. Secured bank loans increased from RMB1,930.9 million as
at 31 December 2016 to RMB2,597.7 million as at 31 December 2017 while
other secured loans decreased from RMB2,659.8 million as at 31 December
2016 to RMB2,450.0 million as at 31 December 2017. Bank loans secured
by properties for sale under development which were pledged decreased
from RMB332.7 million as at 31 December 2016 to RMB140.0 million as at 31
December 2017.

Trade receivables increased from RMB943.2 million as at 31 December
2016 to RMB1,511.0 million as at 31 December 2017, which were mainly the
trade receivables of each park from local governments, including RMB142.5
million from Longhe Park, RMB107.8 million from VAST Ezhou Industrial Park,
RMB341.1 million from Shijiazhuang Gaocheng VAST Industrial Town Park and
RMB896.0 million from Shijiazhuang General Aviation Industrial Town Park.
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Prepayments and Other Receivables

Prepayments and other receivables increased from RMB490.8 million as at 31
December 2016 to RMB525.1 million as at 31 December 2017, primarily due
to the increase in prepayments of RMB96.8 million and the decrease in other
receivables of RMB62.4 million.

Interests in Associates

Interests in associates increased from RMB149.5 million as at 31 December
2016 to RMB260.0 million as at 31 December 2017, primarily due to the
investments of RMB104.6 million in four new associates in 2017.

Completed Properties for Sale

Completed properties for sale decreased from RMB1,006.1 million as at 31
December 2016 to RMB832.3 million as at 31 December 2017, primarily owing
to property sales.

Advance from Customers for Properties Developed for
Sale

Advance from customers for properties developed for sale increased from
RMB842.8 million as at 31 December 2016 to RMB1,025.3 million as at
31 December 2017, primarily due to the fact that construction of certain
properties have not been completed and delivered.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group provided guarantees to banks and non-financial institutions which
granted mortgage loans to certain purchasers of the Group’s properties.
As at 31 December 2017, such mortgage loan guarantees amounted to
RMB1,189.3 million compared to RMB968.2 million as at 31 December 2016.
Such guarantees would be released upon the earlier of: (i) the transfer of
the relevant building ownership certificates to the purchasers; or (i) the
satisfaction of obligations under the mortgage loans by the purchasers.

Pledge of Assets

Certain assets of the Group have been pledged to the banks, trust fund
companies and non-financial institutions to secure certain loans and banking
facilities granted to the Group.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise of borrowings,
convertible bonds and notes and cash. The main objective for the use of
these financial instruments is to maintain a continuity of funding and flexibility
at the lowest cost possible.

As at 31 December 2017, bank balances and restricted bank deposits were
RMB2,915.2 million, among which RMB2,836.7 million was denominated in
Renminbi, RMB74.3 million denominated in USD, RMB4.0 million denominated
in HKD and RMBO.2 million denominated in Singapore dollar.

As at 31 December 2017, our total borrowings were RMB5,067.7 million,
among which RMB5,052.1 million was denominated in Renminbi and RMB15.6
million denominated in HKD, with maturity terms as follows:
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Among the RMB5,067.7 million borrowings, RMB2,009.6 million was borrowed
at floating rate, RMB3,038.1 million was with fixed rate and RMB20.0 million
was interest-free.

Convertible bonds and notes

The Group issued convertible bonds and notes in USD50 million and USD50
million respectively with a term of 3-year on 30 December 2015. The coupon
rates of the convertible bonds and the notes are 6% and 12% respectively
with interest paid semi-annually. The convertible bonds can be converted
to ordinary shares of the Company at the initial conversion price of HKD3.1
per share before maturity. The conversion price is subject to adjustments
according to terms of the agreement.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's gearing ratio (total liabilities to total
assets) was 68.6%. The Group's financing capability became stronger after
Listing. The Group will continue to adopt more conservative financial policies
and control its gearing ratio at the industry average level.
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The Group's business is principally denominated in Renminbi. Apart from
certain cash, bank deposits, bank and other borrowings and convertible
bonds and notes which are denominated in foreign currencies, the Group
is not subject to any significant risk from fluctuations in exchange rates. No
currency hedging arrangement had been made by the Group during the year.
The Group will closely monitor and manage its exposure to fluctuations in
foreign exchange rates.

The Group did not make any material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries
and associated companies and significant investments during the year ended
31 December 2017.

On 9 January 2018, the Company issued a three-year term US$ 6% convertible
notes due 2021 in an aggregate principal amount of USD50 million (the
“Convertible Notes”). In addition to which, on the same date, the Company
issued three US$ 6% guaranteed notes due 2019, 2020 and 2021 respectively
in an aggregate principal amount of USD110 million (the “Notes”) to the same
holder of the Convertible Notes. The total net proceeds from the issue of the
Convertible Notes and the Notes are used for the purpose of general working
capital. The Convertible Notes and the Notes are jointly guaranteed by the
Ultimate Controlling Shareholders, Profit East and four subsidiaries of the
Company.

Each of the Notes and the Convertible Notes, when issued, will constitute
direct, general, unsubordinated and unconditional obligations of the issuer
which will at all times rank at least pari passu with all other present and
future unsecured payment obligations of the issuer, except for obligations
mandatorily preferred by law applying to companies generally.

On 12 March 2018, certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company
received a notice on Members of Collegial Panel ((2018) Ji Min Chu No0.19)
from the Higher People’s Court of Hebei Province that Langfang Jingyu Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd. (the “Plaintiff”) launched a lawsuit against
Langfang City Property Development Co., Ltd. (“Langfang City Property”,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company), and Langfang VAST
Zhanyao Property Development Company Limited (an indirect wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company and the immediate holding company of
Langfang City Property), among others, on the dispute over an equity transfer
agreement in 2016. The lawsuit has been accepted by the Higher People’s
Court of Hebei Province.
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The Plaintiff has claimed that the project development activities on the land
underlying the aforesaid equity transaction could not be timely started as
planned due to the default of Langfang City Property, and is seeking for the
court to order its release from the equity transfer agreement entered into
between the Plaintiff and Langfang City Property, and to order Langfang City
Property to return the consideration amount of approximately RMB525.2
million paid by the Plaintiff for such equity transfer and pay a liquidated
damage of approximately RMB158.6 million.

Since the legal proceeding is still in its early stage, the board of directors of
the Company considers that it is impractical to assess the potential impact of
the legal proceeding on the Company.

Employee Remuneration and Relations

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a total of 1,085 employees (31
December 2016: 917 employees). The Group provides employees with
competitive remuneration and benefits, and the remuneration policy will be
reviewed on a regular basis based on the performance and contribution of
the employees and the industry remuneration level. In addition, the Group
provides various training courses to enhance the employees’ skills and
capabilities in all aspects.
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Business Review

We are one of the pioneer service providers in planning, development and
operation of large-scale industrial towns (E2mi&) in China. Our primary
business focus, being industrial town development business, significantly
differentiates us from a traditional property developer. When we commenced
development of Longhe Park, our first industrial town project, in 2005, there
were very few market players in the PRC offering a similar range of services,
and industrial towns only became a development model to drive China’s
urbanization process in the recent decade. We currently co-operate with
certain local governments in Hebei, Anhui and Hubei provinces in relation
to development of ten industrial town projects. As one of the pilot models
to drive China’s urbanization process, an industrial town typically hosts a
cluster of enterprises with a selected common industry theme, together with
supporting facilities such as logistics, residential and commercial properties,
creating a fully integrated working and living community for its residents (&
I —E%). In addition to our industrial town development business, we develop
and invest in residential, commercial and industrial properties in both our
industrial town projects and other areas in Hebei province, which accounted
for only a portion of our total revenue. As a key part of our industrial town
business, we (i) plan and design industrial towns and position industrial towns
with selected industry themes, (i) convert land planned for development
into land suitable for sale by the local governments in accordance with
our cooperation agreements, (iii) promote the sale of such land to attract
target customers to set up businesses in our industrial town projects, and
(iv) provide follow-up management and operation services to enterprise
customers in our industrial towns.

With the expansion and diversification of the business of the Company, we
currently provide planning, development and/or operation services in ten
different-themed industrial town projects, consisting of: (i) Longhe Park; (ii)
Longhe Resort; (i) Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park, (iv) Yongging
VAST Industrial Town Park, all of which are located in Langfang, Hebei
province; (v) VAST Zhangjiakou City New Industrial Park; (vi) Zhangjiakou
City Modern Industrial Park, both of which are located in Zhangjiakou City,
Hebei Province; (vii) Shijiazhuang General Aviation Industrial Town Park; (viii)
Shijiazhuang Gaocheng Vast Industrial Town Park, both of which are located
in Shijiazhuang City, Hebei province; (ix) Chuzhou Park in Chuzhou, Anhui
province; and (x) VAST Ezhou Industrial Park in Ezhou City, Hubei province.
After over 10 years of development, Longhe Park is progressing towards its
maturity in a fast development stage. The remaining nine projects are in the
early stage of planning and development. However, with the improvement
and betterment of the terms of cooperation agreements signed between
the Company and local governments, some of our cooperation agreements
enable us to record revenue in the early stage of development, thus providing
support for developing project on a rolling basis.
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The following map shows the locations of the cities where our industrial town LA T 1Bl 88 R B PIR EE £ T 4518 B BT T RIfL
projects situated. B

Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Integration

and Development Wanjiang City Belt
SREBRRE BT %

/ A0

&
Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone
BT
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Langfang, Hebei Province
N ZIN v @ Airport #3g
lﬁ.l-jt'é JEB*)\J-m @ Port B0
(&) High-speed
HEAERBAETEBES e
From Longhe Industrial Park/Longhe Resort
ﬁﬂ?fit?é%ﬁﬁ%%i% Beijing
To Beijing Capital International Airport 70km/~ 2 o o=
Beijing Capital Internajlonalrpart @D
FERBEEARLS T
To Tianjin Binhai International Airport 70knm/ A B T i S ) O
AL E S — R #S T ntematona arport A=, 1.5kl
To the Second Beijing Capital International Airport 26km/A 2 LRESRE= 8
RIERES
To Tianjin Port 100km/RA 2
SR R E
?ﬁEI‘%ﬂ&E@{t Longhe Park and -
. Longhe Resort N
From Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park HABFER
AL R E BER S e :
To Beijing Capital International Airport 70km/AE Va
AIEREE SRS
To Tianjin Binhai International Airport 75km/n B

AL R EME _BRES

To the Second Beijing Capital International Airport 15km/AE
RIEREE

To Tianjin Port 105km/A B

Geographical Advantage

e Praised as “the Pearl of the Corridor between Beijing and Tianjin”,
Langfang is situated in the Bohai Coastal Metropolises, one of the major
economic growth regions in China

- Locates in the central east of Hebei province, with Beijing, the capital,
“lies in the north and Tianjin in the east”

— Eight expressways, five major railway lines as well as eleven national
and provincial highways crossing this area

— Construction work of the Second Beijing Capital International Airport
was approved on 16 December 2014 which will be completed in 2018.
As an ancillary facility, airport express railway will commence operation
synchronously by then

e Driven by the national strategy of “Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Integration and
Development Plan”, Langfang is well positioned to seize opportunities
arising from the economic growth in Beijing

— As a result of the significant increase in the lands and properties price in
Beijing, population and certain industries have migrated to surrounding
areas

— The coordination development in the region requires the integration
planning and construction in respect of transportation, public service
and environmental protection

- The strategic location of Langfang enables itself to capture opportunities
arising from the economic growth of Beijing. Coupled with the
integration development of Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei, Langfang is expected
to further its economic growth, land appreciation and property price
increase

ji ng-Tlan]ln:V
Hebei Region
FORMBE |

BEZ
o ERITAIA B BEPIRRINE 2 —RYE
BEmE - ZHUEER LRI HER
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— b RE IS TIZE2014F 12 A16BIER
FEBHE - BR2018F 2L - (EARREN
SRR th SRR R P

. EFEEBRAERIEENEE— BREMRN
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Zhangjiakou, Hebei Province
AL ERKA

RESBARE
Inner Mongolia
Autonomous

Beijing

1)
Shanxi

Geographical Advantage

— Located in the transport hubs of Beijing, Hebei, Shanxi and Inner Mongolia,
Zhangjiakou is the intersection of Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Metropolises and
Hebei-Shanxi-Inner Mongolia Metropolises

— Thanks to the national strategy of “Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Integration and
Development Plan”, the Beijing-Zhangjiakou high-speed railway will
accelerate growth from Beijing to Zhangjiakou

- The joint host of Zhangjiakou and Beijing for 2022 Winter Olympics will
bring new development opportunities

7

B ES

— RROMAAILR AL LWE - ARETE
EMXBERMLTS  EREEAHENES
ST IO 3R B

— BERFRERRERE B - BEREE - Rk
A IR AL R AR R M B SNE

— RRALIE RS EMR022FLFTRES
R B RS
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Shijiazhuang City, Hebei Province
AXERRES

R’REH

° Zhangjiakou

dt R
Beijing

Tianjin

BN
ARE ® Cangzhou
Shijiazhuang

Hengshui

ma
Xingtai

Geographical Advantage

e Shijiazhuang City is one of the important and major cities in the capital
of Hebei province and Beijing and Tianjin region, as well as the political,
economic, technological, financial, cultural and information center of
Hebei province. Shijiazhuang City is a city which the implementation of its
coastal open-door policy and open financial market was approved by the
State Council.

¢ Shijiazhuang is the transport hub of the nation-wide rail transport in which
four railways lines, namely Beijing-Guangzhou, Shijiazhuang-Taiyuan,
Shijiazhuang- Dezhou and Shuo Huang, converges. Expressways such as
Beijing-Shijiazhuang, Shijiazhuang-Taiyuan, Huanghua-Shijiazhuang, Shian
(AZ =& A1) intersects at Shijiazhuang City with an aggregate mileage
of highway of over 6,400 kilometers.

o Shijiazhuang clearly puts forward to develop into the second major city in
Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei area and the economic center of the southern region.
It strives to become a new economic growth pole of the Beijing-Tianjin-
Hebei region.

e Three cities, Luancheng City, Gaocheng City and Luguan City, had turned
into districts. The area under the jurisdiction of the Shijiazhuang City
had expanded from 469 square kilometers to 2,206 square kilometers,
representing an increase in the area of approximately 4 times, and hence
providing more room for development.

| AE
Chengde

Tangshan

BVEZ

s AXEMANILEEE  ERERZWEE
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Chuzhou, Anhui Province

o AL ZIN Y —_
ZHE RN
%%J‘Hﬂ_—\ﬁg o—e Highway SEAR
From Chuzhou Park o2 Railway ek
@ port3EQ
AR AR OIS Airport #5
. ; N High-speed Railway Station
To Nanjing Lukou Airport 80km/ A E v
AER AR
To Nanjing Port 40km/AE
AEAEMERS
To Hefei Xingiao Airport 140km/A 2
Hefei
Xingiao
Inter.nati?tnal P -
facd i 140km
gig 7 - 14022
»
®
Hefei &8

- @ Nanjing port @3
Nanji ation ik

NN
«_ Nanjing Lukou

“+. D Internatignal Airport
T ERBROERRS

Chuzhou
Anhui o RN
Province
L)

Geographical Advantage

Chuzhou is a prefecture-level city in eastern Anhui province in close
proximity to the Yangtze River Delta, only approximately 50 kilometers from
Nanjing, Jiangsu province

Lies in Wanjiang City Belt (82) T3 175), Chuzhou has been approved by the
State Council as a national pilot zone (R R &i[&) for the development
of industries shifted from the eastern Yangtze River Delta

These industries primarily include new materials manufacturing, energy,
new equipment manufacturing, provision of modern services and

production of high-quality natural food

Relying on the advantageous geographical position in the greater Yangtze
River Delta, Chuzhou strives to create a new growth in the development of

urbanization

Our service offered in Chuzhou Park is limited to marketing and promotion
activities

B ES
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R=AE - BRI THAEERMENISRE
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=
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BEEENWE D

Ezhou City, Hubei Province
L& SN

Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone
RIBESR

Geographical Advantage

e Ezhou City is located in the eastern part of Hubei Province and the south
bank at the mid-stream of Yangtze River. Neighbouring with Wuhan in the
west, Ezhou City is the core city of the Wuhan Metropolises, the major city
of the Edong Cities, the regional logistic center and the transport hub.

e Ezhou City is an important node of the Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone.
As the new Reform and Opening of the PRC transits to the development
strategy of implementation of opening of new regions, the Yangtze River
Delta Economic Zone, Ezhou City can leverage on the Golden waterway to
promote the development of the Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone and
thus creating a new Chinese economic support belt.

e The construction of Hubei Province made Wuhan as the center and linked
other cities like Ezhou, Huangshi, Huanggang in a radial intercity transport
network. The fastest train from Wuhan Station to Ezhou Station only takes
22 minutes.

e The Shun Feng airport (JIg2#15) locating in Ezhou specializes in high-end
express delivery on an all-cargo basis. The airport will become the fourth
in the world and the first in Asia cargo airport distributing center which is
only 20 kilometers from the park.
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The following table sets forth our project status, industry themes, scope
of services and fee arrangement for each industrial town project as of 31

December 2017.

Industrial town

TREHBRMSEXEMEIEE RNEE20174124
THMEN EXXE - REBERERTH -

project® Industry theme Scope of services Fee arrangement Status
EXmEEA" EXIE PR &8 BRARY B
Langfang,

Hebei province

S B

(I)  Longhe Park
() BEEHR

Planned site area:
REGHEAE -

28.0 million sg.m.
28088 FAK

() Longhe Resort,
Langfang

() EREhEEA E KR E
REH

Planned site area:
RERHETE -

9.5 million sg.m.
9.5 BT K

e Information
technology, advanced
manufacturing,
modern services and
property development

o BB - RS -
BARRT R FE

e \acation home and
facilities, business
headquarters and
culture business
subject to finalization

o ERERR - BEL
BEXCEB(FFEE)

Planning and design,
industry positioning,
land preparation,
infrastructure
construction,
marketing and follow-
up services to manage
and operate the
project

HE - REt - EBEETE
i ~ THIERTE - EES
MBIERR  TIHTTIHN K
ERRLETEE SR
R 7%

Planning and design,
industry positioning,
land preparation,
infrastructure
construction,
marketing and follow-
up services to manage
and operate the
project

A R EETE
i ~ EHERTE - EE%
MEERR  TIHTTHHM K
EEMMSEIHANER
AR

e Calculated with
reference to a certain
percentage of land
sale proceeds and
taxes paid by resident
enterprises.

o BT U RATIS FIE B
PEALRERMES
MEBITAETH -

e Calculated with
reference to a certain
percentage of land
sale proceeds and
taxes paid by resident
enterprises.

B RS RIEED
PEALRERMES
MEFIIEETHE -

R EREETEERE AR AT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

e Progressing towards
an active development
stage, and contributed
to our income during
the year
IERRRARER G ZE I UK
PEER - WHEARFEEF
NS

¢ Binding agreement
signed; land
preparation and
infrastructure
construction not yet
commenced

=% S E=SoEwalso)i)
# o KRBT EER
AR ER
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Industrial town

project™ Industry theme Scope of services Fee arrangement Status

EXmEERO EXTE B 7% &5 & BERTH B

(I Guangyang e Under planning e Planning and design, ¢ A portion of the net ¢ Binding agreement
Technology o 3HE|h industry positioning, land sale proceeds signed; land
Regeneration Park@ land preparation, representing the preparation and

() EEREEEER infrastructure sum of our actual infrastructure

construction, investment amount construction not yet
Planned site area: marketing and follow- with a pre-agreed commenced

RENMEIOEE

15.0 million sg.m.
15.08&FHK

(IV) Yongging VAST
Industrial Town Park

(V) K BERREHTHA
£

14.0 million sg.m.
14.0BBF 7K

o |ntelligent equipment
manufacturing, new
energy, new material
industry

o BhefipalE
EEER « FTMRIE S

up services to manage
and operate the
project

WA FREt EETE
fir - iﬁ’ﬁkiﬁ - B
MERERR  TIHTTERA K
fél@&“‘%ﬁ HHEE
AR

Planning and design,
industry positioning,
land preparation,
infrastructure
construction and
marketing

RE R EETE
fi7 « THoEEE - HfR
R R TS TiH

return and a portion
of the remaining net
land sale proceeds
in accordance with
our equity interest in
the relevant project
company.

B —&p

SIS REFTER

PR ERIEE AR Z K

FERTED) B4R o

e Commission services

income, which is
calculated based on a
certain proportion of
a fixed return and the
aggregate investment
in the park.

i RS RIS
- MERFA
BRI ERR & A F0R
(BELHEZ@®R) -
AR BB D8R T H) L3t

ZHRBUA - ZEE

« EETANF NN
AR LHEER
ERRIEER

¢ Binding agreement
signed; land
preparation and
infrastructure
construction not yet
commenced

BRI AHR IO

P ARFR T EEIE

O3 & B 2 % A g % MR

—ELHIFE
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Industrial town

project™ Industry theme Scope of services Fee arrangement Status
EXmEEA" EXTE B 7% & BRARH BiR
Zhangjiakou,

Hebei province

MEERFRA™

(V) VAST Zhangjiakou o Under planning e Planning and design, e Both one-off income ¢ Binding agreement

City New Industrial o 3REF industry positioning, and recurring income, signed; land
Park land preparation, which is calculated preparation and
V) RXOMFEERE infrastructure based on a percentage  infrastructure
*E construction and of the fixed return and construction not yet
marketing part from ancillary commenced
Planned site area: o JRE| BT EET areas of operating o DEATRNR TG
B HETS - iz ~ THEIE - EfE  land premium, and # o ORFIRTIEIRE R
e R IA R TTI51 T8 the percentage of tax ElREER
1.6 million sg.m. paid by the resident
1.6BEFHAK enterprises of the park.
o — MU A BRAC T IR
AXAF - REFE B &
BEACE M IR
FiEEs B L RAER
EHRTIET D LLE
g o
(V) Zhangjiakou City e Service equipment e Planning and design, e Commission services e Binding agreement

Modern Industrial manufacturing industry  industry positioning, income, which is signed; land
Park and medical service land preparation, calculated based on a preparation and
V) RRAMEREXE industry infrastructure certain proportion of infrastructure
2 o RIGHMBEIEEXRE  construction and a fixed return and the construction not yet
RS marketing aggregate investment commenced
Planned site area: o B AT EETE in the park o BRATRNR NG

REEETE

17.3 million sg.m.
17.388FAK

i ~ IR - ERPER
HERERR A R 51T 8

ZHRBUA - ZEE & ARG THEER
CHkERKEEEN  AERREER
—ELHIFE

R EREETEERE AR AT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Industrial town

project™ Industry theme Scope of services Fee arrangement Status
EXmEERO EETE B 7% &5 & BERTH R
Shijiazhuang,
Hebei province
TEARET
(VIl) Shijiazhuang General e General aviation e Planning and design, e Commission services e Binding agreement
Aviation Industrial industry, modern industry positioning, income, which is signed; land
Town Park services and property land preparation, calculated based on preparation and
V) B EAMTES development infrastructure a certain proportion infrastructure
TiEE R o BAMZEES MR construction and of a fixed return and construction
BRI marketing the aggregate cost commenced, and
Planned site area: o RE - F/ET EER incurred in the park. contributed to our
RENEHE TS - i~ T EEIE - EHEER o ZIEMRBUA - #REE  income during the year
MERERR R 51T 8 B EEEMEEKRE o EETRELORNNN
20.0 million sa.m. BN —ELLBIFTE - & BRI EER
2008 8F K EMRieEg - WER
FEBSKBATR
(VI Shijiazhuang e Under planning e Planning and design, ¢ Commission services e Binding agreement
Gaocheng VAST o HE|H industry positioning, income, which is signed; land
Industrial Town Park land preparation, calculated based on a preparation and
VI AR SR R RESE infrastructure certain proportion of infrastructure
AR = construction and a fixed return and the construction has
marketing aggregate investment commenced, and

Planned site area:
RENGHETE -

27.0 million sg.m.
2708 8K

o B BRE EXTE

7 ~ HIEEEE - EREER
HERR BB TH

in the park
ZERBUWA - ZEE
Bl BB 18 & 25
—ELLHIETE o

contributed to our

income during the year
o BETRANRIHH

& BRBLInBIER
AW REER - XER
FEBSKRAER
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project™ Industry theme Scope of services Fee arrangement Status
EXmREAO EXTE B 7% &5 & BRARH BiR

Chuzhou,

Anhui province

RREABMNT

(IX) Chuzhou Park o New materials, new e Marketing e Calculated based on e Binding agreement

X) BRI R [E energy, equipment o 51T

manufacturing,

Planned site area: modern services and

RENMGHEE - natural food

o FTMRL  FTREIR - HfE
15.0 million sg.m. 28 « BRRBREE
15.088F A K Rih
Ezhou,
Hubei province
bkl

(X) VAST Ezhou Industrial e Intelligent ¢ Planning and design,

net land sale proceeds
of a certain size of land
sites

o R RTH) L 2
S FIEFREE

signed; marketing
activities commenced

BEFTALNR IO
& BB
SEEE)

e Commission services e Binding agreement

(1) Our Longhe Park, Longhe Resort, Yongging VAST Industrial Town Park, VAST

Zhangjiakou City New Industrial Park, Zhangjiakou City Modern Industrial Park,
Shijiazhuang General Aviation Industrial Town Park, Shijiazhuang Gaocheng VAST
Industrial Town Park, Chuzhou Park and VAST Ezhou Industrial Park are developed
by our wholly-owned subsidiaries.

(2)  We entered into a co-operation agreement with the local government for the

development of Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park on 27 April 2011.
As Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park is in close vicinity to the airport
currently under construction in the conjunction area of Beijing and Guangyang
District of Langfang (the “Second Beijing Capital International Airport”), the
development plan of the surrounding area of the Second Beijing Capital
International Airport, including Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park, is
under review by the local government. As such government planning has not
been released, we have not commenced development of Guangyang Technology
Regeneration Park as of 31 December 2017. The industry positioning and our
scope of services for Guangyang Park are subject to changes.

Park manufacturing, industry positioning, income, which is signed; land
RRINEXE electronic information land preparation, calculated based on a preparation and
and strategic emerging  infrastructure certain proportion of infrastructure
Planned site area: industries construction and a fixed return and the construction
FRENEMmAE - o HAEHNE B[R marketing aggregate investment commenced, and
BRI E R o ME - RET EXTE in the park. contributed to our
4.3 million sg.m. iz~ TR - EEER o ZIEMRBUA - #EE  income during the year
43EEFT K HEIERR K 51T 88 B LEEIEELTEN o EETAORNNN
—ELBIEE - P BFA TR Rk
***“mi URIZEN
FEASKRAER
Notes: WEE

M BAREASHE - BYENEEREERE
o ABERFEEDAERE  RXADHEESR
EEE  RRAOMBRAREXEE - AZHHRAM
ZEXTHBER OREEWNEFERTEER
E BN TRBEERERDPMNEXENFEHE
M EMBRRRE -

2 BAR20MFE4A27 A& T KT A EH
Z - FAEERRHIEE - BREBE R EE
Bt #— AR AL R ER S T RS [ 2 A R & &
BRI RS ([ REHEZ#5]) - Bt
REHE _HEERE(EREREIRE)
HFE AR ZIE At 5 BUT#ETTERET - ANEE
BT R EMIAREM - FKAMIR2017F12 83184
AEBEBGREBCENRE - BB EREE
HE TN R RISEE AR

B R E ETEE R AR A A China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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(1

Longhe Park (I
After years of development, an accumulated land of 5,564,015 sg.m.
(accounted for 28.5% of saleable land) was sold by the local government

of Longhe Park. For the year ended 31 December 2017, fee income
derived from our development of industrial town projects at Longhe

Park was RMB2,032.0 million. The table below sets forth selective
information about the classification of land, planned site area and site

area sold of Longhe Park as of 31 December 2017.

e E
KBZFENER BT BRFZER
ST 5,564,015 oK (0] g £ it
28.5%) o B E20174F12B31AILEFE » 5K
EAEMENREEEMHBEBEENGE
BURABARE20320B8T - TR
R2017F 12 AN A A S EE B LD
oAb EERE HEE T EENE

Planned site
Classification x| area® Site area sold®@ Saleable land unsold
HEGH
g B HEAEE? REFEWITHELT
sg.m. sg.m. % sg.m. %
K Tk % 7K %
Saleable oHE
¢ Residential and o FEREM
commercial area HER 10,288,300 2,291,646 22.3 7,996,654 77.7
e |ndustrial area o EXERE 9,205,500 3,272,369 35.5 5,933,131 64.5
Subtotal of saleable land ~ A] 3 + b/ 5t 19,493,800 5,564,015 285 13,929,785 71.5
Non-saleable FEHE
e Roads o JERE 4,431,300 N/ATEA NATEA NATER NATEA
e Greenery space o KLz 4,074,900 NATEA NATEA NATEA NATEA
Subtotal of non-saleable  FEH:E+ 1
land /Net 8,506,200 N/ANEAE NATEA NATBEA NATEA
Total st 28,000,000 5,564,015 N/A REA 13,929,785 N/A FHEHA
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Notes:

(1) Planned site area is based on the planning approved by the relevant local
government.

(2)  Percentages are calculated as the site area sold by the local governments through
public auction, tender or listing for sale process as a portion of the total saleable
site area under the same land classification.

The table below sets forth details regarding land sold by the local
government, the relevant average selling price, land premium and a
breakdown of our fee income for the year ended 31 December 2017.

it

(1) REMAHETEHERE R R RAT L&
B EIMESE °

() BB ABITEABARMAE - BEX
0 L SRR T S (TR E B e T
AT (AR — L) B — 55
st -

TREHNEE20177F128318 LEE
M5 ERAT R RS - BRTEY
HREE - TS U RBRMNER
W AHIRAAR -

Land sold ASP sold our fee income/
by local by local Land percentage of
government government premium land premium
WHBF  wHBUTH BAENBARA
HESLE  PEHEE  LHHES HriES
sg.m. RMB/sg.m. RMB'000 RMB'000 %
AR¥ET,/
A FHK AREBTT ARETRT %
Industrial land T¥ L 269,416 446 120,191 86,186 717
Residential and FEEFELM
commercial land 320,015 12,461 3,987,640 1,826,120 45.8
Total @it 589,431 6,969 4,107,831 1,912,306 46.6
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() Longhe Resort

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWmEDWN

() ERhEEuEBREERE N

The table below sets forth selective information about the classification TREFFNMN 2017512 A31 B B30 59 1%
of land and planned site area of Longhe Resort as of 31 December 2017. KEERELEE LD ERRE(LE

TSR AR -

Classification ok} Planned site area™

HENLHEED
sg.m.

Saleable oHE

» Residential and commercial area s FERNEER 4,525,200

e |ndustrial area o R 1,162,000

Subtotal of saleable land A s N et 5,687,200

Non-saleable FEHE

e Roads o ERE 563,700

o Greenery space o Hx b2 3,249,100

Subtotal of non-saleable land Bl A 3,812,800

Total et 9,500,000

Note: BIE -

(1) Planned site area is based on the planning approved by the relevant local (1) ARBEMEHEE HERES B 5 BRATHE

government. KR BIMETE -
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(lll) Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park

During the year 2017, we continued our communication with people’s
government of Langfang and people’s government of Guangyang District
of Langfang in respect of the Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park.
As of 31 December 2017, the industrial positioning and service scope
of the park were still subject to adjustment as the detailed planning
for the second Beijing Capital Airport has not been released, thus no
development work had been carried out in respect of the park. The
Company will continue to communicate with people’s government of
Langfang and people’s government of Guangyang District of Langfang
in respect of the Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park and strive
to commence land consolidation and facility construction as soon as
possible.

(IV) Yongging VAST Industial Town Park

The table below sets forth details regarding classification of land and
planned site area of Yongging VAST Industrial Town Park as at 31
December 2017.

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENMNE DI

() EEREECE

E2017F R - BAPEEH T ARBE &
BR T RS [ A R BUR S 5t E RS B
EIEBEERITER - HE2017F12 A
318 - BRI R EHE RIS RE M AB
o ZEREEENRRSEEDE R
B WAREEERE o ARIGEER
Besh i A RBUT K B3 T B F5 [ A R BT
ERESRFEIMERBE S RIFER - FHN
BRI B) T b B IR I B S MR ER

(V) X BREEXTEHEER
TREINN2017F12ANBHREEREE
THEREAE LS ERREEEEN
EEER o

Classification Wik | Planned site area®
BB EED
sg.m.
oK
Saleable HHE
¢ Residential and commercial area s FERMEHER 3,660,100
e Industrial area o EXR 3,533,900
Subtotal of saleable land AT 3B £ 4/ N5 7,194,000
Non-saleable FEHE
e Roads o JERK 2,266,400
e Greenery space o 47{bz=Ef 4,299,000
e Supporting facilities o BEENERIE 250,800
Subtotal of non-saleable land JEH R /N5t 6,816,200
Total st 14,010,200

Note:

(1) Planned site area is based on the planning submitted to the relevant local
government by us for approval.

PAE -

(1) REEWEBDERRMEXTEBLT
BUFLALEE HERDARE] ©
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENRRDN

(V) VAST zZhangjiakou City New Industrial Park
The table below sets forth details regarding classification of land and
planned site area of VAST Zhangjiakou City New Industrial Park as at 31

(V) RROTHELZZEXRE

TREIIN2017F12A3NBRRATHE
REEFXEBHLI A B RRBGICEE

December 2017. HETRE R
Classification ok} Planned site area™
HENLHEED
sg.m.
Saleable oHE
» Residential and commercial area s FERNEER 360,832
e |ndustrial area o R 1,130,865
Subtotal of saleable land B HEE /N5 1,491,697
Non-saleable FEHE
e Roads o ERE 82,303
Subtotal of non-saleable land FEHE /AT 82,303
Total st 1,574,000
Note: BiE

(1) Planned site area is based on the planning submitted to the relevant local

government by us for approval.

() REGEBEBIERRMZXTHERELS
BT AR HERO R B -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENMNE DI

(V1) Zhangjiakou City Modern Industrial Park (V) EXOHRAEXEE

The table below sets forth details regarding classification of land and TREHIR2017F12A31HERATERNA

planned site area of Zhangjiakou City Modern Industrial Park as at 31 EXEERARE I MY BANBEEREED

December 2017. EEER o

Classification 28 Planned site area®
REUE B EFD

sg.m.

Saleable ATHE

¢ Residential and commercial area s TERRHERE 3,685,200

o Industrial area o E¥E 1,266,900

Subtotal of saleable land A HE L/ at 4,952,100

Non-saleable FHE

* Roads o JHEK 2,111,600

o Greenery space o Hx(b 22 1,041,700

e Agriculture, regional traffic municipal o B¥ . BRIFBETH 9,082,300

e Supporting facilities o BBNERIE 108,300

Subtotal of non-saleable land E Sk b 12,343,900

Total et 17,296,000

Note: B & -

(1) Planned site area is based on the planning submitted to the relevant local (1) REMEHEBHERRME2ZTFTEBHS

government by us for approval. AT AVER LA IR ©
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWmEDWN

(Vi) Shijiazhuang General Aviation Industrial Town Park (VI EREBEAMEELTHEERE

The table below sets forth details regarding classification of land and
planned site area of Shijiazhuang General Aviation Industrial Town Park
as at 31 December 2017.

TREFIN2017F12 A3 B AR EEAM
TEEMAREABI DB RAEH
EREMEEER -

Classification g1 Planned site area™
FENLHEED
sg.m.
Saleable HHE
o Residential and commercial area s FERNEER 5,313,000
o Industrial area o EXRE 6,347,000
Subtotal of saleable land A s et 11,660,000
Non-saleable FEHE
e Roads o IEHPK 3,668,900
e Greenery space o 4Lz 2,716,200
e Supporting facilities o SENRIE 1,954,900
Subtotal of non-saleable land FEHE /AT 8,340,000
Total @st 20,000,000
Note: i

(1) Planned site area is based on the planning submitted to the relevant local
government by us for approval.

For Shijiazhuang General Aviation Industrial Town Park, the Company
mainly engaged in land preparation and investment services. As at 31
December 2017, the accumulated area of land preparation started in the
Park was approximately 1,300,000 sg.m. During the year, the Company
received income arising from land preparation and investment services
of RMB256.7 million (calculated using the cost plus method).

) REEBERDERRMZITHERELS
B AVEZE HERO R ) -

AAREAREBAMEEETHEE T
L= T BRI E RIS - 702017 F12 A
318 - ZER MBI L% REE
#7/41,300,000F 5 K ° R - AR EUER
T IR E RIS E A MIRAARB256.7
BETAREMBCERTE) -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENMNE DI

(Vi) shijiazhuang Gaocheng VAST Industrial Town Park

The table below sets forth details regarding classification of land and
planned site area of Shijiazhuang Gaocheng VAST Industrial Town Park as
at 31 December 2017.

(Vi) EREBHEERREFTEEE

TREIIR20177F12ANBEREERE
ZEEMHEER GBI B RREEH
EREEER o

Classification 28 Planned site area™
FENLHEEY
sg.m.

Saleable oHE
* Residential and commercial area e FERMHER 9,497,900
e |ndustrial area o R 4,582,900
Subtotal of saleable land A HEE /N E 14,080,800

Non-saleable FEHE
e Roads o ERE 3,905,900
o Greenery space o Hx(b 22 2,850,000
e Supporting facilities o EEANERIE 6,234,800
Subtotal of non-saleable land s/ NEt 12,990,700
Total Wt 27,071,500

Note:

(1) Planned site area is based on the planning submitted to the relevant local
government by us for approval.

For Shijiazhuang Gaocheng VAST Industrial Town Park, the Company
mainly engaged in land preparation and investment services. As at 31
December 2017, the accumulated area of land preparation started in the
Park was approximately 500,000 sg.m. During the year, the Company
received income arising from land preparation and investment services
of RMB361.6 million (calculated using the cost plus method).

B R R A TR EYR AR A 7 China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

BT -

(1) REEWEBHDERRMEXTEBLT
BUFLALEE HERDARE] o

AAREARAEN A TEXTERREE
ZRELHEEBRERS - 1 2017 F12
A31H ' ZBEEEREM L RE
T&#) /500,000 F52K o FR - AR EUE
T BT B RIS EEMRAARE361.6
BETARAEMBCERTE)



Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWmEDWN

(IX) Chuzhou Park (IX) B REEE

The table below sets forth details regarding classification of land and TREFHIR2017F12 A3 BB REE =

planned site area of Chuzhou Park as at 31 December 2017. BT BEEREGEENENEER -

Classification x| Planned site area™
REULHEE

sg.m.

Saleable ATHE

¢ Residential and commercial area o TEm R ERE 4,286,100

¢ Industrial area o FEHER 5,466,100

Subtotal of saleable land A R b N Et 9,752,200

Non-saleable FEHE

e Roads o ERK 2,688,800

o Greenery space o 47 2,398,000

o Supporting facilities o THANERHE 159,100

Subtotal of non-saleable land JEHE A/ At 5,245,900

Total st 14,998,100

Note: PHPE -

(1) Planned site area is based on the planning submitted to the relevant local (1 HREEWEBDERBEMEXITEBUMT

government by us for approval. BT AVEEHE R R & -
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(X) VAST Ezhou Industrial Park

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENMNE DI

The table below sets forth details regarding classification of land and
planned site area of VAST Ezhou Industrial Park as at 31 December

X) ZRFMEXE

TREFIN2017F12 A3 B EH=PMEZE
BABALHOERREGHAENENEE

2017. o
Classification o8 Planned site area™
REMEHERE
sg.m.
Saleable oHE
o Residential and commercial area e FERMHER 749,300
e |ndustrial area o R 2,228,600
Subtotal of saleable land A HEE /N E 2,977,900
Non-saleable FEHE
e Roads o EHPK 630,700
o Greenery space o Hx(b 22 502,600
o \Water space o JKig A 200,700
Subtotal of non-saleable land s/ NEt 1,334,000
Total st 4,311,900
Note: BI5E -

(1) Planned site area is based on the planning submitted to the relevant local

government by us for approval.

For VAST Ezhou Industrial Park, the Company mainly engaged in
land preparation and investment services. As at 31 December 2017,
the accumulated area of land preparation started in the Park was
approximately 190,000 sg.m. During the year, the Company received
income arising from land preparation and investment services of
RMB124.3 million (calculated using the cost plus method).

B R R A TR EYR AR A 7 China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

M REGEHERDERRMZRXTAERLT
B AR SERO AR S -

RARELRBNEXREBNE LR
1B MICE IR - 122017 12 A318 » % E
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Management Discussion and Analysis
ERENRRON

As of 31 December 2017, we had 21 projects at various stages of  A2017%F128318 * HPIEA 21 EENTEHE
development, mainly concentrating on development of residential,  ZX[XERMIER @ T EEHMRTE % B

commercial and industrial projects with a wide range of products including 15§

CEmBLEEEE A% BIE - EEF

residence, apartment, villa, garden houses, retail stores and office buildings. &E - TEEHEMITARESE - 20175128318
We had residential, commercial and industrial land reserves of gross floor  FAFE=E - EEMEZEEN M AIE T ihEEE
area of 1,448,850 sq.m. remain unsold as at 31 December 2017. SAMTEA1,448,850F 7K o

We classify our projects into three categories according to the stages of  FIRIEMZEEEREEE » A=1EE5 :

development:

. Completed properties. Completed properties represent properties °

for which we have received the certified construction completion
report from the relevant government construction authorities. As of 31
December 2017, our completed properties consisted of Mingren Garden
(& A7), Foxconn City Phase | (5 =3 —Hi), Hongtai Meishuguan
Phase | tz‘%%ﬁﬁﬁ—,ﬂﬁ ), Hongtai Meishuguan Phase Il (ZZZ= 188
—HA), Yihejiayuan Block A (B AN{E48AR), Hongtai Longdi Phase | (7=
Z=PedB—H), Hongtai Longdi Phase Il (ZZ=8e B — 1), Chuangye Plaza
Phase Il (8]% AJ/E — ), Longhe Park — Talent Home (8g;7 & #rl& A A
K E), Yishujia (2#%), Yulong Bay Phase | (fle/& —Hf) and Electronic
Information Industrial Park Phase | (&F1{3 5.2 2£E —

. Properties under development. Properties under development represent °

properties for which we have received the requisite construction work
commencement permit with respect to all or a part of our projects
before completion of the entire projects. As of 31 December 2017, our
properties under development consisted of Foxconn City Phase Il (8 +
B — #f), Electronic Information Industrial Park Phase | (B Tz B &E%
& —Hf), Foxconn Technology Complex (A11) and Tanghai Project (Plot 3
Yuehu Bay). These four projects are expected to be completed in 2018.

. Properties planned for future development. Properties planned for .

future development represent (i) properties for which we have received
the relevant land use rights certificates but have not yet received the
requisite construction work commencement permit; and (i) properties
for which we are in the process of obtaining land use rights certificates
for our projects. As of 31 December 2017, our properties planned for
future development consisted of Foxconn City Phase Il (& + B = H7),
Electronic Information Industrial Park Phase Il (BF12 B & ¥ E — i),
Hongtai Commerce Plaza (RZ&= 2 E%), Qingnianhui (& &), Yulong
Bay Phase Il (g% — &), Yulong Bay Phase Il (#5E/& = HA), Huahang
Apartment (#fj/2E) and Tanghai Project (F/878 8) (Plot 1 and Plot 2).

M TYE - DR TYWERWEI A BB
TSN R T RBRENME - F
2017F12A318 » ZMINERIHMESR
%AJw~§i§ﬁ*%~f$%m%*
5 - ?$%ﬁﬁ*%\@ﬁ&ﬁAE\
TRl —H - AR AIEXE
%\%ﬂ%%EAﬁ%E\@m%~@%
—HRETFREEEEXR -

B - HRPWEE  REBEEER
BT 2aE 0 EB KRB AR EET
R IFFAZNYE - R2017412 831
B #ANEERTDERBELREN -
H EFEREXE—H ELEMEE
(A1) REBIEE (M BUHNHE) o 2P E
TEHFEHR2018F K T -

RBMERRFAEOWE o REERRME
M ERE KR AR T I0E BES - Bk
U B Py B8 32 5 IEMIﬁTDWW¥'&
(VER BB FRMIFIEE b EAREN

2 - 201712 A318 » % Fﬁiﬁéwﬁkx
FENMERRESLTEN=H EFE.
EXEH - REH¥ES SFE-®
BEECH - fIEE=H EMABLES
BB (157 A125% )

Some of our projects comprise multiple-phase developments on a rolling  FfifE TIEE SETEEENZHEREIER
basis. One project may include different phases at various stages of FHFIMNEEAJEERED LT ~ BREPNBFENE
development, i.e., completed properties, properties under development and  RERFEETREREEROME -

properties planned for future development.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWmEDN

The following map shows the geographical locations and key data of our
properties as of 31 December 2017.

Langfang
Type EEid) EREh T
Foxconn City = + B
Completed B®T 33,000
Under construction e 148,000
For future development R 2kF3% 130,000

Chengde
s
[ )

Chuangye Plaza (Phase Il) #l% K& —#
Completed BRI 29,000
Under construction e -

For future development AR ZRFAEE -

Hongtai Longdi % 2= EE6f

Completed BRI 351,000
Under construction jes= -
For future development A ZRFAEE -

- Tianjin
Hongtai Commerce Plaza 2R &% &5 N
RE

Completed B®T -
Under construction e -
For future development  ARZEFIZE 153,000

@ Tangshan
Ll

Electronic Information Industrial Park in Longhe

Park BEI S HEE F = S EXE
Completed B%T 56,000
Under construction pezy = 15,000
For future development  ARZEFAZE 127,000

Foxconn Technology Complex (A11)
ETERKE(A11)

Completed B®T -
Under construction jes= 18,000
For future development A ZRFAEE -
BEIj INng-
Tianjin-Hebei
Completed BET 22,000 Region
Under construction e - :':TT\ 7\$ ﬁ iﬂ’, &

For future development  RZRFAZE -
Yishujia #®# =R
Completed B%T 160,000

Under construction fe -
For future development ~ RZRFAZE -

Yihejiayuan (Block A) FEEF{E%E(AE)
Completed B®T 85,000
Under construction T -

For future development  ARZRFAEE -

B R R A TR EYR AR A 7 China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

LA b B 28 R 720174612 B 31 B B AP 40 2 1 3 38
ERESHIE -

Type ki)
Mingren Garden & A/NE
Completed B®T 64,000

Under construction 12 -
For future development ~ RIRFEEE -

Hongtai Meishuguan %% £

Completed BT 252,000
Under construction i -
For future development  RZRFIZE -

Qingnianhui FFE

Completed BT -
Under construction 1 -
For future development  AR2RFA%E 11,000

Huahang Apartment E#HAE
Completed B®T -
Under construction 1 -

For future development  R2RF%& 10,000

Yulong Bay fi e

Completed BT 159,000
Under construction e -
For future development & 2RF%% 472,000

el Tanghai Project EiSEE

Completed B%T -
Under construction Je3= 16,000
For future development ~ AZRF% 188,000




Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENRmRDN

Total Remaining
Gross Floor Land-use Group's saleable
Site Area Area Purpose Interest Areal
g &8
Project Name and Location BRARRME EHEE % ki filS fribiRE HTERRY
(sq.m) (sq.m) (sg.m.)
(FAK) (Fhk) (%) (%)
Langfang B
Foxconn City (Phase | to Il BTRA(-BE=5) 126,545 311,000 Residential and commercial 100% 266,000
39 Fukang Road, Langfang BT EREIR ERE%
Chuangye Plaza (Phase ) EERE-H 8,820 29,000 Commercial 100% 23,000
39 Nanlong Road, Langfang B mEEE9R [
Hongtai Longdi (Phase | and 1) TRED(—H - ZH) 126929 351,000 Residential and commercial 100% 58,000
259 South Yinhe Road, Langfang RS SR B 259 FEREE
Hongtai Commerce Plaza LREEES 47,486 153,000 Commercial 100% 153,000
West Chuangye Plaza, Nanlong Road, Langfang RS EEE YN T [
Electronic Information Indlustrial Park in Longhe Park ENSHEITESELER 187815 198,000 Inqustrial 100% 173,000
(Phase land I) (-8 -8) EX
89 Fukang Road, Langfang BT B89
Foxconn Technology Complex (A11) BTERERE(AN) 9263 18,000 Commercial 100% 17,000
East of lianshenan Road and South of Erhao Road, By mEAEHRE [
Longhe Park, Langfang BRERUR
ZHBIE
Longhe Park - Talent Home ElRNE-ATRE 12,666 22000 Residential 100% 21,000
125 Furao Road, Langfang B mEEESH® i
Yishujia BER 94,829 160,000 Resicential and commercial 100% 600
155 Guangyang Road, Langfang B I8 1555 FEREE
Yihejiayuan (Block A) BEAER(AR) 35430 85000  Residential and commercial 100% 3,000
300 Xichang Road, Langfang BT 2553008 FEREE
Mingren Garden ZNIE 29,141 64,000 Residential and commercial 100% 250
76 Heping Road, Langfang By mMTRI6% EEREE
Hongtai Meishuguan (Phase | and I) ERERER(-E —8) 120739 252,000 Residential and commercial 100% 27,000
28 Huaxiang Road, Development Zone, Langfang By MAREEHK85 HEREE
Qingnianhui BEE 4,279 11,000 Residential and commercial 100% 9,000
175 East Aimin Road, Langfang BHTERRESH GG
Huahang Apartment ES YN 105557 10,000 Residential 100% 10,000
175 East Aimin Road, Langfang BHmERREH: iz
Chengde g
Yulong Bay e 142,841 631,000 Residential and commercial 100% 484,000
Junction of Sounthwest of Wuwei Road and Siljing Road, A THE REH%HAR - EEREE
New District, Chengde LvaeS |
Tangshan Bl
Tanghai Project e 665,935 204,000 Residential 100% 204,000
North Shore, Caofei Hu, Qi Nongchang, ElTERGLEE E
Caofeidian District, Tangshan ERE
Total &t 1623275 2,499,000 1,448 850
Note: Bfi%E

(1) Remaining saleable area includes area completed but not yet sold, area under

construction, area for future development and area pre-sold but not yet

recognised as revenue.

(M

HAEHERECRTIEREERSE  EEE
B RRAZEERIEREERERRRANT

& o
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENMNE DI

The following table sets forth the revenue, gross floor area ("GFA") sold, and
average selling price (“ASP”) for each of our revenue-generating property for

the year ended 31 December 2017.

TREFNEE2017F 123N B ILFERARESE
WEMENRE DEEERBE((EZERED -

NP EE(TFEEED -

GFA sold ASP
Residential and commercial FEREE Year ended Year ended
Project EHA Revenue 31 December 2017 31 December 2017
CEEREEE TEE
BZE20175% HZE20175%
g 12A31H1E 12A31H1E
RMB'000 sg.m. RMB/sg.m.
ARETTT Tk AREITAFRK
Electronic Information Industrial Park & B E%£E
Plant W= 47,908 7,866 6,091
47,908 7,866 6,091
Yulong Bay Plot A4 HEEEAL IR
Residential [Ea=2 11,844 2,111 5,611
commercial [HES 6,865 600 11,442
18,709 2,711 6,901
Hongtai Longdi Phase | REEL—H
commercial [EES 2,901 149 19,470
2,901 149 19,470
Hongtai Longdi Phase Il TER e B — B
Residential [Ea=2 3,064 403 7,603
Ccommercial [HES 11,698 576 20,309
14,762 979 15,079
Hongtai Meishuguan Phase | TRIRE R — A
Residential F=E 2,354 447 5,266
2,354 447 5,266
Hongtai Meishuguan Phase I RRFEN B _H
Residential [Ea=2 7,426 917 8,098
7,426 917 8,098
Mingren Garden EYNAN
Residential F=E 2,856 423 6,752
2,856 423 6,752
Sub-total /INet 96,916 13,492 7,183

B R R A TR EYR AR A 7 China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited



Management Discussion

BEEENRmRDN

and Analysis

GFA sold ASP
Ancillary Area Y= Year ended Year ended
Project 5 H Revenue 31 December 2017 31 December 2017
DEEEERE THEE
BZE2017%F BZE20175%
Wi 12A31BLLEE 128318 L EE
RMB'000 sg.m. RMB/sg.m.
AREFT Fk AR EHXK
Yulong Bay Plot A4 Underground fHEEEALM R N =
Chamber 674 350 1,926
Hongtai Longdi Underground Chamber Z=Z=geffit T = 553 417 1,326
Hongtai Meishuguan Underground RRERBE TE
Chamber 363 366 992
Mingren Garden Underground Chamber & A/N@ih T = 25 23 1,087
Sub-total NEF 1,615 1,156 1,397
Unit sold ASP
Year ended Year ended
Revenue 31 December 2017 31 December 2017
EEEVHE THEE
BZE2017%F BZE20175%
§: 12A31HLEE 12A31BLEE
RMB'000 Unit RMB/unit
AREFT 18 AR,/ (A
Yulong Bay Plot A Underground AR
Car Park Unit N EfL 6,141 86 71,407
Hongtai Longdi Underground oS- Siii5: L NE YA
Car Park Unit 22,685 268 84,646
Hongtai Meishuguan Underground RIRER IR N EAL
Car Park Unit 9,981 124 80,492
Sub-total NET 38,807 478 81,186
Total BT 137,338
Less: Tax and surcharges B e RHTnE 14,488
Total revenue after tax PR ELE 122,850
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENMNE DI

() FOXCONN CITY PHASE Il (LONGHEFENGJING) IN LONGHE PARK

ENSHES LB —H(FETaR)

Foxconn City Phase I, also known as Longhefengjing Project, is located 1,000
meters south away from the intersection of Nanlong Road and Jianshe South
Road with a variety of apartments that satisfy different housing needs. Four
bus lines of the city, namely, number 11, 15, 16 and 33, pass through the
project site. At the same time, Jianshe South Road closely connects with
Xinkai Road,Yinhe Road and Heping Road in the city. Core business district
such as Wanda Plaza and Mingzhu Shangsha is accessible within 15 minutes
and it is only 5 minute-drive away from Langfang high-speed railway. Facilities
surrounding the project are well equipped with Anci district central hospital
planning in the south, five secondary schools, fourteen primary schools, one
kindergarten in Anci district and Longhe Park First Primary School planning
in the surrounding area. Medical, education, leisure and shopping are readily
available.

In 2017, the contracted sales and contracted sales in terms of GFA of
Foxconn City Phase Il project amounted to RMB185,763,000 and 16,700 sg.m.,
respectively. As at 31 December 2017, the total GFA and remaining future
saleable residential floor area (excluding pre-sold GFA) of Foxconn City Phase
Il project were 148,000 sg.m. and 28,500 sg.m., respectively.

ETEBM-_HXEARAASIER - NS
BRI B X X A 17 1,0000K » FAIZ AL -
WREREEERR 1115 16 X3B\IWIEH A
REEEE - FSERFAEKEETRHAFE - RT
B MTRETARE - 159 BEEBERYS -
KAESZOEE - BBy e HERs N EE
2 EBABREES  mARIZREDLE
Be - BEEF - T RRE—4) - REEW
SMRE—EE  BE HE KB BY—
FEEZE -

2017F BETEA-HIBEBEAREEAARE
185,763F 7T - & REEMEIER16,700F 7K « I
2017812 A318 © BLEH — HTE B A EEEE
#3148,000F 55K - FIgAAR R AT EMmAERERE
(TREBBEREEEE) /28,500 5K
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DN

(I1) ELECTRONIC INFORMATION INDUSTRIAL PARK IN LONGHE PARK (WITHUB

AND DREAMWORK)
RAIBHEETEELE (B2 « B1H)

Electronic Information Industrial Park in Longhe Park, Langfang is a high-end
office building industrial project located in the center of high-tech industrial
cluster in Longhe Park, Langfang. The project is conveniently located as it is
5 minutes away from Langfang high-speed railway and takes 20 minutes to
the city center of Beijing and Tianjin by high-speed railway. It adjoins Beijing-
Shanghai, Beijing-Hongkong-Macao and Beijing-Taipei Expressway. The
project mainly involves the development of single buildings for enterprises
and is an industrial complex project which offers services including
commerce, office, exhibition, communication and training.

As at 31 December 2017, the total GFA and remaining future saleable factory
floor area (excluding pre-sold GFA) of Electronic Information Industrial Park
project were 198,000 sg.m. and 158,000 sg.m., respectively.
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(111) CHUANGYE PLAZA (PHASE I1) IN LONGHE PARK
ETSHERIRAE=H

-

Chuangye Plaza is currently the most well-established large scale office
building in the south of Langfang. Located in the center of Longhe Park,
Chuangye Plaza is in close vicinity to Anci Administrative Service Center (%
IRATBUR#H L) and is a landmark building of Longhe Park. Chuangye Plaza
is in the north of Nanlong Road and in the east of Changfu Road, which is
connected directly to the high-speed railway station and takes 20 minutes to
Beijing and Tianjin by high-speed railway. It is close to Yinhe Road and lJianshe
Road. Its road network is extended to all directions with smooth and clear
connection to the south of Langfang. The area of a single floor ranges from 60
sg.m. to 1,870 sg.m. without indoor columns, enabling an open and practical
space with a large window facing area.

As at 31 December 2017, the total GFA and remaining future saleable
residential floor area (excluding pre-sold GFA) of Chuangye Plaza (Phase II)
project were 29,000 sg.m. and 19,000 sg.m., respectively.
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(IV)HONGTAI LONGDI IN LANGFANG, HEBEI PROVINCE
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Hongtai Longdi (7= Z=#E&B) is an integrated
development of residential and commercial project
which is located in Longhe Park, the center of the
south of Langfang. Longhe Park not only enjoys
proximity to the central business district of the capital,
but also occupies a strategic position at Langfang,
Beijing and Tianjin. It is an ecologically friendly
city characterized by its modernization as well as
integration of production and municipal functions in
the south of Langfang. The Project is conveniently
located close to transport facilities with Nanlong Road
in the north and Yinhe Road to the west, which is two
kilometers away from the Langfang stop of Beijing-
Shanghai high-speed railway.

In 2017, the contracted sales and contracted
sales in terms of GFA of Hongtai Longdi (RZ&#
£F) amounted to RMB24,233,000 and 1,200 sg.m.,
respectively. As at 31 December 2017, the total
GFA and remaining future saleable residential floor
area (excluding pre-sold GFA) of Hongtai Longdi
(Z=Z=EEHR) project were 351,000 sg.m. and 15,900
sq.m., respectively.

(V) HONGTAI MEISHUGUAN IN LANGFANG, HEBEI PROVINCE

A AL E BRYh T A 3 R A B

Hongtai Meishuguan (Z2Z=Z48/§8) is a residential
complex project comprising residence, apartment,
villa and garden houses which is located in
the center of the economic and technological
development zone of Langfang, Hebei province.
Located in the northeastern part of Langfang,
north to Oriental University City (3875 X Z4%)
and south to the Langfang financial recreational
center, the project is conveniently located close
to a developed transportation network and is only
500 meters away from the Langfang exit of Beijing-
Tianjin-Tanggu Expressway and 50 minutes driving
distance from CBD of Beijing.

In 2017, the contracted sales and contracted sales
in terms of GFA of Hongtai Meishuguan (2= 15t
£8) project amounted to RMB11,933,000 and 1,100
sg.m., respectively. As at 31 December 2017, the
total GFA and remaining future saleable residential
floor area (excluding pre-sold GFA) of Hongtai
Meishuguan (7=Z=3<15 8E) project were 252,000
sg.m. and 2,200 sg.m., respectively.
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(V)YULONG BAY PHASE | IN CHENGDE, HEBEI PROVINCE

At B AR HEEE -4
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Yulong Bay project is an integrated development project of residential
and commercial in Chengde, Hebei province. Located in the south part of
Shuanggiao District, Chengde, the project is conveniently located as it is
less than two kilometers away from the Beijing-Chengde Expressway and
only six kilometers away from the Chengde Stop of Beijing-Shenyang high-
speed railway. The project adjoins Chengde University City ({2 K £45) with
well-equipped surrounding facilities and has huge development potential for
future real estate projects.

In 2017, the contracted sales and contracted sales in terms of GFA of Yulong
Bay Phase | (fHl#g/& —HE) project amounted to RMB5,796,000 and 580 sg.m.,
respectively. As at 31 December 2017, the total GFA and remaining future
saleable residential floor area (excluding pre-sold GFA) of Yulong Bay Phase |
(e & — Hf) project were 159,000 sg.m. and 1,780 sq.m., respectively.

Property Leasing

As of 31 December 2017, we had six completed investment properties,
namely, Chengxiang Building (5 %8 X /=), Meishu Complex (Ei4R&18),
Jinyue Building (& 1% /848), Tianfu Center ﬂiﬁﬂtﬂ:b Phase | and Phase Il
of SME Entrepreneurial Base (/| b3 AIZEE#—H) « —Hf), Shijiazhuang
International Aviation Engineering Center and two investment properties
planned for future development, including Foxconn Technology Complex C10
(B ERHZ#C10) and Phase Il of SME Entrepreneurial Base (Ff/MEZEEIZE
Eih = Hj).
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The following table shows the key data of our investment properties as of 31

AR RAREBERIN2017412 A31 B RFHEE W

December 2017. FEHIE -
Gross Floor Group's Land
Area  Existing use Interest lease term
Project Name and Location BRARRMNE BEEE BARZ SEfERE THEEER
(sq.m) (Year)
(FAK) (%) (%)
Phase I&11 of SME Entrepreneurial Base M ERIE R 5 126395 Partial leasing - Industrial 100% 50
No. 29 Ruixue Street, Anci District, Langfang BRI EREEDT, PrHE-I%
Chengyiang Building WHRE 11,365 Leasing - Commercial and office 100% 50
building
No. 66 Xinhua Road, Guangyang District, Langfang B ER R ZHK66H HE-BERENE
Jinyue Building g 209  Leasing - Residential and commercial 100% 70
Northwestern comer of the junction of HepingRoad s BB NI TR EERERERALA HE-FEREE
and Guangyang Road, Guangyang Disctrict,
Langfang
Tianfu Center RERD 8,895 Leasing- Commercial 100% 10
South of South Outer Ring, North of Longhe, B mETSHREINREUR - T - HE-B%
East of Yinghe Road and West of Changfu Road, FARNE - REEBNE
Longhe Park, Langfang
Meishu Complex ESiEE 9362 Leasing- Commercial 100% |
South of Yunpeng Road and East of linyun Road, ~ BShm SR E BB m SR A - HE-#%
Langfang Economic and Technological SERUR
Developmen Zone, Langfang
Shijiazhuang Aircraft Engineering Center EFHEBREIRAL 16,800 Leasing - Industrial 100% 50
No. 100 Zhonging Street, Luancheng District, BRI RE1008 BE-I%
Shijiazhuang
Phase Il of SME EntrepreneLrial Base i ﬁ%ﬁ IE38 64,489 Not developed - Industrial 100% 0
No. 29 Ruixue Street, Anci District, Langfang BamE N BREENT REE-1%
Foxcoon Technology Complex C10 ETERECI 80399 Not developed - Commercial 100% 40
East of Jianshenan Road and South of ErhaoRoad,  Biiiel BHERABEIE - —HRIE AAE-H%
Longhe Park, Langfang
Total At 319,799
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For the year ended 31 December 2017, our property leasing income was
RMB36.8 million. In the future, we will consider the synergies created by the
development of our real estate related business to determine the allocation
of resources to our leasing business.

Outlook

In respect of our industrial town projects development, we will focus on the
development of Longhe Hi-tech Zone and commence foundation works in
respect of projects located in Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei area in 2018. We have
confidence in executing this year’s development plan and revenue proposal as
laid out by the management of the Company at the beginning of the year.

In respect of our property development, we intend to commence construction
of three projects in 2018, including Yulong Bay Phase Il (ffl g% — Hf), Foxconn
City Phase Ill (= -+ B = 89) and Hongtai Commerce Plaza (BRI E
1%). Revenue from sales of properties during 2018 is expected to be derived
mainly from sales carried forward from the project of Foxconn City Phase Il (&
TRRYL ).

Taking into account our cash and future operating cash flows, and bank and
other borrowings available, we believe that we have sufficient funding to
support these development plans.
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Board of Directors

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) consists of nine Directors, of whom five
are executive Directors, one is non-executive Director and the remaining
three are independent non-executive Directors.

Executive Director and Chairman

Mr. Wang lianjun (£7£%), aged 55, was appointed as our Chairman and
executive Director on 13 February 2014, and the chairman of nomination
committee on 6 August 2014. Mr. Wang is also the founder and the president
of our Group, responsible for our overall strategy, business development and
investment planning. Mr. Wang has 22 years of experience in the real estate
industry. Mr. Wang is the spouse of Ms. Zhao Ying and the father of Ms. Wang
Wei. Mr. Wang is involved in various governmental and public associations,
including: member of the Standing Committee of the People’s Congress in
Langfang City, Hebei province; Vice President of China Real Estate Chamber
of Commerce (2BEhZE R E); President of Park Capital Alliance (BEz#&
ZREgtB8), and Vice President (g|€ &) of Langfang Industrial and Commercial
Association (Esthm L ¥4 €). Mr. Wang received his college diploma
(%) in Administration Management (f7E& ) from the Rural Enterprises
Managers & Leaders Institute of the Ministry of Agriculture (£ 2 ZR#5$E 1
e EEm AT |ocated in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), in
June 1995. He was qualified as a Senior Engineer (5 4% Ti2EM) by the Title
Reform Leadership Group of Hebei Province (Adt& BB E a8/ 4), a
governmental authority, in December 2001.

Executive Director and Vice President

Mr. Yang Yun (#54t), aged 44, was appointed as our executive Director on
17 March 2014. Mr. Yang is the vice president of our Group, responsible for
strategy and development, expansion of industrial town projects and property
development and overall process management of property development. Mr.
Yang has 19 years of experience in the real estate industry. He received his
bachelor's degree in real estate management (B E& 2 &) from Jiangxi
University of Finance and Economics (T Fa81 4§ A E2), located in the PRC, in
July 1998. He was qualified as an Assistant Economist (BhIE 4 #EM) by the
Title Reform Office of Langfang Economic Development Zone (R 5 % & B
23%) in October 1999.
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Executive Director and Vice President

Mr. Wang Yagang (Ez5l), aged 37, was appointed as our executive Director
on 17 March 2014. Mr. Wang Yagang is the Vice President of our Group,
responsible for overall management of industrial town projects. Mr. Wang
has 15 years of experience in the real estate industry. He graduated from
Agriculture University of Hebei (AL 2 %K), located in the PRC, majoring
in Management of Urban Economics (A $E 4557 & 12, in December 2004.

Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Huang Peikun (& 5%1#), aged 55, was appointed as our executive Director
on 17 March 2014. Mr. Huang is the Chief Financial Officer of our Group,
responsible for our financial management and control. Mr. Huang has 14
years of experience in business management. He received his master’s
degree in Management Science and Engineering (& 2R £ 8 T 7%) from
Zhejiang University (#/TX£2), located in the PRC, in December 1999 and his
Executive Master of Business Administration degree from The Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology (& %H% X&), located in Hong Kong,
in June 2012. He was qualified as a senior accountant (& & =t8f) by the
Department of Personnel Affairs of Guangdong Province (E# & A EEE) in
February 2000. Mr. Huang was the executive director of China Merchants
Land Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 00978)
from 2 June 2012 to 8 August 2013.

Executive Director

Ms. Wang Wei (£%%), aged 26, was appointed as our executive director on 10
November 2017. Ms. Wang is the daughter of Mr. Wang Jianjun and Ms. Zhao
Ying. Ms. Wang holds a bachelor’s degree in finance from Shanghai University
of Finance and Economics in June 2013. She worked in the Company on a
part-time basis and in an international investment institution before joining
the Company on full-time basis in July 2017. She is responsible for overseeing
the Group's corporate finance activities and mergers and acquisitions.

Non-executive Director

Ms. Zhao Ying (878), aged 47, was appointed as our non-executive Director
on 13 February 2014 and a member of remuneration committee on 6 August
2014. Ms. Zhao has 9 years of experience in the real estate industry. Ms. Zhao
is the spouse of Mr. Wang Jianjun and the mother of Ms. Wang Wei. Ms. Zhao
also serves as a non-executive director of China Wan Tong Yuan (Holdings)
Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 08199)
since January 2017.
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Independent Non-executive Director

Dr. Wong Wing Kuen, Albert (£ k##), aged 66, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director and the chairman of the audit committee
on 6 August 2014. Dr. Wong has approximately 23 years of experience in
accounting. He has a broad range of experience serving as directors of
various listed companies, including as an independent non-executive director
of APAC Resources Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange with
stock code 01104) since July 2004, an independent non-executive director of
Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange
with stock code 00757) since January 2008, an independent non-executive
director of China Merchants Land Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange with stock code 00978) since June 2012, an independent non-
executive director of China Wan Tong Yuan (Holdings) Limited (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 08199) since September 2017,
an independent non-executive director of Capital Finance Holdings Limited (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 08239) since January
2018. Dr. Wong was a principal consultant of KND & Co. CPA Limited (=&
ESHMERARRAT) between April 1994 to December 2017. He was
appointed a principal consultant of KND Associates CPA Limited, Hong Kong
(73L& stRn{T A R~ 7)) since January 2018.

Dr. Wong received a degree of Doctor of Philosophy in Business
Administration from the Bulacan State University, Republic of the Philippines
in December 2010. Dr. Wong is member of the following institutions, including:
a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators;
a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries; a
fellow member of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong; a member of the Hong
Kong Securities and Investment Institute; a fellow member of Association of
International Accountants; a fellow member of Society of Registered Financial
Planners; a member of The Chartered Institute of Arbitrators; an associate
member of The Chartered Institute of Bankers in Scotland; and a full member
of Macau Society of Certified Practicing Accountants.

Independent Non-executive Director

Ms. Hsieh Yafang (3itas 35 %z 1), aged 44, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director, and a member of the audit committee, nomination
committee and remuneration committee on 10 November 2017. Ms. Hsieh
is currently a senior presenter and anchor for a channel of Phoenix Satellite
Television Holdings Limited. She has over 20 years of journalist experience
in the PRC and Taiwan. Since 2010, she has served on the board of the
Hong Kong alumni association of the Cheung Kong Business School as the
Secretary-General. Ms. Hsieh received her EMBA from Cheung Kong Business
School in 2007 and her Bachelor of Art with focus in Japanese studies from
Soochow University in Taiwan in 1996.
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Independent Non-executive Director

Professor Wang Yijiang (£ —)IL#k#%), aged 64, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the remuneration
committee and a member of the audit committee and nomination committee
on 10 November 2017. Professor Wang is currently the Professor of
Economics and Human Resource Management and an Academic Associate
Dean of Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business (in charge of the
Shenzhen campus) and a senior fellow at the National Center of Economic
Research, Tsinghua University. He served as vice president of the Chinese
Economists Society of North America. He was also a Professor Emeritus of
Human Resource Management at the Carlson School of Management of
University of Minnesota.

Professor Wang graduated from the Peking University with a Bachelor’s
degree in Economics and a Master’s degree in United States Economy in
1982 and 1985, respectively. He then pursued further studies and obtained
a Master’s degree and a Doctor of Philosophy degree in Economics at
the Harvard University in 1989 and 1991, respectively. His research areas
cover human resource management, labour and personnel economics,
comparative international management systems, economics of transition and
emerging markets and economics of organization, and his research findings
have been frequently quoted.

Professor Wang currently serves as an independent director of Shenzhen
Zqgame Co., Ltd. (@ company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange with stock
code 300052) since March 2014, a non-executive director of Zhejiang Red
Dragonfly Footwear Co.,Ltd. (a company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange
with stock code 603116) since September 2016, an independent non-
executive director of Zhuhai Holdings Investment Group Limited (@ company
listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 00908) since August 2015,
and an independent non-executive director of TCL Multimedia Technology
Holdings Limited (@ company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code
01070) since February 2016. He was an independent director of Beijing Huatu
Hongyang Education & Culture Corp., Ltd. (@ company listed on National
Equities Exchange and Quotations in the PRC with stock code: 830858)
between November 2012 and June 2017, and an external director of XCMG
Construction Machinery Co., Ltd. (a company listed on Shenzhen Stock
Exchange with stock code 000425) between July 2010 and July 2017.
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Senior Management
Our senior management is responsible for the day-to-day management of our
business.

Mr. Xu Ming (#:88), aged 51, was appointed as our vice president on 20
March 2006. He is responsible for our capital management and the daily
operation of Langfang VAST. Mr. Xu has over 32 years of experience in
business management. He has been a member of the Standing Committee
of the seventh Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference in Anci
district, Langfang City, Hebei province (At & BHH LR & BB +EEE
@ % ZE8) since January 2012. Mr. Xu graduated from Tianjin University of
Finance and Economics (K;Z8F 4 A £2), formerly known as Tianjin College
of Finance and Economics (KB4 E05%), located in the PRC, in master's
course on economics (#&EE) in June 1999. He was qualified as a Senior
Economist (= 4% 4% 2EM) by the Agriculture Bank of China, Hebei branch (s
JRERITIAEE 917) In December 1999.

Ms. Cui Xiangxu (£7a]f8), aged 48, was appointed as our vice president on 3
August 2006. She is responsible for our finance, cost and legal management.
Ms. Cui has 22 years of experience in business management in the real
estate market. Ms. Cui graduated from the Lang Fang Radio & TV University
(Y7 EIEE R AE), located in the PRC, majoring in accounting (&:+£3), a
correspondence course, in July 1992. She was qualified as an Economist (4%
EERM) by the Medium Level Title Assessment Committee for Langfang Rural
Enterprises (E3¥h 4B 88 (> 2 AR BABRT & &) in September 2001.

Company Secretary

Mr. Lam Wai Tsang (#324%), aged 34, was appointed as the company
secretary of our Group on 1 February 2018. Mr. Lam is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He obtained a bachelor’s
degree of business administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong,
majoring in professional accountancy. He has over 11 years of experience
in audit, accounting and finance with an international audit firm and a listed
company in Hong Kong.
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The Board is pleased to present the Corporate Governance Report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to ensuring a high standard of corporate
governance practices and continues to closely monitor the compliance with
the applicable requirements. For the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Company has complied with all the applicable code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to The
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) except for the following deviation:

Code provision A.2.1 of the Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. Mr. Wang Jianjun has been assuming the roles of both the
chairman of the Board and the president of the Company since the listing of
the Company'’s shares on 25 August 2014. The Board believes that resting
the roles of both the chairman and the president in the same person has
the benefit of ensuring consistent leadership within the Group and enables
more effective and efficient overall strategic planning for the Group. Although
these two roles are performed by the same individual, certain responsibilities
are shared with executive directors to balance the power and authority. In
addition, all major decisions are made in consultation with members of the
board as well as senior management. The Board has three independent non-
executive directors who offer different independent perspectives. Therefore,
the Board is of the view that there are adequate balances of power and
safeguards in place. The Board would review and monitor the situation on a
regular basis and would ensure that the present structure would not impair
the balance of power in the Group.

Under Code Provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors and other
non-executive directors should attend general meetings and develop a
balanced understanding of the views of the shareholders. Due to other pre-
arranged business commitments which must be attended to by each of
them, Ms Zhao Ying, being a non-executive director of the Company, and Mr.
Wei Yu and Ms. Zhang Xiaomei, being independent non-executive directors,
were not present at the annual general meeting of the Company held on
23 June 2017. However, Dr. Wong Wing Kuen, Albert, being an independent
non-executive director of the Company, was present at the annual general
meeting to ensure an effective communication with the shareholders thereat.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code”) as the guidelines for the directors’ dealings in the securities of
the Company.

Specific enquiry has been made to all directors of the Company and all
directors have confirmed that they have complied with the applicable
standards set out in the Model Code throughout year ended 31 December
2017.

Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for overseeing the management, businesses,
strategic directions and financial performance of the Group. The Board holds
regular meetings to discuss the Group's businesses and operations. The
Board delegates the day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Group to the management team. The delegated functions are reviewed
by the Board periodically to ensure that they accommodate the needs of the
Group.

As at 31 December 2017, the Board consists of nine Directors, of whom five
are executive Directors, one is non-executive Director and the remaining
three are independent non-executive Directors. The table below sets out the
roles of each member of the Board and their relationships:

Position
Executive Director, Chairman of
the Board and President of the Company

Directors
Wang Jianjun
(spouse of Zhao Ying
and father of Wang Wei)
Yang Yun
Wang Yagang
Huang Peikun

Executive Director and Vice President
Executive Director and Vice President
Executive Director and

Chief Financial Officer
Wang Wei (daughter of Executive Director

Wang Jianjun and Zhao Ying)

Zhao Ying Non-Executive Director

(spouse of Wang Jianjun and

mother of Wang Wei)
Wwong Wing Kuen, Albert Independent Non-executive Director
Hsieh Yafang Independent Non-executive Director
Wang Yijiang Independent Non-executive Director

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set out
on pages 57 to 61. Upon specific enquiry by the Company, there has been no
change in the information of the Directors required to be disclosed pursuant
to Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules since the Company's last published annual
report.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from all of
the independent non-executive Directors and the Board is of the view that all
the independent non-executive Directors are independent in accordance with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All Directors (including non-executive Directors) are appointed for a specific
term of three years which may be extended as each and the Company
may agree, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting (“AGM") in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company. Article 84 of the articles of association of the Company provides
that at each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or if their
number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation, provided that every Director (including those
appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.
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Attendance at Meetings of the Board, Shareholders
and Board Committees

During 2017, the Board held 4 regular board meetings, 2 audit committee
meetings, 2 remuneration committee meetings and 2 nomination committee
meetings. As regards general meetings, the Company held the AGM on 23
June 2017.

The table below sets out the attendance of each Director at the relevant
meetings:

EEEeR RREEREEZREEYE
% i FE R0 8%

R2017%F - EFEBROTOATHEFEEH M
RERZAREH MAFHEEGEHRMR
REZERRH - ERREAR - ARFR2017
FOABBRITRFAFAR -

TREFISEENEHGEN L ERLE

Number of meetings attended/eligible to
attend for the year ended 31 December 2017
BE017E12ANBLEEHE AEREENSEHA

General Audit  Remuneration Nomination
Board meeting Committee Committee Committee
Ezg REAE ERZEE FMzEg REZEE
Executive Director gz
Wang Jianjun TEE 4/4 0N N/A N/A 212
TEA A
Chen Liangaiu BRE N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
A A TER A A
Yang Yun B 4/4 01 N/A N/A N/A
TiEA TEA TER
Wang Yagang T 4/4 01 N/A N/A N/A
TiEA A TER
Huang Peikun HigH 4/4 A N/A N/A N/A
TER A TiEA
Wang Wei I% 11 N/A N/A N/A N/A
A TiEA TEA TER
Non-executive Director FHTES
Zhao Ying it 4/4 0/1 N/A 2/2 N/A
TER A
Independent Non-executive Director  BUFEHITES
Zhang Xiaomel RENS 3/3 o1 22 2/2 202
Wei Yu BT 3/3 01 2/2 2/2 2/2
wong Wing Kuen, Albert Fokig 474 1”1 2/2 N/A N/A
il A
Hsieh Yafang HEH il N/A N/A N/A N/A
A TiEA TiEA TiER
Wang Yijiang -1 ”n N/A N/A N/A N/A
i A TE A N iE A TiE A
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To assist Directors’ continuing professional development, the Company
has arranged trainings and recommended Directors to attend relevant
seminars to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. All the Directors
understand the importance of continuous professional development and are
committed to participating in any suitable training to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The directors are also continually updated with legal
and regulatory requirements, and business and market changes to facilitate
the discharge of their responsibilities through various Board meetings and
resolutions. The table below sets out the individual training records of each
Director received for the year ended 31 December 2017:

Read materials

AMBEENIFESEEE - ARRIERHE
VWEFESLEEERTEUEERETRESN
ML - 2 REE R EEERENEE
M BN IMEAEE I A E REH
BEMBERFEE EFNEBEEFTTLRERR
BER - THEGERZZEREERTE EKRM
HBE#ENEFER  UEBITHE - TRIFIR
HE2017F12A3NBIEFESEEMEZIFIN
AR FEEE -

Attending seminar(s)/programme(s)/
conference(s)/training(s) relevant to

the Group’s business or directors’ duties
SNERFEEERRESHEN

R g RRgs 1L
Wang Jianjun FEE v v/
Chen Liangaiu =R v/ v
Yang Yun B 4 v
Wang Yagang F IR v v
Huang Peikun e v v
Wang Wei B v v
Zhao Ying HH5E v/ v
Zhang Xiaomei SREEE v v/
Wei Yu 0¥ v v
Wwong Wing Kuen, Albert FoxE v v/
Hsieh Yafang EiEED v v
Wang Yijiang T v v

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company, consisting of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Dr. Wong Wing Kuen, Albert (chairman), Ms.
Hsieh Yafang and Professor Wang Yijiang, was established with specific
written terms of reference and is responsible for the review and supervision
of the Group's financial reporting process and internal controls, and
recommendation on the re-appointment of external auditors. Mr. Wei Yu
and Ms. Zhang Xiaomei were members of the Audit Committee until their
resignation with effect from 10 November 2017. For the year ended 31
December 2017, the Audit Committee has met twice to review the unaudited
interim financial statements for the six months ended 30 June 2017 and the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016, review
the risk management and internal control system of the Group, review
the effectiveness of the Group's internal audit function and discuss with
the management and the external auditors the accounting principles and
practices which may affect the Group and financial reporting matters.

The Audit Committee is of the opinion that the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 comply with the applicable
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and all other applicable legal
requirements. The Audit Committee therefore recommended for the Board's
approval of the Group's consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2017.

BEREE®
RARIBZEECH BB IENTES AT
KEELE(ER)  #HEFLETRETIHIRAE
K BEERFTEAERSE  YEEFMAREER
NEBWNPERERZFRAEIEE - AR ER
SNERZ BRI E L B RS - BT LEMREEE L
TEEE20177F 1 AI0HE IR ABEZEZE SR
B o  RNEZE2017F12A3MBILFE - FZLEE
BREMAEHAEBNEHZE2017F6 A30H 1L/ @
ARG FE P B RE REE2016F12A31H
IEFELEZYHRE  BEAEEEREE KX
RIEMEHI R RS - AR a7 AN 5 3 20 470 1 Bk
BERIRCS I B 1R S IR AN AR B s T e Pl BE R
REBEIMBERESENS TR RER -

EBEZEZEERE  ASEEZE2017F12A31H1E
FEMNGAMBREANAEASTER - LHR
BN FTA B EAARRTE - BREZESRME
HEESHEREBEE2017F12A31A L FE
AR B BT RE -

Annual Report 2017 %R

65



66

Earpurate Governance Report
= ’ﬁ'—‘.\A*ﬁd:

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee, consisting of two independent non-executive
directors and one executive director, was established with specific written
terms of reference, and is responsible for making recommendations on the
Company'’s policy and structure for the remuneration of all the Directors and
senior management of the Company including making recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policy for approval by the Board. For
the year ended 31 December 2017, the Remuneration Committee met twice
to review the remuneration policy for Directors and senior management of
the Company, assess performance of the executive Directors and approve
the terms of service contract entered into during the reporting period
with an executive director, namely Ms. Wang Wei, and the remuneration
package for two independent non-executive directors, Ms. Hsieh Yafang and
Professional Wang Yijiang. The remuneration for the Directors and senior
management comprises basic salary, retirement benefits and discretionary
bonus. Details of the amount of emoluments of Directors paid for the year
ended 31 December 2017 are set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements. Members of the Remuneration Committee are Professor Wang
Yijiang (chairman), Ms. Zhao Ying and Ms. Hsieh Yafang. Mr. Wei Yu and Ms.
Zhang Xiaomei were members of the Remuneration Committee until their
resignation with effect from 10 November 2017.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee, consisting of one executive director and two
independent non-executive directors, was established with specific written
terms of reference, and is responsible for considering the suitability of a
candidate to act as a Director on the basis of the candidate’s qualification,
experience, integrity and potential contribution to the Company, and
approving and terminating the appointment of a Director. A candidate to
be appointed as independent non-executive Director must also meet the
independence requirement set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. For the
year ended 31 December 2017, the Nomination Committee met twice to
review the policy for nomination of directors, review the background and
experience of Ms. Wang Wei, Ms. Hsieh Yafang and Professor Wang Yijiang
and approve the recommendation of Ms. Wang Wei, Ms. Hsieh Yafang and
Professor Wang Yijiang to the Board for appointment as Directors. Members
of the Nomination Committee are Mr. Wang Jianjun (chairman), Ms. Hsieh
Yafang and Professor Wang Yijiang. Mr. Wei Yu and Ms. Zhang Xiaomei were
members of the Nomination Committee until their resignation with effect
from 10 November 2017.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy. The Company seeks to
achieve board diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
All board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board. As at the date of this report, the Board comprises
nine directors, of whom six are males and three are females. Three are
independent non-executive Directors, thereby promoting critical review
and control of the management process. The Board is also characterised
by significant diversity, whether considered in terms of gender, nationality,
professional background and skills.
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Corporate Governance Functions

No corporate governance committee has been established. The Board is
responsible for performing the corporate governance functions such as
developing and reviewing the Company’s policies, practices on corporate
governance, reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, reviewing
and monitoring the Company's policies and practices in compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, reviewing the Company's compliance with
the Corporate Governance Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

Directors’ Responsibility in Respect of
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge that they are responsible for overseeing the
preparation of the financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs and results of the Group. In doing so, the Directors opted
for suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently and used
accounting estimates as appropriate in the circumstances. With the assistance
of the accounting and finance staffs, the Directors ensured that the
financial statements of the Group are prepared in accordance with statutory
requirements and appropriate financial reporting standards.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, in relation to their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on
pages 85 to 89.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk management and
internal control system of the Group, and an effective risk management
and internal control system enhances the Group's ability in achieving
business objectives, safeguarding assets, complying with applicable laws
and regulations and contributes to the effectiveness and efficiency of its
operations. As such, the Group's internal control procedures include a
comprehensive budgeting, information reporting and performance monitoring
system. The Audit Committee reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal audit function and the Group's risk management and internal control
system annually, covering all key control, including financial, operational
and compliance. The examination consisted of enquiry, discussion and
validation through observation and inspection (if necessary). The result of
review will be reported to the Board and some measures would be proposed
if there is any area for improvement. The Board has conducted reviews of
the risk management and internal control systems and is satisfied with the
effectiveness and adequacy of the risk management and internal control
system of the Group during the reporting period.
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The Company regulates the handling and propagation of inside information
according to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” published
by the Securities and Futures Commission and as indicated in the corporate
responsibility policy and various affiliate proceedings to ensure inside
information remains confidential until the disclosure of such information is
appropriately approved, and the propagation of such information is efficiently
and consistently made. The Company regularly reminds the Directors and
employees about the due compliance with all policies regarding the inside
information with the latest regulatory updates.

Auditors’ Remuneration
For the year ended 31 December 2017, the total fees paid/payable in respect

ARAREEF P EEBERZRERMNIA
BHEWERES I REXEARKRERERRRE
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B
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BE2017F12A3B IEFE - slAKREINEZH

of services provided by the Group's external auditors are set out below: EMFTiR RIS AT FEN 2 B R ES| T -
Services rendered FRZ AR Fees paid/payable
e ENER

RMB'000

ARETT

Audit and review services Fat REMRG 2,650

Remuneration of Senior Management SEAEEN LR

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the remuneration of the senior  &Z2017F12A3NBILFE - aREREKEH

management members is set out by band as follows:

FrERAA R T

Band of remuneration (HK$) HAR (BT) Number of person
N
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7C 21,500,000/ 7T 2

Company Secretary

Ms. To Yee Man, who had been the company secretary of the Company,
resigned from the position on 1 February 2018. Mr. Lam Wai Tsang was
appointed as the company secretary of the Company to fill the vacancy on
the same day. Both of them have complied with the relevant professional
training requirement for company secretary under Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules.

Shareholders’ Rights

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders of the Company and the Board.
An AGM of the Company shall be held each year at the place as may be
determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other than an AGM, shall be
called an extraordinary general meeting ("EGM”).
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Any one or more members holding at the date of the deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary of the Company, to require an EGM to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within 2 months after
the deposit of such requisition.

The written requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, be
signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposited to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company at the Company’s principal
place of business at Room 1902, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak
Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong, and such may
consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more
requisitionists.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch share registrars
in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the company secretary of the Company will ask the Board
to convene an EGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the
statutory requirements to all the registered members. On the contrary,
if the request has been verified to not be in order, the shareholders
will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, an EGM will not be
convened as requested. If within 21 days from the date of the deposit of
the requisition the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s), may convene a meeting in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

The notice period to be given to all the registered members for
consideration of the proposal raised by the requisitionist(s) concerned
at the EGM varies according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

- Atleast 21 clear days' notice (and not less than 10 clear business
days) if the proposal constitutes a special resolution of the
Company in EGM,;

- Atleast 14 clear days’ notice (and not less than 10 clear business
days) for proposal of all other EGMs.
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2. Right to Put Enquiries to the Board
Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All enquiries
shall be in writing and sent by post to the principal place of business of
the Company in Hong Kong for the attention of the company secretary.

3. Right to Put Forward Proposals at General
Meetings
There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2011 Revision). However, shareholders are requested
to follow Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association for
including a resolution at an EGM. The requirements and procedures
are set out above. Pursuant to Article 85 of the Company'’s Articles
of Association, no person other than a director retiring at a meeting
shall, unless recommended by the directors for election, be eligible for
appointment as a director at any general meeting unless a notice signed
by a member (other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to
attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of his
intention to propose such person for election and also a notice signed
by the person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have
been lodged at the head office or at the registration office provided
that the minimum length of the period, during which such notice(s) are
given, shall be at least 7 days and that (if the notices are submitted after
the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election) the period for lodging of such notice(s) shall commence on the
day after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of
such general meeting. The written notice must state that person’s
biographical details as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules. The
procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose a person for
election as director is posted on the Company’s website.

Investors Relations

The Company has maintained a continuing dialogue with the Company'’s
shareholders and investors through various channels, including, among
others, the Company’s interim reports, notices, announcements and the
Company'’s website at www.vastiud.com. The Company also holds press
conferences from time to time at which the Executive Directors and senior
management of the Group are available to answer questions regarding the
Group's business and performance.

Change in Constitutional Documents
For the year ended 31 December 2017, there had been no change to the
Company's memorandum and articles of association.
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The Board is pleased to present its report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017.

Principal Activities and Analysis of Operations
The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of
the Group are the provision of services in the planning, development and
operation of large-scale industrial towns in China.

Business Review and Performance

A fair review of the business of the Group and a discussion and analysis of
the Group's performance during the year and the material factors underlying
its results and financial position as required by schedule 5 to the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) are included in
the Chairman'’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis sections
from pages 6 to 11 and pages 12 to 56 of this report, respectively. The
future development of the Group'’s business is discussed in the Chairman’s
Statement from pages 6 to 11 of this report. The Chairman’s Statement and
the Management Discussion and Analysis section form part of this Directors’
Report.

Results

Results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
page 90.

Dividends

The Board has proposed to recommend the payment of a dividend of
HKDO.25 per share in cash to the shareholders of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2017, representing a total payment of approximately
HKD409,410,250. The annual dividend is subject to approval of the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
proposed to be held on 21 June 2018.

Upon shareholders’ approval to be obtained at the AGM, the annual dividend
will be payable on or around 11 July 2018 to the shareholders of the Company
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company at the
close of business on 26 June 2018.
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Closure of Register of Members and Record
Date

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 15 June 2018
to 21 June 2018, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares of the Company will be registered, for the purpose of ascertaining
shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers of shares of the Company
accompanied by the relevant share certificates and appropriate transfer
forms must be lodged for registration with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 14 June 2018.

In order to qualify for the entitlement of the annual dividend, all transfers
of shares of the Company accompanied by the relevant share certificates
and appropriate transfer forms must be lodged for registration with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen'’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 26
June 2018.

Five Year Financial Summary
Five year financial summary of the Group is set out on page 220.

Tax Relief and Exemption
The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

Investment Properties
Details of the movements in investment properties of the Group are set out in
note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

Borrowings and Capitalization of Interests
Details of borrowings are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements. Details of the Group’s capitalized interest expenses and other
borrowing costs during the year under review are set out in note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Convertible Bonds and Notes

On 23 December 2015, the Company entered into the Subscription
Agreement with Goldmark Success Ltd. (the “Subscriber”) and other parties,
pursuant to which the Subscriber has conditionally agreed to subscribe
for, and the Company has conditionally agreed to issue, the three-year
term 6% convertible bonds in the principal amount of US$50,000,000 (the
“Convertible Bonds”) and the three-year term 12% notes in the principal
amount of US$50,000,000 (the “Notes”)(the “Subscription”). The Convertible
Bonds and the Notes were secured by the pledge of equity interests in
certain subsidiaries of the Company and guaranteed by Mr. Wang Jianjun
(the executive Director and chairman of the Board) and Ms. Zhao Ying (the
non-executive Director and controlling shareholder of the Company).

Completion of the Subscription took place on 30 December 2015 and the
Convertible Bonds and Notes were issued to the Subscriber on the same day.
Holders of the Convertible Bonds have the right at any time during the term
of the Convertible Bonds requiring the Company to convert all or any part of
the principal amount outstanding under the Convertible Bonds into Shares of
the Company at the initial conversion price of HK$3.1 per Share, subject to
adjustments according to terms of the agreement.

Details of the Group's Convertible Bonds and Notes are set out in note 29 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital

Movements in the share capital of the Company during the year under review
and as at 31 December 2017 are set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Share Premium and Reserves

Movements in the share premium and reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year under review are set out on page 93 in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and in note 43 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves
The Company’s total distributable reserves as at 31 December 2017
amounted to RMB550,479,000.
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Contingent Liabilities

The Group provided guarantees to banks and non-financial institutions which
granted mortgage loans to certain purchasers of the Group's properties.
As at 31 December 2017, such mortgage loan guarantees amounted to
RMB1,189.3 million compared to RMB968.2 million as at 31 December 2016.
Such guarantees would be released upon the earlier of: (i) the transfer of
the relevant building ownership certificates to the purchasers; or (ii) the
satisfaction of obligations under the mortgage loans by the purchasers.

Pledge of Assets

Certain assets of the Group have been pledged to the banks, trust fund
companies and non-financial institutions to secure certain loans and banking
facilities granted to the Group. For details, please refer to note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements in this report.

The Convertible Bonds and the Notes are jointly guaranteed by the Ultimate
Controlling Shareholders and secured by the pledge of entire equity interest
of Shing Cheong Holdings, China Vast International, King Billion and Sheng Shi
International.

Significant Investments, Acquisitions and
Disposals

The Group did not make any material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries
and associated companies and significant investments during the year ended
31 December 2017.

Major Suppliers and Customers

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the percentages of purchases
from the Group’s largest supplier and the five largest suppliers were 22.1%
and 52.4%, respectively. The percentages of sales attributable to the Group’s
largest customer and the five largest customers were 28.5% and 80.5%,
respectively.

As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors, their close associates,
nor the substantial shareholders had any interest in the five largest customers
and suppliers of the Group.

REEE

REBRBITRIERITERABBER T AERET
MEBRNIZIBER » MZERITRIERITER
HEERIER - R2017612A318 @ 2 SRiBE
FERBARE1893BE T M20165F12A
NBRAARBIS2EETT - ZSERENT
P ERE T ARRER « ()R EREERH
BEAARER  ()ERBTIRIBERIETH

BER -

EEEH
AEEETEECEMTRIT - FRESATR
HRITEBIEN - (EAREBEENE TERR
RITRMAHIET - BRI ERLHARE NEA
B SRR A 28 -

FIEEIRE 5 B RIRG S AT AR AT HE(R - A
ERWBEER - PERHFER - KHARETE
B2 BRI AR ©

EXARE - WBERHE

BE2017F12A3NBIEFE - ARELEAETH
BARRBERRMEAEAMBLESESE 5
EAEREARE -

TREREBRRER
HE017F12A31AILER - AEBEREBAL
R R B AR ORI E B LS R1522.1%
52.4% - AEBEBARP RAATP i #E
S5 L5 R 528.5%280.5% °

RESHAA MEES  RFRETBHEALHE
ERRNRAEERARER LB T ESEM

i -

B R R A TR EYR AR A 7 China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited



Director's Report

EEEHRS

Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
RMB2,000,000 (2016: nil).

Remuneration Policy and Retirement Benefits
of the Group

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a total of 1,085 employees (31
December 2016: 917 employees). The Group provides employees with
competitive remuneration and benefits, and the remuneration policy will be
reviewed on a regular basis based on the performance and contribution of
the employees and the industry remuneration level. In addition, the Group
also provides various training courses to enhance the employees” skills and
capabilities in all aspects.

Details of the Group's the retirement benefit plans are set out in note 37 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) pursuant to
a resolution passed on 21 July 2015 which will be valid for 10 years from the
adoption date for the primary purpose of providing incentives to Directors
and eligible employees as incentives or rewards for their contribution or
potential contribution to the development and the growth of the Group.

Under the Scheme, the Company may grant to eligible employees including
Directors, employees, consultants, business partners or advisers, to
subscribe for shares in the Company. Under the rules of the Scheme, the
Board has discretion to set a minimum period for which a share option has
to be held before it can be exercised. Such discretion allows the Board to
provide incentives to grantees to remain employed with the Group during
the minimum period and thereby enabling the Group to benefit from the
continued services of such grantees during such period. This discretion,
coupled with the power of the Board to impose any performance target as it
considers appropriate before any share option can be exercised, enables the
Group to incentivise the grantees. Subject to the Listing Rules, the Board also
has discretion in determining the subscription price in respect of any share
option.

The total number of Shares that may fall to be allotted and issued under the
Scheme after the resolution regarding the adoption of the Scheme is passed
on 21 July 2015 were 163,764,100 shares, representing 10% of the total
number of shares in issue at the date on which the Scheme as adopted.

On 28 July 2015, 90,750,000 share options to subscribe for up to a total of
90,750,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company were granted
to certain individuals under the Scheme. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 28 July 2015.

As at 31 December 2017, the number of shares in respect of which options
remained outstanding under the Scheme was 62,550,000, and the remaining
life of the scheme is approximately 7 years and 7 months.
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The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme during the

VAN i B A AN S E A a% AT &) T M ARTTE -

year:
Price of Company's
Number of share options shares
RAEESE ERARBIRE
Date of Exercise Exercise
At1 At 31 grant of priceof  period of
January Granted Lapsed  December share share share
Name or category 2017 during during 2017 options options option At grant At exercise
of participant R2017%  theyear  theyear  R2017% R R R EE R A3 HE date date
SMEHEERER 1818 REARE RERXXK 128318 REAH e IS RREAE  ROEAH
HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT
Executive directors
YTES
Yang Yun 4,500,000 - - 4,500,000 28-Jul-2015 3.02 Note 1 2.80 N/A
BR 20158 i3l NEA
7H288
Wang Yagang 4,500,000 - - 4,500,000  28-Jul-2015 3.02 Note 1 2.80 N/A
T A 20155 Al ~Em
7R288
Huang Peikun 4,500,000 - - 4,500,000 28-Jul-2015 302 Note 1 2.80 N/A
HiEH 20155 i TR
7R288
13,500,000 - - 13,500,000
Other employees and 58,500,000 - (9,450,000 49,050,000  28-Jul-2015 302 Note 1 2.80 N/A
those who have 2015%F il TR
contributed or may 7H288
contribute to the Group
HitEEREERAHHARE
EHERNAL
72,000,000 - (9,450,000 62,550,000
Note 1: One-third of which are exercisable during the periods from 28 July 2016 to 31 MEET 0 =9z — B HiREZAR 201657 A28 H 22019

July 2019, from 28 July 2017 to 31 July 2019 and from 28 July 2018 to 31 July

2019, respectively.

Details of the Group's Share Option Scheme are set out in note 38 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the period.

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2017 and
up to the date of this report were:

Position
Executive Director, Chairman of

the Board and President of the Company
Executive Director

Directors
Wang Jianjun

Chen Lianggiu (resigned
on 17 March 2017)

Executive Director and Vice President
Executive Director and Vice President
Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer
Executive Director

Yang Yun
Wang Yagang
Huang Peikun
Wang Wei (appointed
on 10 November 2017)
Zhao Ying
Zhang Xiaomei (resigned
on 10 November 2017)
Wei Yu (resigned
on 10 November 2017)
Wong Wing Kuen, Albert
Hsieh Yafang (appointed
on 10 November 2017)
Wang Yijiang (appointed
on 10 November 2017)

Non-Executive Director
Independent Non-executive Director

Independent Non-executive Director

Independent Non-executive Director
Independent Non-executive Director

Independent Non-executive Director

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set out
on pages 57 to 61. Upon specific enquiry by the Company, there has been no
change in the information of the Directors required to be disclosed pursuant
to Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules since the Company's last published annual
report.

All Directors are appointed for a specific term of three years which may be
extended as each and the Company may agree, subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting ("“AGM") in accordance
with the articles of association of the Company. Article 84 of the articles of
association of the Company provides that at each AGM, one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to one-third) shall retire from office by rotation, provided that
every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract with any member of the Group which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without the payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Significant Contracts
Save as disclosed in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements, no
contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries was a party and in
which any Director or Controlling Shareholder of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the financial
year or at any time during the financial year under review.
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Directors’ Rights to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year under review,
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement that
would enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate, and none of the Directors or any of their spouses or children
under the age of 18, were granted any right to subscribe for the equity or
debt securities of the Company or any other body corporate or had exercised
any such right.

Disclosure of Interests

Directors

As at 31 December 2017, the interest or short positions of the directors or
the chief executive of the Company in the Shares or underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in the ordinary Shares:

Name of Director Nature of interest
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RE BRI E
Approximate
Number of percentage of

securities held shareholding

1ERRRE
EEnE EEME iR 5 E BHRED
Ms. Zhao Ying (Note 1) Interest in a controlled corporation 1,129,107,664 68.95%
rEREA - (FIEET) R EE R
Mr. Wang Jianjun (Note 2) Interest of spouse 1,129,107,664 68.95%
TEEEEMT2) [
Mr. Huang Peikun Beneficial owner 20,000 00.00%

EIFE L BEnEE A
Notes:

(1) Ms. Zhao Ying is the sole shareholder of Profit East Limited and is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Profit East Limited.

(2 Mr. Wang Jianjun, the spouse of Ms. Zhao Ying, is deemed to be interested in all
the Shares in which Ms. Zhao Ying is interested.

Saved as disclosed above and in the sub-section headed "Share Option
Scheme" above, so far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors or
chief executives had registered an interest or short position in any Share or
underlying Shares of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant
t0 Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified.
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Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2017, the interests of relevant persons (other than a
Director or chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the Shares or the underlying shares, as recorded in the register

FERR

R2017%F12A318 * HBEAL(KRRIESHE
BITHABBRIN R D AR R DR AR E
BE N BEEDIEIB6IEBFE R E L MATL 8

required to be kept under Section 336 of SFO, were as follows: RS SABINT ¢
Long positions in the ordinary Shares: REBBRALTE
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name of shareholder Nature of interest securities held shareholding
1H IR HE
IR ERE ERME 58 E BHEDL
Profit East Limited Beneficial Owner 1,129,107,664 68.95%
FIRBRAT Ema A
Mr. Wang Wei (Note 1) Interest in a controlled Corporation 163,600,336 9.99%
F A (R g EE R
Shenzhen Minde Holding Development Limited* Interest in a controlled Corporation
(Note 1) 163,600,336 9.99%
YR EERERER AR (HE) ZiEHEE R
SF Holding (Group) Company Limited* (Note 1) Interest in a controlled Corporation 163,600,336 9.99%
B Rk (SR @) Bt B IR A E (FEET) SRl EE R R
SF Holding Limited (Note 1) Interest in a controlled Corporation 163,600,336 9.99%
By i A BR A Jl* (i EET) ZiEHEE R
Celestial Ocean Investments Limited (Note 1) Beneficial Owner 163,600,336 9.99%
KBEEERAR (D) EmEEA
China Orient Asset Management Corporation Interest in a controlled Corporation
(Note 2) 125,000,000 7.63%
FERFEEEEERAT(MMTE2) ZiEgEE R
Dong Yin Development (Holdings) Limited (Note 2)  Interest in a controlled Corporation 125,000,000 7.63%
RIRERE(ER)BRA A (H7E2) PG EE R
Wise Leader Assets Ltd. (Note 2) Interest in a controlled Corporation 125,000,000 7.63%
Wise Leader Assets Ltd.(FizE2) RS EE R
China Orient Asset Management (International) Interest in a controlled Corporation
Holding Limited (Note 2) 125,000,000 7.63%
FEIR T EEEE (BB ZERERA R (M) RiEHEE S
China Orient International Asset Management Interest in a controlled Corporation
Limited (Note 2) 125,000,000 7.63%
FERSEREETEBRAR (M) SR lEE R
China Orient Alternative Investment Fund (Note 2)  Interest in a controlled Corporation 125,000,000 7.63%
FEIR 7 REREES*(M13E2) ZiEHEE R
Goldmark Success Ltd. (Note 2) Beneficial Owner 125,000,000 7.63%

Goldmark Success Ltd. (Fiz¥2)

EmEAA

*  For identification only

* GRS
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Notes:

Celestial Ocean Investments Limited was directly interested in 163,600,336
shares of the Company as at 31 December 2017. Celestial Ocean Investments
Limited was directly wholly-owned by SF Holding Limited, which was, in turn,
directly wholly-owned by SF Holding (Group) Company Limited. SF Holding
(Group) Company Limited was owned as to 68.4% by Shenzhen Minde Holding
Development Limited, which was, in turn, owned as to 99.9% by Mr. Wang Wei.
Therefore, each of SF Holding Limited, SF Holding (Group) Company Limited,
Shenzhen Minde Holding Development Limited and Mr. Wang Wei was deemed
to be interested in the 163,600,336 Shares in which Celestial Ocean Investments
Limited was interested.

Goldmark Success Ltd., the subscriber of the Convertible Bonds issued by the
Company on 30 December 2015, was directly interested in 125,000,000 shares
of the Company as at 31 December 2017 (the number of shares involved will
be affected by the conversion price which is subject to adjustments according
to terms of the agreement). Goldmark Success Ltd. was owned as to 45% by
China Orient Alternative Investment Fund and was controlled by China Orient
Alternative Investment Fund, which was, in turn, directly wholly-owned by China
Orient International Asset Management Limited. China Orient International Asset
Management Limited is directly wholly-owned by China Orient Asset Management
(International) Holding Limited. China Orient Asset Management (International)
Holding Limited was owned as to 50% by Wise Leader Assets Ltd. and 50% by
Dong Yin Development (Holdings) Limited and Wise Leader Assets Ltd. was, in
turn, also directly wholly-owned by Dong Yin Development (Holdings) Limited,
which was directly wholly-owned by China Orient Asset Management Corporation.
Therefore, each of China Orient Alternative Investment Fund, China Orient Asset
Management (International) Holding Limited, Wise Leader Assets Ltd., Dong Yin
Development (Holdings) Limited and China Orient Asset Management Corporation
was deemed to be interested in the 125,000,000 Shares in which Goldmark
Success Ltd. was interested.

Saved as disclosed above, so far as the directors are aware, no other persons
had registered an interest or short position in any Shares or underlying shares
of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified.
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Competing Interests

During the year ended 31 December 2017, none of the Directors is considered
to have an interest in any business which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

Ms. Zhao Ying and Profit East Limited, the controlling shareholders of the
Company (the “Controlling Shareholders”), have entered into a deed of non-
competition in favour of the Company on 6 August 2014 (the “Deed of Non-
competition”). Details of the Deed of Non-Competition have been set out in
the prospectus of the Company dated 13 August 2014. There has been no
change to the terms of the Deed of Non-competition for the year ended 31
December 2017.

During the reporting period, no written notice of any New Opportunity
(as defined in the Deed of Non-competition) had been received by the
Company. The Company has received confirmations on compliance with
their undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition from the Controlling
Shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2017 (the “Confirmation”).
Upon receiving the Confirmation, the independent non-executive Directors
of the Company have reviewed the same as part of the annual review
process. In view of the above, the independent non-executive Directors have
confirmed that, as far as they can ascertain, there is no breach by any of the
Controlling Shareholders of the non-competition undertakings in the Deed of
Non-competition given by them.

Loan Agreements with Covenants relating
to Specific Performance of the Controlling
Shareholders

Pursuant to the terms of the Convertible Bonds and the Notes issued by the
Company on 30 December 2015, Ms. Zhao Ying and Profit East Limited, being
the Controlling Shareholders of the Company, have undertaken to, so long
as any part of the Convertible Bonds or the Notes is outstanding, maintain an
aggregate beneficial ownership (directly or indirectly) of not less than 51% in
the issued share capital of the Company except as a result of the conversion
of the Convertible Bonds. A breach of such covenant may constitute an event
of default pursuant to the terms of the Convertible Bonds and the Notes.

The above requirements as to the maintenance of control result in the
disclosure obligation under Rule 13.18 of the Listing Rules.
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Connected Transactions and Related Party
Transactions

On 29 December 2016, the controlling shareholder of the Company, Profit
East Limited, provided an unsecured loan of HK$50,000,000 to the Company
at an interest rate of 8% per annum for a term of one year. As the loan was
unsecured and conducted on normal commercial terms or better to the
Group, the loan was fully exempt pursuant to Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules.

On 3 July 2017 and 28 December 2017, Profit East Limited has provided
unsecured loans of HK$220,000,000 and HK$40,000,000, respectively, to the
Company at an interest rate of 8% per annum for a term of one year. As the
loans are unsecured and conducted on normal commercial terms or better
to the Group, the loans are fully exempt pursuant to Rule 14A.90 of the
Listing Rules. Save as disclosed above, none of the related party transactions
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and there was no connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction of the Group that need to be
disclosed pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group in the
normal course of business are set out in Note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Directors (including all the independent non-executive Directors) have
confirmed that the connected transactions disclosed above are on normal
commercial terms and their respective terms are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. The Company
has complied with all the reporting, announcement and other applicable
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the
connected transactions disclosed above.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the Period.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles of association
of the Company or the laws of Cayman Islands, the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated, and there is no restriction against such rights
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.
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Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Articles of Association provide that the Directors are entitled to be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain in or about the execution
of their duty in their respective offices, provided that this indemnity shall not
extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach
to such Director. The Company has purchased and maintained Directors’
liability insurance during the year under review, which provides appropriate
coverage for the Directors.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Company is committed to supporting environmental sustainability. The
Company encourages environmental protection and adheres to the principle
of recycling and reducing, including encouraging double-sided printing and
copying, setting up recycling bins, promoting using recycled paper and
reducing energy consumption by switching off idle lightings and electrical
appliance. The Company will review its environmental practices from time
to time and will consider implementing further eco-friendly measures in the
Group's business operation. The Company will publish its environmental,
social and governance report on an annual basis in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands with its shares listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The
Group's subsidiaries are incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, Hong Kong
and China. The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Group’s
subsidiaries in China while the Group also has a corporate and administrative
office in Hong Kong. Our establishments and operations accordingly shall
comply with relevant laws and regulations in the Cayman Islands, the British
Virgin Islands, China and Hong Kong. During the year under review, the
Company was not aware of any non-compliance with any relevant laws and
regulations that had a significant impact on the Group.

Corporate Governance Practices
The Company is committed to the principles of corporate governance and
corporate responsibility consistent with prudent management. The Board has
adopted the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules and the Model Code as the guidelines for the Directors’ dealings
in the securities of the Company since the Listing Date.
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Sufficient Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, the Company
has maintained a sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s
issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

Use of Proceeds from the Global Offering

The net proceeds from the issue of new shares of the Company in its global
offering (after deducting the underwriting fees and related expenses, and
without taking into account the exercise of over-allotment option) amounted
to approximately HKD927.1 million. Up to 31 December 2017, the Group had
used all of the net proceeds in accordance with the proposed usage as set
out in the announcement of the Company dated 22 August 2014 and details
can be referred to the prospectus of the Company dated 13 August 2014.

Auditors

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017
have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, who will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for reappointment, at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Jianjun
Chairman

29 March 2018, Hong Kong
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Independent Auditor's Report
B E R E

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA VAST INDUSTRIAL URBAN DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Island with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China VAST
Industrial Urban Development Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 90 to
219, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2017,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by International Accounting Standard Board
("IASB") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
for the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter
BEREER

BARETEE

RIS B E R AR IR R IR B2 I -
ERMBABRNGA VBRRERAREX
MEE o ELEBRREE A BB HERS
HERAFEESHITROTL  YRELSE
ERITRUEBOER -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
RN ET RN ELEERETSE

Determination of fair values of the completed
investment properties
EERTIREVELTE

We identified the determination of fair values of the completed
investment properties, with the use of income capitalisation
method as a key audit matter because it requires an estimation
of future results, a set of assumptions and a determination of
key inputs, including: (i) term yields; (i) reversionary yields; and
(i) market unit rent of individual unit, which are judgmental.
Any changes to these inputs may have a significant impact
on the fair values. Management determined the fair values of
the Group’s completed investment properties at 31 December
2017 with the assistance of an independent qualified
professional valuer.
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Details of the completed investment properties and the related
key estimation uncertainty are set out in Note 16 and Note 4,
respectively, to the consolidated financial statements.

% TIREYEREEABRESTREENFE SSRGS M
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Our procedures in relation to the determination of fair value of
the completed investment properties with the use of income
capitalisation method included:
HRBABRNEE TR THREYEATENIRTEIE

. Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
method have been used of the independent qualified
professional valuer engaged by management;

o MABEBEZEMNBYAEREXEMHEMOBEIREE - 8
NREEIE

. Obtaining a copy of valuation report prepared by the
external valuer and discussing with the independent
qualified professional valuer together with our internal
valuation specialists to understand the basis of
determination of valuation; and

. %HMPMETEEW%%WEEW E% WEF I AERSE
EAER R MOAEHEFZETIR - AT RETRH

BENEE &

. With the assistance of our internal valuation specialists,
challenging the independent qualified professional valuer
on the methodologies and judgments used in valuing
the completed investment properties, such as (i) term
yields; (ii) reversionary vyields; and (iii) market unit rent
of individual unit and obtaining the evidence that the
independent qualified professional valuer used to support
the key inputs.

o TREHESRBENT - EEB LA BRBEMERMEIR
TIREYHEEITHEMREAN AR AE - B3E0)F B
=R (VEFWEE  Rii)ERIECNTISEMES - I
BECE N A BB E AR ISHRRE A BRI RANE
e
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Independent Auditor's Report
B E R E

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those
Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

Hi5 8
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Independent Auditor's Report
B E R E

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

J Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor's Report
B E R E

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements for the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s
report is Lung, Wing Hung David.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of
Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meBm Rk HMRS KSR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017412431 H 1 F/Z

Year ended 31 December

HBZ12A31BLEE
2017 2016
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
BitaE AR¥T T ARETT
Revenue WA 5 2,935,017 1,965,181
Cost of sales and services SHE RARFSAL A (968,941) (1,340,786)
Gross profit EF 1,966,076 624,395
Other income LN 7 126,968 458,171
Other expenses HfbZ 7 (2,234) (355)
Other gains and losses Eftblas &Eﬁﬁ 8 44,624 335,468
Selling and marketing expenses HE RTISTTIERX (52,461) (60,096)
Administrative expenses TR (250,736) (198,177)
Finance costs RLE A A 9 (334,448) (242,463)
(Loss) gain on fair value change of BEYMENTE
investment properties BE) (E18) Ik 16 (4,353) 3,673
Share of profits of associates B A AR E e 17 5,855 15,427
Share of losses of a joint venture AERNRIIREEE 18 (248) (28)
(Loss) gain on fair value change of derivative $74 817 T A AP EE 8 (E18)
Wz 29 (1,513) 5,302
Profit before tax KT B ) 10 1,497,530 941,317
Income tax expense FriSfif s 12 (416,696) (272,945)
Profit for the year IR S ) 1,080,834 668,372
Other comprehensive income Eﬂ’géﬁl&ﬁ
Items that will not be reclassified to TEeELHEE
profit or loss ik 3715 A
Gain on revaluation of owner-occupied DERBEDBRERENR
properties upon transfer to investment [EXER e
properties 16 - 32,054
Income tax effect Fristis & 12 = (8,013)
Other comprehensive income for the year, ARFEE M2 EULE -
net of income tax ERFTEH - 24,041
Total comprehensive income for KEZHEHWRZEEE
the year 1,080,834 692,413
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: KEGH(BL)DE
Owners of the Company VN/NCIETZE DN 1,081,809 668,986
Non-controlling interests DB E (975) (614)
1,080,834 668,372
Total comprehensive income (expense) for  AREZEUZ(BK)H
the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company N/NSIE 2= DN 1,081,809 693,027
Non-controlling interests DERRER (975) (614)
Total comprehensive income for RERHE KA
the year 1,080,834 692,413
Earnings per share TREF
Basic (RMB) EXR(ARE) 14 0.66 0.41
Diluted (RMB) HE(ARE) 14 0.61 0.41
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PRI R

AS at 31 December 2017 )R2017F 12931 H

At 31 December

M12A31H
2017 2016
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
bz ARET T ARETT
Non-current assets EMEEE
Prepaid lease payments EREERIE 56,304 -
Property, plant and equipment mE - WEREE 15 706,953 71,579
Investment properties "REYE 16 1,174,971 1,247,763
Interests in associates ﬂ kNS 0L 17 260,036 149,545
Interest in a joint venture HEE AR MR 18 59,724 59,972
Available-for-sale investment A ERE 19 3,300 3,300
Trade receivables B S REMGRIE 24 729,972 =
Prepayments and other receivables TEAf R H A FEUGR 25 24,609 =
Restricted bank deposits ZIR BRI TR 26 7,100 600,000
Deferred tax assets EEFRIBE E 20 83,836 37,419
3,106,805 2,169,583
Current assets MEEE
In progress land development FELMFRAEIER
arrangements 21 3,071,912 2,490,246
Amounts due from customers for KR P& AT HE
contract work 22 85,104 -
Properties under development for sale FERRDYME 23 2,268,332 1,347,781
Completed properties for sale FEDRITYE 832,258 1,006,058
Trade receivables £ \%J?ELBZMIE 24 781,000 943,160
Prepayments and other receivables T R E A FEGRIE 25 500,536 490,761
Amounts due from related parties FE UK BE RS 5 5RIE 40(a) 160,395 1,209
Income tax recoverable BEERE fR - 8,590
Restricted bank deposits ZIRERITER 26 790,853 161,495
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBR LIRS 26 2,117,217 2,707,529
10,607,607 9,156,829
Total assets BERE 13,714,412 11,326,412
Current liabilities mEAE
Trade and other payables Z 5 R EMERFIE 27 1,694,226 1,157,842
Advance from customers for properties ERIEHEMED
developed for sale BFEHAR 1,025,285 842,773
Amounts due to related parties FEASTRAES 5 30E 40(a) 300,844 67,036
Current tax liabilities MBBIEEE 428,809 506,253
Bank and other borrowings RITRAAMIETR 28 1,805,138 1,523,229
Convertible bonds and notes Al EEIRE AN ZEE 29 661,424 -
Derivative PTHEMBTE 29 59,554 -
5,975,280 4,097,133
Net current assets REBEEFE 4,632,327 5,059,696
Total assets less current liabilities BELERREAE 7,739,132 7,229,279
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

e B AR R ()

AS at 31 December 2017 )R2017F 12531 H

At 31 December

M12A31H
2017 2016
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
= ARET T ARETT
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER 28 3,262,578 3,087,437
Convertible bonds and notes AIEEIRE A TR 29 - 652,740
Derivative PTEMBIA 29 - 61,619
Deferred tax liabilities REFIEA F 20 81,541 42,602
Deferred income IRIEMA 87,778 -
3,431,897 3,844,398
Net assets BEFE 4,307,235 3,384,881
Capital and reserves AR R
Share capital %N 30 13,031 13,031
Reserves b 31 4,288,833 3,370,504
Equity attributable to owners of RATHEE ANEEHER
the Company 4,301,864 3,383,535
Non-controlling interests DY R L R 5,371 1,346
TOTAL EQUITY EmAeEs 4,307,235 3,384,881

EFEER201893 F29 A #tfE I 5 T g H R
FEOEBIENIAEMGRIMBINE - XHUATE
ERREFEHRZ

The consolidated financial statements on pages 90 to 219 were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 March 2018 and are
signed on its behalf by:

WANG Jianjun T2E
Director %

HUANG Peikun =ik
Director %
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREBER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 22017 12531 H IF F/E

Attributable to owners of the Company
BRRRARAES

Property Share
Share Share  Merger  Capital Statutory revaluation  option  Retained
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reseve  profits
nx  REHE
Ba  RBEE ARG EADE EROR  ERRE i RARAE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AR¥TR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARETR

Equity

attributable

to non-
controlling Total
Sub-total interest  equity

SURR
Nt ERER  EREE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR ARETR

At 1 January 2016 R20165151A 13031 860,542 48 28,062 257431 - 4751 1,657,458
Total comprehensive ERZENE

income (expense) (Bk)es

for the year - - - - - 24,00 - 668986
Appropriations to REVEERHBLE

statutory reserve = = = = 72809 = = (72,809
Dividend distrioution AERF - (139964) - - - - - -
Recognition of R ES A

equity-settied )

share-based payments - - - - - - 9,149 -

Capital contribution by DURRMTE
non-controlling interests - - = = - - - _

280133 - 280138

693,027 (614 692413

(139,964) - (139964)
9,149 = 9,149
= 1960 1960

At31December2016  12016%12831A 13031 720,578 8 28062 330,240 24,041 13900 2253635

338353 1346 3384881

Total comprehensive En2ENE

income (expense) (ks

for the year - - - - - - - 1,081,809 1,081,809 (975) 1,080,834
Approprigtions to statutory VAT 2SR

Teserve - - - - 6,313 - = (6,313) = = =
Dividend distrioution AR - (170,099) - - - - - - (170,099) - (170,099)
Recognition of TiEsEEz

equity-settied i

share-based payments - - - - - - 6,619 - 6,619 - 6,619
Capital contribution by PERENTE

non-controling interests - - - - - - - - - 5,000 5,000
At 31 December 2017 R2017512A31R 13031 550,479 48 28062 336,553 24,011 20519 3329131 4,301,864 5371 4,307,235
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 22017 12531 H IFF/E

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31B 1L EE
2017 2016
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
B 5 ARBT T ARETT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETEHMBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax BREL AT 1,497,530 941,317
Adjustments for: FATEIEMEFEE
Depreciation of property, ME - BERRETE
plant and equipment 12,982 5,198
Changes in fair value of investment BEMEANTEES
properties 4,353 (3,673)
Share of profits of associates FE(RE & A Al (5,855) (15,427)
Share of losses of a joint venture EEEEAREE 248 28
Exchange gains and losses BEE 5 Ween e 518 (43,461) 36,106
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BEK
plant and equipment BGLEoll€ (101) (312
Interest income ISV ON (98,248) (24,727)
Finance costs BEKA 334,448 242,463
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries BE TR - (368,618)
Loss on disposal of associates BREBENFEE = 1,375
Share-based payment expenses B FHER 6,619 9,149
Fair value change of derivative PTAEE T AN ES 1,513 (5,302)
Operating cash flows before movements EEASEYIN
in working capital KEREME 1,710,028 817,577
Increase in progress land development FE AR EM
arrangements (369,179) (593,527)
Increase in properties under FEEEDYEEN
development for sale (760,496) (49,357)
Decrease in completed properties for sale HFEEBRTIYERD 173,800 394,570
Increase in amounts due from RN R P& H TIEIREM
customers for contract work (85,104) -
Increase in trade receivables B 5 MW IRE N (518,267) (407,778)
Increase in prepayments and TafT e E At FE MR IR E b
other receivables (61,450) (6,559)
Increase in amounts due from related parties &1k BaEE 77 21183 o (2,086) -
Increase in trade and other payables & 5 R E M IR N 119,726 17,916
Increase in advance from customers for BRIEHEEVEN
properties developed for sale EPRIIEM 182,512 717,585
Decrease in hills payable EREERD = (15,000)
Increase in amounts due to related parties  JEAT RS 5 3R I8 A0 8,240 19,075
Increase in deferred income M AE N 87,778 -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
mEBEERER(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 22017 12531 H IF F/E

Year ended 31 December

BE12A310LLEE
2017 2016
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
Bt 3 AR%TT AREFT
Cash generated from operations KEEHMFHEE 485,502 894,502
Income tax and land appreciation tax paid SASETEH R IR ET (493,028) (115,032)
Net cash (used in) from operating activities ~ &&5E 8 (FTR) TSR 4 548 (7,526) 779,470
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETERE
ACTIVITIES RERE
Interest received EHFE 28,210 32,875
Payment for acquisition of prepaid BEEMNHEFES A
lease payments (56,304) -
Payments for acquisition of property, BEYE  BERE
plant and equipment BB AT RTRIE (210,695) (70,472)
Payment for acquisition of investment BRI B Y R FRIE
properties (38,969) (38,817)
Repayment of a loan receivable EBREKER 21,453 -
Loan receivable raised BRI ER = (40,030)
Payments for investment in associates BN AR A X TR FRIE (104,636) -
Payments for investment in a joint venture A& ENARA L HTRIE - (60,000)
Proceeds from disposal of associates B N RIS 5IE = 11,934
Proceeds from disposal of property, BREWE  BER
plant and equipment BEFTERIR 511 1,404
Restricted bank deposits withdrawn ERIAZ R BRI TF R 102,190 471,600
Restricted bank deposits placed B ARZRHIRITFR (138,648) (726,618)
Placement of deposits with original FEAREEBR=EANER
maturity over three months (706,000) -
Withdrawal of deposits with original REREHEB=EANGER
maturity over three months 299,500 -
Payments for purchase of other investments B & H it % &89 708 (2,598,000) (653,000)
Proceeds from disposal of other investments & & HAi R & S Fr15 08 2,601,562 653,278
Repayment of advance to related parties MR BB = 3,606
Loans to related parties MR T E R (152,769) (1,209)
Cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries HEMHBRARRERA 39 18,213 537,487
Net cash (used in) from investing activities BREAFB(FA)MBRSFE (934,382) 122,038
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

mERERERE)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 22017 12531 H IFF/E

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31B1LEE
2017 2016
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
Mt ARBT T ARETT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING BETHMERERE
ACTIVITIES
New bank borrowings raised MEARITHER 1,721,361 1,944,489
New other loans raised e AR 460,000 1,982,923
Repayment of bank borrowings RITIEFUBK (1,088,864) (1,280,425)
Repayment of other loans HAEFER (735,500) (1,269,703)
Loans received from related parties m AR T WEREY B X 224,285 44,857
Interests paid BERFLE (465,989) (539,979)
Dividend paid BEfIRE (170,099) (139,964)
Capital contribution by non-controlling DHIHAEE
shareholder 5,000 1,960
Net cash (used in) from financing activities BB EE(FTR) B R (49,806) 744,158
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH RERBESEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (R g hnEE (991,714) 1,645,666
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS MAIBNBEERBESEEY
AT 1 JANUARY 2,707,529 1,058,518
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNEFE R EFhR B (5,098) 3,345
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R12A3MBWNERER
AT 31 DECEMBER, represented by REeESEYNRTESGRES
bank balances and cash 1,710,717 2,707,529
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e G RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

General Information

China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited (the
"Company"’) was incorporated and registered as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands on 13 February 2014. The shares of the Company
have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with effect from 25 August 2014.
The addresses of the registered office and principal place of business
of the Company are Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The principal activity of the
Company is investment holding. Its subsidiaries are primarily engaged
in the land development, property development and property leasing.

The ultimate holding company and immediate holding company of the
Company is Profit East Limited (“Profit East”), a company which was
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) and is ultimately
controlled by Ms. Zhao Ying. Ms. Zhao Ying together with her husband,
Mr. Wang Jianjun, are collectively referred to as the Ultimate Controlling
Shareholders of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB which
is also the functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”), and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand ('000) unless otherwise indicated.

Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting

—REE

PR AREXETHEERBERAA(AR
Al DR2014F2 A13ABIBEHREHE A RNE
EHEESIMK I ABREBRAF -
ARRRIRG B 201448 A 25 A B1E & S B
AR GAARNE([EEAAT]) ERE -
RATOGEM IR & 2 & R a3
#k & Cricket Square Hutchins Drive PO Box
2681 Grand Cayman KY 1-1111 Cayman
Island ° RARHIEBZEBRIREER - H
MEBAREZENEL AR  MEZEX
MEMRE -

RRANREER AR RERERARR
MRBERAB(TFR]) - HRIZIREEBE
YRR ([HBRELHE])  mEREZLR
REEE o MEXERELKTIRERER
KRB B AR RRBIR o

RAMBREAARKEEY - ARBHER
RRRREMBLR (R AREE )R
RAME - R BHEPN  EREDHE
THBRAAERIIR TR -

F& A #T 5] )2 EAZ 5T Bl BR B 7%
EEA([ERMBERSE

Standards (“IFRSS") 28] 1)
Amendents to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective RAEE @G E MBI RS
for the current year ZAMER

The Group has applied the following amendments to IFRSs issued by
IASB for the first time in the current year:

Disclosure Initiative
Recognition of Deferred

Amendments to IAS 7
Amendments to IAS 12

REBRAFHIRERA T EHIASBEMA
B3 T

BIFRERTERZERT T HREF
REFHEAN2(EE] HRABHERE

Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses TR EER
#57
Amendments to IFRS 12 AS part of the Annual BREI TSRS #2014 2016 FJHIF
Improvements to IFRSS AER1285T JEEIRR Y 755 # 2
2014-2016 Cycle Rl 25034 69— 555

Except as described below, the application of the amendments to IFRSs
in the current year has had no material impact on the Group's financial
performance and positions for the current year and prior years and/or
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSS") (continued)

Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time in the
current year. The amendments require an entity to provide disclosures
that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. In addition, the amendments also require disclosures
on changes in financial assets if cash flows from those financial assets
were, or future cash flows will be included in cash flows from financing
activities.

Specially, the amendments require the following to be disclosed: (i)
changes from financing cash flows; (i) changes arising from obtaining
or losing control of subsidiaries or other businesses; (iii) the effect of
changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair value; and (v)
other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of these
items is provided in note 41. Consistent with the transition provisions of
the amendments, the Group has not disclosed comparative information
for the prior year. Apart from the additional disclosure in the note 41,
the application of these amendments has had no impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e RS R R AL (]

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

2. Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSS") (continued)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised IFRSS
that have been issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS 9
IFRS 15

IFRS 16
IFRS 17
IFRIC 22
IFRIC 23
Amendments to IFRS 2

Amendments to IFRS 4

Amendments to IFRS 9

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 19

Amendments to IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 40

Amendments to IFRSs

Financial Instruments?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments?

Leases?

Insurance Contract*

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions’

Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts?

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Ventures

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement?

As part of the Annual Improvements to
IFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle?

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures?2
Transfers of Investment Property’

Annual Improvements to IFRSs
Standards 2015-2017 Cycle2

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined
i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e RS R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017F 12531 H 1 F/E

2. Application of New and Revised 2.

International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSS") (continued)

Except for the new and amendments to IFRSs and Interpretations
mentioned below, the directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of all other new and amendments to IFRSs and
Interpretations will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 introduced new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general hedge
accounting and impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of IFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group are:

o all recognised financial assets that are within the scope of IFRS
9 are required to be subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and that have
contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured at ‘fair value
through other comprehensive income’ (“FVTOCI"). All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at their fair
value at the end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under IFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that
is not held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by
an acquirer in a business combination) in other comprehensive
income, with only dividend income generally recognised in profit
or loss;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e RS R R AL (]

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

2. Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSS") (continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

o with regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, IFRS 9 requires that the
amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that
is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Under IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement, the entire amount of the change
in the fair value of the financial liability designated as fair value
through profit or loss is presented in profit or loss; and

. in relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an
expected credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss
model under IAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires an
entity to account for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses
are recognised.

Based on an analysis of the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 December 2017, the directors of the
Company anticipate the following potential impact on initial application
of IFRS 9:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e RS R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017F 12531 H 1 F/E

2. Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSS") (continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)
Classification and measurement:

R EREETEERE BT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

Loan receivables carried at amortised cost as disclosed in notes
25: these are held within a business model whose objective is
to collect the contractual cash flow that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding. Accordingly,
these financial assets will continue to be subsequently measured
at amortised cost upon the application of IFRS 9;

Equity security classified as available-for-sale investment carried
at cost less impairment as disclosed in note 19: this security
qualified for designation as measured at FVTOCI under IFRS 9,
however, the Group plans not to elect the option for designating
this security to be measured at FVTOCI and will measure this
security at fair value with subsequent fair value gains and losses
to be recognised in profit or loss. Upon initial application of IFRS
9, fair value gains related to this security, which has no material
impact to the consolidated financial statements, representing the
differences between cost less impairment and fair value would be
adjusted to retained profits as at 1 January 2018;

Derivative designated as at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL") from the convertible bonds issued by the Group as
disclosed in note 29: this financial liability qualified for designation
as measured at FVTPL under IFRS 9, however, the amount of
change in the fair value of this financial liability that is attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability will be recognised in
other comprehensive income with the remaining fair value change
recognised in profit or loss. This is different from the current
accounting treatment under which the entire change in fair value
of the financial liability is recognised in profit or loss. The change
in fair value attributed to a change in credit risk of these financial
liability during the current year, which has no material impact to
the consolidated financial statements, would be recognised in
other comprehensive income were IFRS 9 applied; and

All other financial assets and financial liabilities will continue to be
measured on the same basis as are currently measured under IAS
39.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e RS R R AL (]

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

2. Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSS") (continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)
Impairment:

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the expected credit loss model of IFRS 9 will result
in earlier provision of credit losses which are not yet incurred in
relation to the Group's financial assets measured at amortised
costs and other items that subject to the impairment provisions
upon application of IFRS 9 by the Group.

Based on the assessment by the directors of the Company, if the
expected credit loss model were to be applied by the Group, the
accumulated amount of the impairment loss to be recognised
by the Group as at 1 January 2018 would be slightly increased
as compared to the accumulated amount recognised under IAS
39 mainly attributable to expected credit losses provision on
trade receivables and other receivables. Such further impairment
recognised under expected credit loss model would reduce the
opening retained profits and increase the deferred tax assets at 1
January 2018.
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Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSS") (continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 establishes a single comprehensive model for entities to use
in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers. IFRS
15 will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the
Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

. Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

. Step 3: Determine the transaction price

. Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

. Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation

B R R A TR EYR A R A 7 China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSS") (continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

uUnder IFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in IFRS 15
to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are
required by IFRS 15.

In April 2016, the IASB issued Clarifications to IFRS 15 in relation to
the identification of performance obligations, principal versus agent
considerations, as well as licensing application guidance.

The directors of the Company have assessed the impact on application
of IFRS 15 and did not anticipate a material impact on revenue arising
from land development arrangements and sales of properties. However,
application of IFRS 15 may have impact on the following areas:

Currently, the Group expensed off the costs associated with
obtaining the sales of properties contracts with customers. Under
the requirement of IFRS 15, incremental costs of obtaining a contract
is eligible for capitalisation as deferred contract costs amounting to
RMBS5,477,000, resulting an increase in opening retained profits at 1
January 2018.

For sales of properties, advance from customers is usually received 1
to 2 years prior to the delivery of the properties. Currently the Group
recognises the revenue from sales of properties by the contract
amounts when the criteria for revenue recognition could be fulfilled.
Under the requirement of IFRS 15, the directors of the Company believe
the contracts of properties sales, which require the customers to
prepay for the purchases more than 1 year prior to the delivery of the
properties, contain significant financing components. The adjustments
of advance from customers for the effects of time value of money
amounting to RMB125,568,000 will result a decrease in opening retained
profits as at 1 January 2018.

In addition, the application of IFRS 15 in the future may result in more
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The directors of
the Company intend to apply the limited retrospective method with
cumulative effect of initial application recognised in opening balance of
equity at 1 January 2018.
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Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSS") (continued)

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of lease
arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors and lessees.
IFRS 16 will supersede IAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

IFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of
whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer. Distinctions
of operating leases and finance leases are removed for lessee
accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement
of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease
payments, as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others.
For the classification of cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront
prepaid lease payments as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold
lands for owned use and those classified as investment properties while
other operating lease payments are presented as operating cash flows.
Upon application of IFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability
will be allocated into a principal and an interest portion which will be
presented as financing cash flows by the Group.
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Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSS") (continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Under IAS 17, the Group has already recognised prepaid lease payments
for leasehold lands where the Group is a lessee. The application
of IFRS 16 may result in potential changes in classification of these
assets depending on whether the Group presents right-of-use assets
separately or within the same line item at which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, IFRS 16 substantially carries forward
the lessor accounting requirements in IAS 17, and continues to require
a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or a finance
lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by IFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of RMB67,452,000 (31 December 2016: RMB76,576,000)
as disclosed in note 34. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon application
of IFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless they qualify
for low value or short-term leases.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may result changes
in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above.
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Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs issued by IASB. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO").

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for investment properties and certain
financial instruments which are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technigue. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of IAS 17 Leasing, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in 1AS 2 Inventories or value in use in I1AS 36 Impairment
of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

R EREETEERE BT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

3. Significant Accounting Policies continued) 3. EERHEEw

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly

or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies adopted are as follows:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its
subsidiaries). Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts

and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e RS R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017F 12531 H 1 F/E

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company loses control
of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Company gains control until the date when the Company

ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiary is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this

results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s

accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are

eliminated in full on combination.

Loss of control of subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i) derecognises the
assets (including any goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary at their
carrying amounts at the date when control is lost, (i) derecognises
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost (including any components of
other comprehensive income attributable to them), and (iii) recognises
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest, with any resulting difference being

recognised as a gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the Group.

R EREETEERE BT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

BEESHBERw®
EOEERE (&)

AR FIN RSN B A 7 SR KB A
T A ABE - 3R 5 B A m e
BIEAGE o ABTE - NENBEAR L E
BIRH B A IR A BB - B AD A
RHEE B REAR FEENE A RS
HEBIE - S ASAESERE A KS
FERN o

BaMBEibzEaREmraE—RABOER
REAWEBANDBER - HE TR A
HipfraWaE o iEe A RNEE AMDH
PR AN AR S W R T o

MEBARNMBERREETRIBEN MEH
B AEE ST RREREE SRR
_ﬁ ®

FARERLFMAE  AM ER W
A ZHERS RS (RALERE AT
H% 57 BTk A IR B S R RN -

REMEQRRES

AR K ENE DR A E IR - AR
REEGIEE BBV REEERRBZNS
RAMEE(BEEAHE)REE (DX
EEHIEE BB R A B QR ERAIE
it (BREERGEEBE2EKRENE
AR ED () ) O BRTEDEL + R (i) B o2 P R A
EBORTFEREAREERO RN FENE
B MEENEZERIR/LNEENEEIR
EHEER ©



Significant Accounting Policies (continueq)

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. The financial statements of associates and
joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture. Changes in net
assets of the associate/joint venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such changes
resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When the
Group's share of losses of an associate or a joint venture exceeds the
Group's interest in that associate or joint venture (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net
investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint
venture.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HRME(E)
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is
included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess
of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate
or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of
the Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate or
joint venture that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates
and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the Group and when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group's activities, as described below.

B R R A TR EYR A R A 7 China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Significant Accounting Policies (continueq)

Income from land development arrangements

For land development projects under collaboration arrangements with
local government authority, the Group is given the right to carry out
construction and preparation works in respect of land infrastructure
within certain districts. When the land plots are sold by the local
government authority to land buyers through public auction, tender
or listing, the Group is entitled to receive from the local government
authority a proportion of the proceeds from land sales.

The Group's share of the proceeds from the land development is
recognised upon completion of related construction works and when
the amount of income can be measured reliably, which occurs upon
sales of land plots by the local government authority. Accordingly, at
the time of the sales of land, proceeds entitled to be received from the
local government authority by the Group are recognised as income.

Revenue from construction contract with certain local government
authorities for land development is recognised by reference to the
recoverable costs incurred during the period plus an agreed cost-plus
margin.

The Group’s entitlement to additional income relating to these land
development activities in the form of marketing and promotional service
is recognised when such income become receivable in accordance with
the specific rate and basis set out in the relevant service agreements
entered into between the Group and the local government authorities.

Sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties in the ordinary course of business
is recognised when the respective properties have been completed
and delivered to the buyers. Deposits and prepayments received from
purchasers prior to meeting the above criteria for revenue recognition
are included in the consolidated statement of financial position under
current liabilities.

Operating lease income

Operating lease income from investment properties is recognised on
the straight-line basis over the lease term which is the non-cancellable
period for which the lessee has contracted to lease the properties.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
apportionment basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Construction contract

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably, revenue from cost plus contracts is recognised by reference
to the recoverable cost incurred during the period plus the fee earned,
measured by the proportion that cost incurred to date bear to the
estimated total costs of the contract.

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated
reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent of contract cost
incurred that it is possible will be recoverable. Contract costs are
recognised as expense in the period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract
revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is shown as
amounts due from customers for contract work. For contracts where
progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses, the surplus is shown as amounts due to
customers for contract work. Amount received before the related work
is performed are included in the consolidated statement of financial
position, as a liability, as advances received, if any. Amounts billed for
work performed but not yet paid by the customer are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position under trade receivables, if
any.

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continueq)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives and after taking
into account of their estimated residual value, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or
loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation (including properties under construction for such
pUrposes).

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values. All of the
Group’s property interests held under operating leases to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation purposes are classified and accounted for
as investment properties and are measured using the fair value model.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which they
arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the
investment properties under construction.

If any item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-
occupation, any difference between the carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment and associated prepaid lease payments and
the fair values of those items at the date of transfer is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in property revaluation
reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant
revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to retained profits.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or l0ss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Development cost of in progress land development arrangements
comprises the aggregate cost of development, materials and supplies,
capitalised staff costs, capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowing
funds during the period of construction and other costs directly
attributable to such in progress land development arrangements.

In progress land development arrangements is stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value takes into account
the Group's share of estimated proceeds derived from the sale of in
progress land development arrangements by the local government
authorities, less costs to completion and the costs to be incurred
in realising the revenue derived from the sale of in progress land
development arrangements based on prevailing market conditions.

Properties under development which are intended to be sold in the
ordinary course of business upon completion of development are
classified as current assets, and carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value takes into account the price
ultimately expected to be realised, less applicable variable selling
expenses and anticipated cost to completion. Costs include the related
land cost, development expenditure incurred and, where appropriate,
borrowing costs capitalised.

Properties under development for sale are transferred to completed
properties for sale upon completion.

Completed properties for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is determined based on prevailing
market conditions.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset. Other than investment
properties measured under fair value model, such costs are recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 3. EERHEEw

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

When the Group makes payments for a property interest which includes
both leasehold land and building elements, the Group assesses the
classification of each element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases in which case the entire property is accounted as
an operating leases. Specially, the entire consideration (including any
lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the leasehold land
and the building element in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element at initial
recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over the lease term on
a straight-line basis except for those that are classified and accounted
for as investment properties under the fair value model. When the
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the leasehold land and
building elements, the entire property is generally classified as if the
leasehold land is under finance lease.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than that entity’s functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional currency
at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are re-translated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the re-translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or 10ss
in the period in which they arise.

Payments to state-managed retirement benefits schemes are charged
as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date. Details regarding the determination of
the fair value of equity-settled share-based transactions are set out in
note 38 to these consolidated financial statements.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-
based payments without taking into consideration all non-market
vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share option
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest based
on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised
in share option reserve will be transferred to share capital and share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date
or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to retained
profits.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continueq)

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, interests in associates and
joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax liabilities for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the carrying
amounts of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted.

The presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continueq)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets
The Group's financial assets are classified into available-for-sale (“AFS”)
financial assets and loans and receivables.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated as
available-for-sale or are not classified as (a) loans and receivables, (b)
held-to-maturity investment or (c) financial assets at FVTPL.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

AFS financial assets (Continued)

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss
when the Group's right to receive the dividends is established.

AFS equity instruments that do not have quoted market price in an
active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of
each reporting period.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade receivables, other receivables, amounts due from related parties,
restricted bank deposits and bank balances and cash) are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment of financial
assets set out below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired when
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continueq)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment l0ss is
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial assets. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade and
other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017F 12531 H 1 F/E

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points,
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liabilities
are either held for trading or those designated as at FVTPL on initial
recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

. It has been acquired principally for the purpose of repurchasing it
in the near term; or

. On initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent

actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° It is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continueq)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with any gains
or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any interest paid on the
financial liability.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities of the Group including trade and other payables,
bank and other borrowings convertible bonds and notes and amounts
due to related parties are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue Costs.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.

A financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and not designated
as at fair value through profit or loss is recognised initially at its fair
value less transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of
the financial guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher of (i) the
amount determined in accordance with IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and (i) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised over the
guarantee period.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Convertible bonds and notes

A conversion option that will be settled other than by the exchange of
a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number
of the Company’s own equity instruments is a conversion option
derivative.

At the date of issue, both the debt component and derivative
components are recognised at fair value. In subsequent periods, the
debt component of the convertible bonds and notes is carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. The derivative
component is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible bonds and
notes are allocated to the debt and derivative components in proportion
to their relative fair values. Transaction costs relating to the debt
component are included in the carrying amount of the debt portion
and are amortised over the period of the convertible bonds and notes
using the effective interest method. Transaction costs relating to the
derivative component are charged to profit or loss immediately.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated as
separate derivative when they meet the definition of a derivative, their
risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continueq)

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or 10ss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss, expect for waiver of financial liabilities by Ultimate
Controlling Shareholders which is considered as deemed contribution.

When an existing financial liability’s terms are modified and such
modification results in the discounted present value of the cash flows
under the new terms including any fees paid net of any fees received is
at least 10 per cent different from the discounted present values of the
remaining cash flows of the original financial liability, it is accounted for
as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and a recognition
of a new financial liability with the difference, being the carrying
amount of the financial liability extinguished and the fair value of the
financial liability issued, recognised in profit or loss. If such modification
is not accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred
adjust the carrying amount of the liability and are amortised over the
remaining term of the modified liability.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

At the end of the reporting periods, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the assets belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate asserts are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment 10ss is
recognised as income immediately.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017F 12531 H 1 F/E
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Critical Accounting Judgments and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies
The following is the critical judgment, apart from those involving
estimations, that management has made in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in these consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the directors of the Company have reviewed the Group's investment
properties and concluded that the Group’s investment properties
are held under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time through rental income. Therefore, in determining
the Group's deferred taxation on investment properties, the directors
of the Company have determined the presumption that investment
properties measured using the fair value model are recovered through
sale is rebutted.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next twelve months.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HRME(E)
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Critical Accounting Judgments and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continueq)

Investment properties

Investment properties were stated at fair values determined by
management with the assistance of an independent qualified
professional valuer. The determination of the fair values of the
completed investment properties, with the use income capitalisation
method, involves an estimation of future result, a set of assumptions
and a determination of key inputs, including: (i) term vyields; (ii)
reversionary vyields, and (iii) market unit rent of individual unit, which
are judgemental. In relying on the valuation report, the directors of
the Company have exercised their judgment and are satisfied that
the assumptions used in the valuation are reflective of the current
market conditions. Changes to these assumptions would result in
changes in the fair values of the Group's investment properties and the
corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or loss reported in
profit or loss.

The carrying amount of investment properties as at 31 December
2017 was approximately RMB1,174,971,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB1,247,768,000). More details are set out in note 16.

Recoverability of trade receivables

Impairment on trade receivables is determined by management when
there is an objective evidence, e.g., it becoming probable that a debtor
will enter bankruptcy or is having significant financial difficulties.
When the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of trade receivables
was RMB1,510,972,000 (31 December 2016: RMB943,160,000). Further
details are set out in note 24.

Income tax expense

As at 31 December 2017, deferred tax assets of RMB83,836,000 (31
December 2016: RMB37,419,000) were recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position and deferred tax assets in respect
of certain tax losses of RMB115,390,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB57,720,000) were not recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
The realisation of the deferred tax assets mainly depends on whether
sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences will be available
in the future. In cases where the actual future profits generated are less
or more than expected, a reversal or future provision of deferred tax
assets may arise, which will be recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which such a reversal or further provision takes place.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

5. REVENUE 5. A
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue for the year ended AN RAEEEE2017F12A31BEFE
31 December 2017. B ADHT ©
Year ended 31 December
HBZE12A318LLEE
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARETT
Income arising from land FE T MFAZIEE KA
development arrangements 2,775,327 954,305
Revenue from the sales of properties YIS IHE e 122,850 989,716
Revenue from property leasing SELIEN=Al 36,840 21,160
2,935,017 1,965,181
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Segment Information

The executive directors of the Company are identified as the chief
operating decision maker (the “CODM") of the Group for the purposes
of resources allocation and performance assessment. The information
reported to the CODM for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment focuses specifically on respective businesses
of the Group. The Group’s operating and reportable segments are as
follows:

Land development - Land infrastructure development
Property development — Development and sale of properties
Property leasing — Lease of properties

Inter-segment sales are transacted with reference to the selling prices
used for sales made to third parties at the prevailing market price.

Segment revenue and results

Land Property
development  development
TR NERE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017F 12531 H 1 F/E

AEEE
ROBRERMIGLEEMS » A2 7
HITESFAAEENIELERESE
([CODM) ° 59 B & R AT (4 H 48 T 1A
FELERRERRONERFREPRA
SENSEER - AEENSEREES
IR

o

TR — T ER R ERE
YESEEIE —MEERNMHEE
MERE —HEME
DEEHELRANERITTERNE =7

HENEBETRS -

DA R FE
Property Segment
leasing total  Eliminations Total
NEHE AHAE AHHEE At

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARMTRT  ARBTR  ARETR

For the year ended #i1£2017%12A31A
31 December 2017 -3
Segment revenue Al
- External segment revenue —H g 2,775,321 122,850 36,840 2,935,017 = 2,935,017
-Inter-segment revenue (notea)  — ¥R DRI (Fitia) - - = = = =
Consolidated revenue Feka 2,775,327 122,850 36,840 2,935,017 - 2,935,017
Segment results NEEE 1,600,893 394 1,506 1,602,793 - 1,602,793
Unallocated profit or lossitems:  AAEFETELER :
Other income 00N 19,762
Other gains and losses EtaREE 48,092
Selling and marketing expenses HERTHTHERY (10,840)
Administrative expenses EY (94,927)
Loss on fair value change of ITESBTANT(E
derivative 28EE (1,513)
Finance costs RERK (65,837)
Profit before tax RBATRA 1,497,530
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

6. Segment Information (continued) 6. DEEE
Segment revenue and results (Continued) DEBUA R EEE ()
Land Property Property Segment
development  development leasing total Eliminations Total
i NEER NERE AEAH AREE At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  AREFTT  AREFn  ARETr  ARETT  ARETR
For the year ended B1£2016512A318
31 December 2016 LEE
Segment revenue AEHRA
- External segment revenue —HNIEIRA 954,305 989,716 21,160 1,965,181 - 1,965,181
- Inter-segment revenue (notea)  —HAABUA(Hizra) 7,546 - - 7,546 (7,546) -
Consolidated revenue FAKA 961,851 989,716 21,160 1972,727 (7,546) 1,965,181
Segment results PHEE 248,417 221,898 22,480 492,795 (7,546) 485,249

Unallocated profit or loss items: KA EAETIBLIER :

Other income 01 UN Mm9e
Other gains and losses Eftr e REE 330,006
Seling and marketing expenses & RFIR{THEMR (23,154)
Administrative expenses THEY (68,002)
Gain on fair value change of PTHEBIA

Cerivative NEEEEIE 5302

Profit before tax BRATRF 941,317

Note: BiEE -

a.  The amount represents intersegment sales between land development a. HESERRGELMRASPEYEN
segment and property development segment. Income from sales of land ENBZATNHEE - ERBNEERHS
plots under collaboration arrangements with the local government authority 55 b 1R B9 U B 8 5 W) S IR E AR B RR
were eliminated against the cost of properties under development for sale AT o
in which these income are derived.

The accounting policies of the operating and reportable segments KERARESIMERNNS TR RELZS
information are the same as the Group’s accounting policies described ARSI R M s 3P M A AN EEE PE R B B AR
in note 3 to these consolidated financial statements. Segment results A o DEPEBIEAPIPREIEELNS
represent the profit earned by each segment without allocation of FEERESDSMBEMNTE  8IFETF
certain items incurred for central management purpose, including Hi A ~ b - ez REE -
certain other income, other expenses, other gains and losses, selling MERMBTEEY  TERESZRTET
and marketing expenses, administrative expenses and gain (l0ss) on fair AEQNFEZFHWZF(ERE) - LARERD
value change of derivative. This is the measure reported to the CODM R DHBRIFTEMATEERLEREE
for the purposes of resources allocation and assessment of segment SREVIETE ©

performance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e RS R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017F 12531 H 1 F/E

6. Segment Information (continued) 6. DEBIE

Land Property Property
development development leasing Total
T i BAE MERR YERE &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T AR¥T T AR¥T T

As at 31 December 2017 B Z2017%12831H
Segment assets DEVEE 6,695,990 5,375,005 1,330,051 13,401,046
Inter-segment elimination A EREHEE (360,260)
Unallocated assets: RAOMEE -

Property, plant and equipment 4% - R 2R 405,005

Deferred tax assets EERIBE E 83,836

Prepayments and other T R E A FE YR IR

receivables 35,177

Amount due from related parties  F& Y BaRsE 77 2018 1,795

Bank balances and cash RITHEB RS 147,813
Total assets BEE 13,714,412
Segment liabilities HEEE 5,685,180 2,225,357 305,956 8,216,493
Inter-segment elimination A ERHEE (360,260)
Unallocated liabilities: RKOMMAE

Other payables HAb R FE 8,417

Amounts due to related parties &< BaR: T 208 295,644

Current tax liabilities mEHIEAE 428,809

Convertible Bonds and Notes ARG A R EE 661,424

Derivative PTHEMBIA 59,554

Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEAE 81,541

Borrowings B 15,555
Total liabilities BEE 9,407,177
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

6. Segment Information (continued) 6. DEEE
Segment assets and liabilities (continued) PEHEEMDBEBE
Land Property Property
development  development leasing Total
+ s BAZE VIR MERE &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT ARETT ARETT ARETT
As at 31 December 2016 B Z2016%F12831H
Segment assets DEEE 4,963,140 4,126,641 1,247,768 10,337,549
Inter-segment elimination 7 EBEHEH (326,853)
Unallocated assets: RAOMLEE :
Property, plant and equipment  ¥1¥ - BiE M RE 26,183
Deferred tax assets EEFRIBE E 37,419
Prepayments and other TE T R EAth fE Y R IE
receivables 59,689
Bank balances and cash WITER KIS 1,183,835
Income tax recoverable AT E TS 8,590
Total assets BEE 11,326,412
Segment liabilities AEEE 3,832,202 3,051,084 — 6,883,286
Inter-segment elimination 7 BRI HOH (326,853)
Unallocated liabilities: KolLafls
Other payables HAb R FE 59,751
Amounts due to related parties & BEEg 5 200E 62,133
Current tax liabilities mETIEAE 506,253
Convertible Bonds and Notes nEREAEREE 652,740
Derivative PTHEMBIA 61,619
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIBAGE 42,602
Total liabilities wEE 7,941,531
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e RS R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017F 12531 H 1 F/E

6. Segment Information (continue) 6.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments:

. Other than those incurred for central management purpose,
including certain property, plant and equipment, deferred tax
assets, certain prepayments and other receivables, income tax
recoverable and certain bank balances and cash, all other assets
are allocated to segment assets; and

. Other than those incurred for central management purpose,
including certain other payables, amounts due to related parties,
current tax liabilities, Convertible Bonds and Notes, derivative and
deferred tax liabilities, all other liabilities are allocated to segment
liabilities.

Year ended 31 December 2017
Amounts included in the measurement of segment profit or loss or

RIS BRANES BHEEBMS

BRhREEMELANEE(BESR
TYWE  BELERE  BREHESR
E - ATRMFRREMEKTIE -
AR EIFMSHEE TRITEHRRE
) MERMBEESEENBE
E R

BRrhREEMELANAGR(RES
THAMENFKA - & T RN B 7%
B ORBHAAE  UTEBREZEER
B TEMBTAMEERFHRE
B ERMBEIEENHE

& -

HBZE2017F12831BLLEE
HADBIERE S BEEH NS E

segment assets
Land Property Property Segment
development  development leasing total  Elimination  Unallocated ~ Consolidated
1R NERR NERE k) ik ES) aff
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARMTn  ARETn  ARETn  ARETn  AR%Tn  ARETx
Addition to non-current assets FRBEENHEN 9,982 279,957 2,970 292,909 - 355,857 648,766
Interests in associates REERANER 86,450 173,586 - 260,036 - - 260,036
Interestin a joint venture REELTNES 59,724 - - 59,724 - - 59,724
Interest income FEHA 147,774 4,720 il 152,585 (74,056) 19,719 98,248
Interest expense MEXH
- Charge to the profit or loss -85 268,611 - - 268,611 - 65,837 334,448
- Capitalisation —EXf 286,543 74,055 - 360,598 (74,056) - 286,542
Gain on disposal of property, RENE  FER
plant and equipment BLctolen 89 - - 89 - 12 101
Share of profits of associates [ =N ley 2,178 3,677 - 5,855 - - 5,855
Share of losses of a jointventure ~ ElGASATIEE (248) - - (248) - - (248)
Depreciation & 5,536 3,190 2,961 11,687 - 1,295 12,982
Change in fair value of investment &%
properties NTEEY = = (4,353) (4,353) - - (4,353)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e RS R R AL (]

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

6. Segment Information (continueq)
Other segment information (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2016

Amounts included in the measurement of segment profit or loss or

PTEHEE

Hih 2B @)
HBZE2016F12H831HILLEE
HADBIERK D BEETENSE

segment assets
Land Property Property Segment
development  development leasing total Elimination Unallocated  Consolidated
THFEE NELE NERE Ak H) =gl RO Al
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ABETR  ARETT ARETr  ARETr  ARETR  ARETH
Addition to non-current assets FREAEMEN 15,203 54,066 - 69,269 - 1,203 70472
Interests in associates REERAINER 5,351 93,194 - 149,545 - - 149,545
Interest in ajoint venture REEATMES 59972 - - 59972 - - 59972
Interest income A 100,666 22,680 - 123346 (72,408) 2.8% 5383
Interest expense MEXH
- Charge to the profit or loss =l 242463 - - 242,463 - - 242463
- Capitalisation -v:(d 215,865 72,406 - 288,271 (72,406) = 215,865
Gain on disposal of property, RENE BER
plant and equipment BlClolen 21 5 - 217 - 95 312
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries ~ BEMBA TRz - 368,618 - 368,618 - - 368,618
Share of profits of associates i nale 1610 13817 - 15,427 - = 15427
Share of losses of ajoint venture AL ATIER 2 - - 28 - = 3
Depreciation ik 2811 2,303 - 5,114 - 84 5,198
Change in fair valug of investment & %%
properties NTERE - - 3673 3673 - - 3673
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017F 12531 H 1 F/E

6. Segment Information (continued) 6. DEEE @
Information about major customers EREXEEFHNER
Revenue from customers individually contributing over 10% of the KAMBMERNREBRKAI0%A FHEFEH
Group's revenue is as follows: WALT :

Year ended 31 December

HZE12A31MHLEE
2017 2016
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT
Customer A2 EFEA2 834,887 N/ARE A
Customer B2 B2 551,273 N/ARE A
Customer C? KPC2 361,639 N/ARE A
Customer D2 X FD2 358,321 N/ARE A
Customer E2 BFE N/AFRE A1 596,942
2,106,120 596,942
Notes: Bisr
1. The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the Group’s 1. TR A RSB AT0%AT °
revenue.
2. Income arising from land development arrangements. 2. LFRBEEKA -
The Group's revenue from external customers by location of operations AREBRELREEEEEREE IS
of the relevant group entities is derived solely in Mainland China. Non- HINAEZEHIMAEREFRE AN » KRE
current assets of the Group by location of assets are all located in BB EE S BN IEREEER 2 A
Mainland China. TR B A, o
7. Other Income and Expenses 7. HWAMNEZH
Year ended 31 December
BE12A31MALEE
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBFT
Other income: EABUA -
Interest income on bank deposits RITIF A BHA 44,372 24,727
Interest income on trade receivables and B 5 [k L FEUGRIE
other receivables KB U A 49,545 29,109
Interest income on amounts due from a e — 2 BRE: 7 A
related party FEUA 4,331 -
Government grants (note a) BT 8 (Fd5Ea) 5,862 90,019
Disposal of land development rights (note b) & T3 B (MREh) - 305,000
Others Hih 22,858 9,316
126,968 458,171
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

7. Other Income and Expenses (continued) 7. HAWAMZE @
Year ended 31 December
HZE1283101LEE
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT
Other expenses: Hbz i :
Donations B (2,000) -
Others Hh (234) (355)
(2,234) (355)
Notes: BisE -
a.  The amounts mainly represented the grants from the local government a. ZeHIZERMZEZRRELERBEM

authority for contributions to certain development. AT EPPIEAS RO B ©

ZECHEIERHETXRRN TR
o WARECHEEBERMERE -

b. The amounts mainly represented the disposal of land development b.
rights within industrial town park, where the Group has the exclusive
development right.

8. Other Gains and Losses 8. HtthmRER
Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2017 2016
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARET T

Net gains and losses eI EES
Exchange gains (losses), net I 3 U es (182K) 43,461 (32,286)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 39) BEENBA R (MH7E39) - 368,618
Loss on disposal of associates EREHEARBE = (1,375)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and BEWE  BE&EE

equipment, net Eopedl e 101 312
Others Hit 1,062 199
44,624 335,468
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017F 12531 H 1 F/E

9. Finance Costs 9. BMEHRA
Year ended 31 December
HZE1283181LEE
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT
Interests on bank loans RITEFHFE (160,201) (105,227)
Interests on other loans HERFE (346,850) (254,077)
Interest on Convertible A ERES KRR
bonds and notes (note 29) B (M7E29) (103,300) (99,024)
Interests on related party loans A 5 B RRE (10,639) -
Total borrowing costs RNk (620,990) (458,328)
Less: Amount capitalised in progress land B S THFAEEEN
development arrangements BAR b &5 212,487 143,459
Amount capitalised in properties HEERRPYED
under development for sale B b2 74,055 72,406
(334,448) (242,463)
The weighted average capitalisation rate on funds borrowed generally is RENMBEFEHEREREERB RS
8.78% (2016: 8.66%) per annum for the current year. F8.78%(2016%F : 8.66%) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

10. Profit Before Tax

Profit before tax has been arrived at after charging (crediting):

10. BRBL AT & A

Year ended 31 December

BB ATE ARG (GEA) TEIBIRRIGH

HBZE12831HLEE
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTT ARETT
Directors’ emoluments EE=o00)
(including share-based payment expenses) (BIERGZAER) 12,001 11,948
Staff costs BIRA
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREMER 140,350 98,771
Contribution to retirement benefits scheme ROKEFIETEI R 9,959 8,836
Share-based payment expenses BHZHEA 5,191 7,433
Total staff costs BT A4EEE
(including Directors' emoluments) (BEEEHH) 167,501 126,988
Less: Amount capitalised in progress land W S TRABIER M
development arrangements ARt o5 (16,614) (12,030)
Amount capitalised in properties under HERRTMEN
development for sale EXberE (3,903) (3,663)
146,984 111,295
Rental income from property leasing classified S iE AR A MENYEBEFE
as investment properties el (36,840) (21,160)
Less: Direct operating expenses for property B MEREERCERY
leasing 19,320 17,629
(17,520) (3,531)
Cost of properties sold EEMHERA 113,246 759,299
Cost of land development arrangements 1 FAEETE B AR 836,376 579,133
Operating lease rental expense LEHERSMAY 12,171 10,907
Auditor’s remuneration ZEA N & 4,238 3,696
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥ - BB REETE 12,982 5,198
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017F 12531 H 1 F/E

11. Emoluments of Directors, Chief Executive 11.EE - FEFTHRAERAEN
and the Five Highest Paid Individuals RS A TS

Emoluments
The emoluments paid or payable to the directors of the Company were EfSEMARRESNFHFMOT
as follows:
Contribution
Salaries to retirement Discretionary  Share-based
and other benefits performance- payment
Fees benefits scheme related bonus expense Total
Fem RIKER REHN
He HifEH HE [ MERL BROXAER CE

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB000
ARBTR  ARBTT ARETR ARETR  AR®TR  ARETx

Year ended 31 December HZ2017%12A31R

2017 LEE
Executive directors; RES:
Wang Jianjun (Note () TEE () - 882 45 - - 927
Yang Yun D - 356 32 216 476 1,080
Wang Yagang B - 356 32 216 476 1,080
Huang Peikun HEH - 4,000 15 2,666 476 7,157
Chen Lianggiu (Note (ii) EEGRGIEE ) - 132 7 80 - 219
Wang Wei (Note (if) B2 GED) - 501 4 17 - 522
Non-executive director: FHiTES:
Zhao Ying izt - 250 13 - - 263
Independent directors: BUEE:
Zhang Xiaomei (Note (i) skt (P3G 216 = - - - 216
Wei Yu (Note (i) BT (MzEGi) 216 - - - - 216
Hsieh Yafang (Note (ii) T (P Gi) 35 - - - - 35
Wang Yijiang (Note (i) T (P (i) 35 - - - - 35
Wong Wing Kuen, Albert Tk 251 - - - - 251
753 6,477 148 3,195 1,428 12,001
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

11. Emoluments of Directors, Chief Executive

MEE FETHRAEREAEN

and the Five Highest Paid Individuals BESHATHEHN e
Emoluments continued)
Contribution
Salaries  toretirement  Discretionary  Share-based
and other benefits  performance- payment
Fees benefits scheme  related bonus expense Total
HeE RIKAER RGEN
ne HiigH HE 5 WERL BROHIATER At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETn ARETR AREFTT ARETR
Year ended 31 December HZ2016F12A31A
2016 LEE
Executive directors: WTES:
Wang Jianjun (Note () TRE (i) - 874 4 - = 918
Yang Yun Ba = 353 32 216 572 1173
Wang Yagang Rl - 353 2 216 572 1173
Huang Peikun ey = 3,794 16 2,530 572 6,912
Chen Liangajiu (Note (i) GG E) = 446 15 280 = 741
Non-executive director: FHITES
Zhao Ying il = 146 13 98 = 257
Independent directors: BUES:
Zhang Xiaomel REEG 258 - _ _ _ 258
Wei Yu BT 258 = = = = 258
Wong Wing Kuen, Albert Tk 258 - - - - 258
774 5,966 152 3,340 1,716 11,948
Notes: ()  Mr. wang Jianjun is also the president (regarded as chief Bt 5T () ITREXEMREARALH

executive) of the Company and his emoluments disclosed
above also include those for services rendered by him as the
president.

(i) Mr. Chen Lianggiu has been appointed as an executive
director with effect from 17 May 2016 and resigned with effect
from 17 March 2017. Ms. Wang Wei has been appointed as an

executive director with effect from 10 November 2017.

(i) Ms. Zhang Xiaomei and Mr. Wei Yu resigned with effect from
10 November 2017. Ms. Hsieh Yafang and Wang Yijiang have
been appointed as the independent directors with effect from

10 November 2017.

(iii)

(RIFEEFTHAR) - Eit
WEROFNCBERET
MR AR PTIE AO R B o

BRE A B20165F5 8178
BEEGANTES I H
201743 A17 HEEHT - T3
7+ 720174511 A10B (T
MRAWTES -

REBEBLZITNMBFTELES
20174E 11 B 10 R #E BT © &
DFLZEME T R2017 4
NMAI0BWIEDABYES -
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11. Emoluments of Directors, Chief Executive

and the Five Highest Paid Individuals
Emoluments continued)

The emoluments of directors of the Company shown above were mainly
for their services in connection with the management of the affairs of
the Company and the Group.

Bonuses are calculated based on the Group’s or respective subsidiaries’
performance for such financial year.

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals include 3 individuals disclosed as
the directors of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2017
(year ended 31 December 2016: 3 individuals). The emoluments of the
remaining 2 highest paid individuals for the year ended 31 December
2017 (year ended 31 December 2016: 2 individuals) are as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017F 12531 H 1 F/E

MEE FETHRAEREAEN

BEHATHEM @

Bl AR AR A B EE R A B 2 2R 2R A P
MEEARRRAEENEHR A RS
B -

TEARAEEREH B R BERYRFE
MRIRETH -

AfusEHEAL
BE017F12A3NBLFE - ANSEH
ATBEMABEE/ARRESN=((BE
2016F12A31RILEE « =D)AL - #E
2017F12ANBLLFE - A (BE
20165123318 1L : WD) &mHAL
HEFENN T

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31MHLEE
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T ARETT
Salaries and other benefits Fre REAMEN 680 678
Discretionary performance-related bonus FRIZEMATYIEIEAT 432 493
Share-based payment expense Bin =& A 952 1,144
Contribution to retirement benefit scheme RIRBRIFT B 32 31
2,096 2,346

P ERERELTIEEREAR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited



11. Emoluments of Directors, Chief Executive

and the Five Highest Paid Individuals
Emoluments (continued)

Five highest paid individuals (continued)

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the directors of
the Company whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as
follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

MEE FETHRAEREAN

BEEHATHEM =
AluRESHFALE)

WIFARBEEME T 55 EE N &=
FEE T ABUAT -

Number of employees

BT A
2017 2016
Hong Kong dollars ("HK$") #51,000,001%1,500,0007T
1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 2 2

For the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, none of the directors
of the Company nor the five highest paid individuals waived any
emoluments.

Saved as disclosed above, the directors of the Company confirm that
no housing or other allowances, benefits in kind, contributions to
pension scheme, discretionary bonus, inducement to join the Group,
compensation for loss of any office in connection with the management
of the affairs of any member of the Group has been made to the five
highest paid individuals during the year ended 31 December 2017(2016:
nil).

HE2017FER2016F 128318 IEFEE - &K
AR E BN AN F= B A TR EE WER
A

BEMBETREIN ARREBER - NE
F2017FNANABLEFE - BEMAN
BERHFATINEESEAMER - BYF
@ RRESF SR - BB - tEARMN
AREENFESAFRENEBMEMKE
DRI EBHE RO TEAL A ES (5 (20165 -
=) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e RS R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017F 12531 H 1 F/E

12.Income Tax Expense

12. FREBiAx

Year ended 31 December

BEZ12B31HLLEE
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT
Current tax: EHATIR -

- PRC enterprise income tax — B EMEH (415,415) (283,827)
— Land appreciation tax — TR ER (3,364) (32,612)

— (Under) over provision for prior year —ARTFE (BET ) BEE
B (5,395) 942
(424,174) (315,497)
Deferred tax (note 20) EIEF I8 (BT E20) 7,478 42,552
(416,696) (272,945)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable
profit generated in Hong Kong for the year ended 31 December 2017
(2016: 16.5%). No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
in the consolidated financial statements as the Group’s subsidiaries in

Hong Kong had no assessable profit.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group, Langfang VAST Urban Development
Co., Ltd.("Langfang VAST"), Langfang Hongsheng Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.("Langfang Hongsheng") and Langfang Yonglun
Property Development Co., Ltd.("Langfang Yonglun”), were subject to
the enterprise income tax of Mainland China at a tax rate of 25% on a
verification collection basis at deemed profit which represents 10% or
15% of its revenue after adjusting the non-deductible subsidies paid to
customers (enterprises establishing their businesses in Longhe Park)
prior to 1 January 2014 in accordance with authorised tax valuation
method (% E &%) approved by local tax bureau pursuant to the
applicable PRC tax regulations (the “Deemed Profit Basis”). From 1
January 2014, the three subsidiaries of the Group mentioned above no
longer enjoyed the tax benefit of the authorised tax valuation method.
Certain income tax calculated on Deemed Profit Basis of unrealised

HE2017F12A31BLEFE - FEFEH
REBEENGERFEFN16.5%1E
(20165 : 16.5%) ° HRANEBERE B KK
BAr W EERE T - BiRE % ®
KRB BRBEBTUSBHEL B -

BREFREARE  AEEBSETHERAR
B A REEMEREBR AR ([
FE])  BUMEBREHEREERAA
(IBHER]) RESmkEEBERES
RN A ([ BREr KM ) ) B IRR E U
LA 5 B 5 R L fE iR E U TR - 1R R
TEREM (BI2014F1 VBRI N FRET =
HEEFNAMERFPONTAENBRHRA
H 1% #10% K 15% WA ) 42 25% Tt 2% 40 4 o
B Py 1 FTS R o #£20149F1 818
L TEALENHBARTBEESLE
BT IBER o K LR BB 6 E B
B 2R B 3R 5 I RO RR R R R S E AT S
TAE2016F M2017F B o

profit earned in prior years was realised in 2016 and 2017.

The enterprise income tax rate for subsidiaries of the Group located in
Mainland China was 25% for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:

25%).

HZE2017F 128318 ILFE - REBUR
FEANHHBARNEEMSHREER
25%(2016%F : 25%) °

R EREETEERE BT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

12.Income Tax EXpense continued) 12. i8FiAXZ @

According to the requirements of the Provisional Regulations of the PRC
on Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT") (Fr2E A R ANE 1 38 E R E 1 T 51)
effective from 1 January 1994, and the Detailed Implementation Rules
on the Provisional Regulations of the PRC on LAT (1 A R AL F1E +
BEHR TN E AR effective from 27 January 1995, all income
from the sale or transfer of state-owned land use rights and buildings in
of the Group (being the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including borrowing costs and property development
expenditures) is subject to LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30%
to 60% of the appreciation of land value with an exemption provided
for property sales of ordinary residential properties (& @12 F) if
their appreciation values do not exceed 20% of the sum of the total
deductible items.

The tax charge can be reconciled to profit before tax as follows:

BAE1994F1 A1 B e A RE( P E AR
Bl 4 #h 38 (B B AT 1651 )FN199551 27 B
AR P EE AR EMNE T 18 E R 1T
1EBIE e AR RIDEAEE ﬁfTiﬂE%ﬁ R B
B HEFIE B 458 20% ) L BIZEE RN
MEES - Fﬁﬁﬁ%m@;.ﬁ$%lmlﬁ
TinFEAEREENRA(HEMEMER
B EERE R MY ERE S S K
BH)H R I ER30%ZE60% RER
SR A 40+ 1 (B B o

PR AT SR B A M S BRI T

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HLLEE
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARETT
Profit before tax BRI 1,497,530 941,317
Tax at PRC enterprise income tax rate of 25% YR B 2EFT15R125%
L g (374,383) (235,329)
Effect on Deemed Profit Basis of enterprise T EEFTIS T RRE i M %
income tax (note) RIS 2 (FIsE) 346 8,320
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for TAHMBRAZ OB E
tax purpose (3,451) (16,873)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised as TAER BELERIBEEN
deferred tax assets RIBEBENTGTEE (13,279) (9,395)
Utilisation of deductible temporary B IBERERBIEERIE
difference previously not recognised as BEMMIEINERNERE
deferred tax assets 6,476 -
Tax effect of share of profits of associates FE(RHG S A RR A B IS 2 1,464 3,856
Tax effect of share of losses of a joint venture Eh—EeERRBENTEG
T (62) )
Effect of tax free policy of Cayman Islands FENSEMBEETE 4,960 -
Tax effect of planned dividend distribution IR ET BN E 5 R
out of Mainland China k32 (30,081) -
LAT T IEER (3,364) (32,612)
Tax effect of LAT THIBERN T BT R 841 8,153
(Under) over provision for prior year BEFEBETR)BERE (5,395) 942
Others A (768) -
Income tax expense FS Bt 5 < (416,696) (272,945)
Note: Amounts represent income tax calculated on Deemed Profit Basis of BieE EZgﬁﬁETaﬁﬁ B T5E 20164 220174

unrealised profit earned in prior years realised in 2016 and 2017.

BB F % WK 2 BRI
-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e RS R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017F 12531 H 1 F/E

13.

14.

Dividend

A final dividend of HK$0.25 per share in respect of the year ended
31 December 2017 amounting to HK$409,410,250 in aggregate has
been proposed by the directors of the Company and is subject to
the approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general
meeting. The dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2017
will be paid out from the Company’s share premium. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, such distribution is in compliance
with the Articles of Association adopted by the Company and also the
Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands.

During the reporting period, a final dividend of HK$0.12 per share
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2016 amounting to
HK$196,516,920 in aggregate (equivalents to RMB170,099,000) was
declared and paid out from the Company’s share premium.

Earnings Per Share
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the following data:

13.

14.

R E
HZE2017F12A31BIEFEMRIGRE
RERABB0.257T - 54 %409,410,250
T HIBRFEBAARESRE VAR
HARAMKRFAFAS ERBREE - 8
Z2017F12AN B EFEHREBRARR
AIRAHEZ L - (KEERARAREENE
R EESRFEAAARAMEHEER
MAARFASES A BIEFE2E(1961FH
ENRS - IEERE B -

FEHREWE > BE2016F12A8318 1LF
EH KRR B BRBE0.127T « BB
196,516,920 7t ( #T & A K ¥ 170,099,000
) BEEREEAARBRAEES X
o

sRAER
ARTRE ARG SREARBEETI
RN A TR S8 -

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HLEE
2017 2016
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET R ARETT
Earnings B
Profit for the year attributable to owners HEREARZFME
of the Company for the purpose NARER AFEMN
of basic earnings per share F R A 1,081,809 668,986
Adjustment to the profit for the year attributable  ZtEREERFMS
to owners of the Company for the purpose of AT ARG
diluted earnings per share F @ F § A=
—impact of Convertible bonds issued — NN BIFTE T S RE S
by the Company Ep)=Zs 8,658 -
Profit for the year attributable to owners of REREERFME AAR]
the Company for the purpose of diluted B ANEAEF R F)
earnings per share 1,090,467 668,986

R EREETEERE BT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e RS R R AL (]

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

14. Earnings Per Share continued)
Number of shares

14. SR EBF @)
PR

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HLLFE
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T T ARETT
Weighted average number of ordinary shares TEREF =
for the purposes of earnings per share LA pE IR 1,637,641 1,637,641
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: EBEAE ST RRNTE
- Convertible bonds — AERES 135,965 -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for st &% #5822 i 5 &9
the purpose of diluted earnings per share SRR N8 1,773,606 1,637,641

The profit attributable to owners of the Company and the number of
ordinary shares for the purposes of calculating basic earnings per share
and diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2017
had been adjusted assuming that the conversion of the convertible
bonds has been effective from 1 January 2017.

No diluted earnings per share is presented for the year ended 31
December 2016 as there was no potential adjustment for profit and
ordinary shares in issue.

The computation of the diluted earnings per share for the years ended
31 December 2017 and 2016 does not assume the exercise the share
options issued by the Company because the exercise price of those
options was higher than the average market price for shares for both
years.

MEEEHE2017E12A3A L EFESRE
RBEMERSREBFRFNMSHOARNRARESR
ABIESH R EBEEE  ERRE T
BEHFERMA2017F1 1B BRERmMIEL
kR

BPOEN R B T B EEERE
E I BB E2016F12A3NBIEFER
FBRESER N o

SHEHZE2017F K2016F12 A31B ILFE
WEREERF T EBREAQRBEITHR
MDEREETTE - REAAZERMN BRTE
B R R M EFE W RN TS ERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e RS R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017F 12531 H 1 F/E

15. Property, Plant and Equipment

15. 9% - BERRE

Leasehold Furniture,
land and Motor fittings and
buildings vehicles  equipment Total
HELHR REHE
B2EY RE &L st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®BTR AR%Tr AR%Tx
Cost RN
At 1 January 2016 H20165FE1 818 34,255 6,830 9,776 50,861
Additions NE 47,321 18,118 5,033 70,472
Disposals k= (991) (1,478) (51) (2,520)
Transfer to investment properties & 51% & Y2 (31,316) - = (31,316)
At 31 December 2016 R2016%12 8318 49,269 23,470 14,758 87,497
Additions NE 635,720 7,083 5,963 648,766
Disposals & - (379) (2,314) (2,693)
At 31 December 2017 K2017%12 8318 684,989 30,174 18,407 733,570
Depreciation e
At 1 January 2016 H2016F1 818 (10,144) (3,283) (6,719) (20,146)
Provided for the year FNEHE (604) (2,577) (2,017) (5,198)
Eliminated on disposals H B B 4 4 228 1,150 50 1,428
Eliminated on transfer to ERIRE
investment properties b EEE k] 7,998 - - 7,998
At 31 December 2016 R2016%F12A31H (2,522) (4,710) (8,686) (15,918)
Provided for the year FNEE (2,353) (5,287) (5,342) (12,982)
Eliminated on disposals R - 324 1,959 2,283
At 31 December 2017 K2017%12 8318 (4,875) (9,673) (12,069) (26,617)
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2017 R2017%12 8318 680,114 20,501 6,338 706,953
At 31 December 2016 K2016%12 8318 46,747 18,760 6,072 71,579

FEIRREEMEREARR AT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

15. Property, Plant and Equipment continued) 15. 9% - BERXZE@®

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis, taking into account their residual value, at the
following rates per annum:

4.75%-4.85%
19%-19.4%
19%-19.4%

Leasehold land and buildings
Motor vehicles
Furniture, fittings and equipment

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's property, plant and equipment
with a carrying amount of approximately RMB44,452,000 (31 December
2016: RMB46,747,000) were pledged to a bank to secure certain
mortgage loan to the Group, details of which are set out in note 28(a).

Lz - BB MR IR B At R E R
BERAEBRERATEFLRTE

HE T R EREY) 4.75%-4.85%
A 19%-19.4%
KA RELRE 19%-19.4%

20174128318 AEEREEHAR
®44,452,00070 (2016512 A31H : AR
46,747,0007T) K942 - RS MRk i v A 3
TIRTT - URBAKERE TREBER -

FHIBE A MIFE28() °
16. Investment Properties 16. BEWE
Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties development Total
2ER BRP
REWE REMHE et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETIT ARBF T ARETT
Fair value AEE
At 1 January 2016 H2016F1 718 802,800 140,000 942,800
Additions N = 243,795 243,795
Transfer from property, Y - BREREEEA
plant and equipment 57,500 - 57,500
Transfer A 235,832 (235,832) -
Increase in fair value NFEIE N
- Unrealised gain (loss) —RERUE (BK) 8,936 (5,263) 3,673
At 31 December 2016 20165128318 1,105,068 142,700 1,247,768
Additions 1 H0 15,669 1,887 17,556
Transfer to properties under HIEGERRPYE
development for sale (86,000) - (86,000)
Decrease in fair value N ERD
— Unrealised (loss) gain — REIR (38R ) Wiz (5,066) 713 (4,353)
At 31 December 2017 20179128318 1,029,671 145,300 1,174,971
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16. Investment Properties (continued)

All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases to earn
rentals are measured using the fair value model, and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

The fair values of the Group's investment properties were arrived at on
the basis of a valuation carried out at the end of respective reporting
periods by Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited (“Savills
Valuation”), an independent qualified professional valuer not connected
with the Group.

In measuring the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use
of the properties is their current use.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's investment properties with
carrying amount of approximately RMB85,600,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB208,100,000) were pledged to banks to secure certain banking
facilities granted to the Group, details of which are set out in note 28(a).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's investment properties with a
carrying amount of approximately RMB250,000,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB565,700,000) were pledged to certain trust fund companies to
secure loans of RMB175,000,000 (31 December 2016: RMB450,000,000)
obtained from certain trust fund companies, details of which are set out
in note 28(b)(i).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's investment properties with
a carrying amount of approximately RMB55,700,000 (31 December
2016: RMB58,100,000) were pledged to a third party company to
secure certain other loan of RMB219,000,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB369,000,000) to the Group, details of which are set out in note 28(b)
(ii).

FEIRREEMEREARR AT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017F 12531 H 1 F/E

16. BEWZ )

REEL THANE ML EHEEARIE
SMEREERRAFEEXGE LA
DEMINESIEDE -

AEBREMENAFERSHREAME
REFE-AFREFTHERBEXERER
RAN[E—RFEAHEEDIEHNGE
SHE o fHEAD 73 SN S A R B R Y B <L
BERMEEFAER -

RETEVRAFER - PRORT REE
FM#RBARME -

R2017F12A318 - AEEREEEHA
R#85,600,0007T (2016512318 = AR
#208,100,0007T ) IR EWEE EH TR
T LERAEBEERE TRITHEMNIE
- FIBERHEE28(a) ©

R2017F12A318 - AEEEEEEHA
R #250,000,0007T (2016 12 4318 = A
ER#565,700,0007T) MR B ECKIR T H
TEREELQR MEARE TERES
N AVEVS B A R #175,000,0007T (2016
F12A318 : AR#450,000,0007T) &9
o B EHRHE280)0)

20174F12 8318 - AEEREEEHA
R#55,700,0007T (2016512 A318 © AR
#£58,100,0007T) I EME D EIR T — %
E=FRRF MEARZE=FRARNE
AR 219,000,0007t (2016512 4318 -
AR #369,000,00070 ) & T E B A K
- FHEERAMT EE28(D)(i)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

16. Investment Properties (continued)
The following table gives information about how the fair values of these
investment properties are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy
into which the fair value measurements are categorised based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements is
observable.

16. REWZE =)
TEHIRSRE N E R FENARERE (5
B P B PR (A R B A B ) B+
AR A FE B8 AR AR
EBATEHBABNATFESE -

At 31 December 2017 R®20175%12H31H

Investment properties Fair value Valuation technique(s) Relationship of
held by the Group hierarchy and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s) unobservable inputs to fair value
REBEERENS AYEER BRI EEARE EXTTBERAHE AUERGABERATENER
Investment properties-Completed Level3 Income capitalisation Term yield, taking into account of yield Adlight increase in the term yield used would
REME-ERT E=8 method (term and generated from comparable properties and result in a significant decrease in the fair value
reversionary approach) adjustment to reflect the certainty of term measurement of the investment properties,
WABRE (FEREEEL)  income secured and to be received, of range and vice versa.
from 3.5%t0 5.0%. (R A T ek - Ale8R R ANEATEH
THE - HRTEIBNEEEMSERARYE EXETH R4
FIERERABUDNE BRATEL H3E -
NT35%Z50% o
The key inputs are Reversionary yield, taking into account annual Aslight increase in the reversionary yield used
(0 Termyield; unit market rental income and unit market would resultin a significant decrease in the fair value
() Reversionaryyield;and  value of the comparable properties, of range measurement of the investment properties and vice
() Market unt rent of from 4.0% 0 5.5%. Versa.
indlvidual unit BENE HRTELINENEEENMSRS  WARRSENGRA  AISERRANEATE
ETIN T WARENME « N T40%E55% EXRTH  R2FE -
() 8
0 HEbE R Market unit rent, using direct market comparable A slight increase in the market unit rent used would
@ ENENSTEEL and taking into account of time, location and other  resLlt in & significant increase in the fair value
s indlividual factors such as size and quantum of measurement of the investment properties and vice
properties, of range from RMB0.58/sq.m./dayto  versa.
RVIB2.2/50.m./day. REmAELELHRA  AICEHRENERT
MRS - RREETATRIATER AR BEHEARLA R
W MEAEERIRE - fimEA RES
NTERETARAREBIZEAETAA
ANREQT -
Investment properties - held Level3 Direct comparison method Accommodtion value, using direct market An increase in the accommodation value used would
for/under development F=8 The key input is: comparable and taking into account of time, result in an increase in the fair value measurement
REME - /gt (1) Site unitrate location and individual factors slich as size and of the investment properties, and vice versa.
ERUBE quantum of properties, of range from IR AEENELA - AeBR R ANEATEH
TEGAYEA RMBS30/sq.m to RMB1,075/5q.m. EH R2NA-

() FHELER

BELE  FRERTSTELIBE KR
K HERERIRE - A RES -
NEEARARES DT EF A%

BB 0757 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e RS R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017F 12531 H 1 F/E

16. Investment Properties (continued)

At 31 December 2016

16. BEWZ )

2016512 A318

Investment properties Fair value Valuation technique(s) Relationship of

held by the Group hierarchy and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s) unobservable inputs to fair value

AREFERENZ AYESH HERARIERARE EXTUREBAHE FUBRRBARBELATENEE

Investment properties-Completed Level3 Income capitalisation Term yield, taking into account of yield generated A slight increase in the term yield used would

REWE-ERT £=8 method (term and from comparable properties and adjustment to resultin a significant decrease in the fair value

reversionary approach) reflect the certainty of term income Secured andto - measurement of the investment properties, and vice
WABRLE (FBRGEE)  bereceived, of range from 3.5% 0 5.0%. VErsa.
TG HRTELRNEEEONERARE  WARRTAKERS  AeSRRANEATEN
BIERGRABUBOERMAMELHAE - SXETH R
N E35%Z50%
The key inputs are Reversionary yield, taking into account annual Adlight increase in the reversionary yield used
(1) Termyield; unit market rental income and unit market would resultin a significant decrease in the fair value
() Reversionaryyield;and  value of the comparable properties, of range meastrement of the investment properties and vice
(3)  Market unit rent of from 4.0% t0 4.5% VErsa.
indivicual unit BElG HRTELANENFEENTSRE  WARRBENEN  AeSHRANEATEN
TEGNHER WO RERTE - M 4.0%245% ERETH - R
() FEBhE:
Q BENE R Market unit rent, using direct market comparable A slight increase in the market unit rent used would
@ (ENENSTEEL and taking into account of time, location and other  resLlt in & significant increase in the fair value
e inalvidual factors such as Size and quantum of measurement of the investment properties and vice
properties, of range from RMB0.S5/sq.m./dayto  versa.
RMB1.98/50.m./day. WRATREMR A - Ao EHRENEAT
mRENRS  FREETATHIBEERIR EHEAELA K2R
BE - HENE0ERRE  fnmEL REE
NFERETARAREOSTZEAGT A
ARE1.98T »

Investment properties - held Level3 Direct comparison method Accommodtion value, using direct market An increase in the accommodation value used would
for/under development £=8 The key input is: comparable and taking into account of time, result inanincrease in the fair value measurement
REME g/ Fih (1) Siteunitrate ocation and individual factors Suich as size and of the investment properties, and vice versa.

ERUBE quantum of properties of range from MEEREENE LT BISERRENEATE
TERAEER: RMB523/s0.m to RVB1 015/50.m. gH R2mf
() FBHELER BENE  RRERTSTRLSBARR

BE - #HRERER  fimazA RES
NEETARARESBTEETARAREL05
e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e RS R R AL (]

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

16.

17.

Investment Properties (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes
In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment properties,
the Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages an
independent qualified professional valuer to perform the valuation
of the Group's investment properties. At the end of each reporting
period, management of the Group worked closely with the independent
qualified professional valuer to establish and determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for Level 2 and Level 3 fair value
measurements. The Group will first consider and adopt Level 2 inputs
where inputs can be derived from observable quoted prices in the
active market. When Level 2 inputs are not available, the Group will
adopt valuation techniques that include Level 3 inputs. Where there

16. REWZE =)

A EFTERGERRE

EHAEEREMEN D FEGEES - A
S5 [ 57 PR T 420 P 0 A T MRS AR o
BEE—ROBALIE  AEBEEEE
TAEREE A AEENIRE NS
BITHE - NEBEREERE - AEE
WERERBYASRILEENERA
Ve - BARRL R R Y A (B R R =
FRME=JATE B8 ARE - A%
B e BRI E = BB AKE - 8
A BB A B AT A5 BB L A0 AT 3R
(IS - 25 B BEE AR - A%
BAIE R RS = A BEEE R

is a material change in the fair value of the assets, the causes of the T o HEEATEHEREASS - Blem
fluctuations will be reported to management of the Group. AEEEEEREEERBNREA -
There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the years. FA - WEEARBHE=ER -
Interests in Associates 17. REEE A RS
At 31 December
MW12A318
2017 2016
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETF T
Cost of investments in associates — unlisted Bt A AR ER A —JELT 236,256 131,620
Share of post-acquisition profits FEL IR EE S S R E IR B
net of dividends received 36,617 30,762
Impairment 10ss (note a) JEEE (Msta) (12,837) (12,837)
260,036 149,545

Note:

a. During the year ended 31 December 2010, as requested by other equity
holders of Huayuan and agreed by the Group, Langfang VAST unilaterally
made additional cash contribution to Huayuan as further capital injection
into Huayuan amounting to RMB19,750,000 with shareholding interest in
Huayuan unchanged. An impairment loss amounting to RMB12,837,000 was
recognised by the Group based on an estimation of the recoverable amount
of the Group’s interest in Huayuan during the year ended 31 December
2010.

g

a.  HE200F12A318LFE - BERELM
BEFEANERRAEERE  BH %
REFENRSHANAERBINEEA
R #19,750,0007T R B + %R ) AR 4 37 4%
BE o NEBAEEE2010F128318 IEF
EERAEERERN RN INESHE
fHEHTER AR %512,837,0007TH R EIB X -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017F 12531 H 1 F/E

17.Interests in Associates (continueq) 17. SBE N TN ER @)

BEREHMERE - AEBBATHZ

As of the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following

associates: NI
Place and date of Issued and fully paid/ Equity interest
Name of company establishment/acquisition  registered capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
NEER Y/ RS R AL BRARAR/ dMER rEEELER TEEH
At 31 December
M2A318
2017 216
% %
Langfang Huayuan Shengshi Heating Mainland China RMB117,000,000 35 35 Heatenergy generation
Co., Ltd. ("Huayuan") (note ) 21 August 2007 (Paid-up registered capital) HEus
BAmEREE RN ERAR FEIRI, AR117,0000007
(TR 1) (M) 0748A218 (HRHER)
Langfang Kaihong Furniture Mart Mainland China RMB100,000,000 30 30 Property leasing and property
Co., Ltd. ("kaihong") (note i) 10 December 2010 (Paid-up registered capital) development
BT EREBFERAR FEIRI, ARH100,000,0007 NERERNELE
(A1) (RtH) 10128108 (BRMER)
Langfang Shengshi Zhiye Real Estates Mainland China RMB10,000,000 2 - Property development
Development Co. Ltd. 10 May 2017 (Paid-up registered capital) NEER
('Shengshi Znye’) (note ) R ARE100000007
Bmat E REHERERRAR WI7E5A108 (RsMmAL)
(Tt &% ]) (B)
Central Technology Development(Bejing ~ Mainland China RMB100,000,000 30 - Technology development
Co. Ltd. ('CTD Beijing’) (note ) 27 luly 2017 (Paic-Up registered capita) HEYE
PEYERERE (L RERAR FEIR, AR 100,000,000
([hE2EIR]) (M) 175774278 (BRsMER)
Wuhan Aviclub Real Estate Development Mainland China RMB36,917,100 30 - Property development
Co. Ltd. ("Wuhan Aviclub”) (note i) 17 May 2017 (Paid-up registered capital) NELE
REERENELAERRERARA PERI, ARE3917,1007
(THEERE ) (3H) N17F5A178 (BIRsHRER)
Sinosteel Metals & Resources Co. Ltd. Mainland China RMB100,000,000 46 - Trade business
("Sinomerco”) (note ) 1 December 2017 (Paid-up registered capital) BHEK
PR ERERAR EIRH AR 100,000,000
([iias ) (M) N1751251A (BRMER)
Note: BT

English name for identification only.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e RS R R AL (]

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

17. Interests in Associates (continueq)
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s material
associates is set out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts shown in the associates’ financial statements
prepared in accordance with IFRSs for equity accounting purpose.

17. HEBEE N TN ER @)
BN SR B T A T B RS R
BRI o A FBERHEL R ISR S A TR
R O B SR 2 Y R B 25 & T A
BHEIRE T RS o

Huayuan FER
At 31 December
MW12A31H
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Current assets MENEE 103,850 115,676
Non-current assets EmENEE 370,641 313,272
Current liabilities mEARE (91,155) (128,920)
Non-current liabilities ERBAaE (216,107) (139,023)
Net assets FEE 167,229 161,005
Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALEE
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETF T
Total revenue U A 99,123 91,020
Total comprehensive income for the year REEEW S 4E%E 6,224 4,599
Group's share of profit of the associate SE RS QNG 2,178 1,610

Dividends received from the associate

WCER B = 2 mI IR,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017F 12531 H 1 F/E

17. Interests in Associates (continuea)
Huayuan (continued)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to
the carrying amount of the interest in Huayuan recognised in these
consolidated financial statements:

17. W E QRN ES @)
R
Lt BRI L% AR A M T REA A
RBREROESEREEHRNAT

At 31 December

M12A31H
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Net assets of Huayuan ERNFEE 167,229 161,005
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEBERERNHEAE
interest in Huayuan =Ll 35% 35%
Carrying amount of the Group's REERNERE
interest in Huayuan ERMEEERE 58,530 56,352
Kaihong g5
At 31 December
M12831H
2017 2016
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARTR ARETT
Current assets MEVEE 236,140 44,782
Non-current assets ERBEE 560,032 559,476
Current liabilities TEARE (239,739) (293,613)
Non-current liabilities IERBAE (224,000) -
Net assets FAE 332,433 310,645
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A3181LEE
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARTT ARETTT
Total revenue R ON 63,773 61,254
Total comprehensive income for the year REEEW SR 21,788 46,058
Group's share of profit of the associate EE PR E A RE A 6,537 13,817

Dividends received from the associate

R B 2 2 R IR R,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

17. Interests in Associates (continued) 17. S QAR HER )
Kaihong (continued) S\E (1)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to EMBBEERBRRZERE M BREA
the carrying amount of the interest in Kaihong recognised in these RN EREFEEEYHRNT ¢

consolidated financial statements:

At 31 December

M12A31H
2017 2016
RMB'000 RMB'000
ART R ARET T
Net assets of Kaihong AERHFEE 332,433 310,645
Proportion of the Group's ownership AEBRIN R TEEE
interest in Kaihong gl 30% 30%
Carrying amount of the Group’s AEBNIN K
interest in Kaihong ERAREEEE 99,730 93,193
Shengshi zhiye BB
At
31 December
2017
R201745F
12A31H8
RMB’000
ARBTT
Current assets mEEE 813,104
Non-current assets IERBNEE 1,560
Current liabilities ik N=N (809,071)
Non-current liabilities FEREEE -
Net assets BEFE 5,593
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e RS R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017F 12531 H 1 F/E

17. Interests in Associates (continued)
Shengshi Zhiye (continued)

17. BBE D BNER e
BEEXR®)

From

the date of
establishment
to 31 December
2017
HERZBHZE
2017%12A31H
RMB’000
AR¥TF T

Revenue

Wt -

Total comprehensive expense for the period

HA 2 HEELARE (4,407)

Group's share of loss of the associate

SEDIEBE N REE (881)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
carrying amount of the interest in Shengshi Zhiye recognised in these

consolidated financial statements:

LB AR B AR A M B RER A
RN E X RRmESRRNT

2017

RMB’000

AR¥ETT

Net assets of the associate B NRAEFE 5,593
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest REBEREEXNEGE

in Shengshi Zhiye i alll 20%

Carrying amount of the Group's interest in Shengshi zhiye AEEREMTEENESHIRRE 1,119
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

17.Interests in Associates (continueq) 17. BB E N T ER @)

Sinomerco

On 30 September 2017, Langfang VAST and Langfang Qingcheng
Environmental Protection Technology Co., Ltd ("Qingcheng
Environmental”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, entered
into several agreements (“2017 JV Agreements”) with Guangxi Haitong
Investment Co., Ltd, Hebei Puyang International Trade Co., Ltd,
Shanghai Fankuang Trade Co., Ltd, and Hu Yiyong (collectively refer to
as the “Sellers”) for the acquisition of 46% of shares of the total equity
of Sinomerco previously owned by the Sellers. The principal activity of
Sinomerco is trading of metallic mineral products and raw materials.
Upon acquisition, Sinomerco is owned as to 31% by Langfang VAST,
15% by Qingcheng Environmental, 34% by Sinosteel Corporation
("Sinosteel”) and 20% by Chen Hua. According to the revised Articles of
Association of Sinomerco, over half of the approvals by the directors of
Sinomerco are required for decisions on directing the relevant activities
of Sinomerco. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
Group's interest in Sinomerco is accounted for as an associate.

k=N
R2017F9A30H * BB EREAEEEE
MB A R BT AR REHR AR AR(NE
WIRIR ) HEFSBRIREAEBARAR A
ITEGERERESERRARF - LEZEES
BERARRMEB(GEAIER DIV E0E
(2017 F 6 &%)  RABHKE
LAERE S AR SERATEICWIR
mehilfeEENEEELBRERMNER
MR e RUIkEER - RIS BB REEA
31% * BWIRIRIFE15% - PEFHEE D
A8 )55 34% M IREFH20% © RIE
Pl A SMIETABERER - BRie
SARREBEITRR AR HESIE -
ARREZRE  AEERPHASAERS
AT ABRZIVEREE R A] ©

At

31 December

2017

H2017F

12A31H

RMB’000

AR®T R

Current assets mEEE 118,134
Non-current assets IEMENE E 54,626
Current liabilities mEALE (63,021)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE -
Net assets AEFE 109,739
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017F 12531 H 1 F/E

17. Interests in Associates continued) 17. B E N TNER @)
Sinomerco (continued) REEE (%)

From

the date of
acquisition to
31 December

2017
HWEANE
2017%12A31H
RMB’000
AR¥ET T
Revenue Wz =
Total comprehensive profits attributable to il HE A
owners of Sinomerco FEIE 2R 858 =
Group's share of profits of the associate EE DR E R B A =
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the LB 7 B R BE B AR AR A B TS TR A
carrying amount of the interest in Sinomerco recognised in these ﬁEmEAEPiH/ SHERREESRNOT
consolidated financial statements:
2017
RMB’000
ARET T
Net assets of the associate Bt N A& EFE 109,739
Non-controlling interests of Sinomerco’s subsidiaries Hhii)E & M A B8R (1,994)
107,745
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest in Sinomerco  Z<£2 B 7 F 84 & KI5 RERE2S LE 1 46%
Group's share of net assets of Sinomerco EEN P EEFE 49,563
Other adjustment HAh ' (3,563)
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in Sinomerco AEBMPAFASHERNREEA 46,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

17. Interests in Associates (continuea)
Aggregate information of associates that are not

18.

individually material

17.

HBE N RN ER )
ERIEERBE AT HEAER

Year ended 31 December

BZ128318LEE
2017 2016
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARBTT
Group’s share of losses of associates EEELEEARNERE (1,978) =
Aggregate carrying amount of the REERZER SRR
Group's interests in these associates EmIREARTE 54,657 -

There is no unrecognised share of losses of any associate.

There is no significant restriction on the ability of the associates to
transfer funds to the Group in form of cash dividends, or to repay

advances made by the Group.

For the purpose of establishing further business relationship and
strategic cooperation with the majority shareholder of Huayuan,
Kaihong, Shengshi Zhiye, Sinomerco, CTD Beijing and Wuhan Aviclub,
the Group retains 35%, 30%, 20%, 46%, 30% and 30% interest in
Huayuan, Kaihong, Shengshi Zhiye, Sinomerco, CTD Beijing and Wuhan

Aviclub respectively, for investment purpose.

BRERERE L ARNER

BENRNRSREBBES TAEERK
BERNEERDRNENGEZ T ERRS) -

REER YR BEEE Tl
REHBILRMREERET NS BRRE
TE-SEBRERBRBRIESE  AEE
D RAMREREIRE35%HE - HZRA30%HE
o B ZEA020% M R P A S AY46%
R P EHBIL AI30% R A R EUE
EREF 0% EE  AERERE °

Bl

Interest in a Joint Venture 18. HHEE AR ER

Details of the Group’s investment in a joint venture are as follows: AEER—HEERRMIEEFBOT :
2017 2016
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET R AEETT
Cost of unlisted investment FE_ TR E AR 60,000 60,000
Share of post-establishment loss R 1BIBAREHE (276) (28)
59,724 59,972
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017F 12531 H 1 F/E

18. Interest in a Joint Venture (continued) 18. B &E A RS »)
As at 31 December 2017, the Group had interest in the following joint 20176 12A318 » AEBETIEER
venture: AR R

Proportion of ownership

interest held by
Place of the Group as at
Date of establishment  Fully paid-up/ 31 December Principal

Name of entity establishment and operation  registered capital FEER12A318 activity

=R R A BAMEEfER CHR/ARER BENRERESLS TEER
2017 2016
% %

Hubei International Aviation 8 December 2016 Mainland China RMB100,000,000 60 60 Investment,
Development Co., Ltd. 2016F12A8H IR, AR #100,000,0007T construction,
("Hubei International”) operation and

ML EEMEEENAERE leasing
ERAA(HLER) RE 1%

BERMEE

On 4 December 2016, Langfang VAST entered into a joint venture 2016F12 A48 - BHEFERYIEL S

agreement (“2016 )V Agreement”) with Shenzhen Shunfeng Airport REBRAR(NRYIEL ) EZF T BRK

Investment Co. Ltd. (“Shenzhen Shunfeng”) for the establishment SHILERR A HE([2016F 6 Bk ©

of Hubei International. The principal activities of Hubei International MILERNEEXBHIRE  EXERR

are investment, construction service for industrial park, operation RIS EERAE - IR - LB A

and leasing. Upon establishment, Hubei International is owned as to BB 7= ZR R AR 60% S AR Y| IE 2 35 AR 40% © 1R

60% by Langfang VAST and 40% by Shenzhen Shunfeng. Under the R20165F & ek + FUIE BIFRARRE E)

2016 IV Agreement, unanimous approvals by the directors of Hubei EITRRAEARESH — S - AR

International are required for decisions on directing the relevant REFERR - AKENHILBERA SR

activities of Hubei International. In the opinion of the directors of the ABRIIE—FHAEERA -

Company, the Group's interest in Hubei International is accounted for as
a joint venture.

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method in these BEAFRLEFREMHERER T AERE
consolidated financial statements. ABR °

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s joint ARARENGEARMMEER SR
venture is set out below. The summarised financial information below T AT BERRIES 2 R RIRIEE
represents amounts shown in the joint venture’s financial statements BB ERNREOPBEREP AR
prepared in accordance with IFRSs. o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e RS R R AL (]

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

18. Interest in a Joint Venture continued) 18. B S & N MR (e
Hubei International 1t B B
At 31 December
A12A31H
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
Current assets MENEE 101,780 100,005
Non-current assets EMEEE = -
Current liabilities mEALE (2,240) (51)
Non-current liabilities ERBBE - -
Net assets BETE 99,540 99,954
The above amounts of assets and NEMBERBESTE
liabilities include the following: BIETYIEE
Cash and cash equivalents ReRIBEESEEY 101,780 100,005
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLLEE
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARET T
Total revenue etk = -
Total comprehensive expense for the year AERHIBRETE (414) (46)
Group's share of loss of the joint venture EEEEEE AR (248) (28)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
carrying amount of the interest in Hubei International recognised in
these consolidated financial statements:

bt BA RS AR B B AR A BB IR A
RSB B IREE S AR

At 31 December

#A12831H

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥F T AREFIT

Net assets of Hubei International LB R B E 99,540 99,954
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interestin - Zx & B AL BIBE )

Hubei International B R 60% 60%
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in AREBERMHIEBIRR A

Hubei International EEMREEE 59,724 59,972
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e RS R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017F 12531 H 1 F/E

19. Available-For-Sale Investment

Available-for-sale investment comprise:

19. I HERE
AL ERE O

At 31 December

M12831H
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARETT
Unlisted investment: ELETRE
- equity securities - IREEFH 3,300 3,300

The above unlisted equity investments represents unlisted entity
securities issued by a private entity in Mainland China. They are
measured at cost at the end of the reporting period because the range
of reasonable fair value estimate is so significant that the directors of
the Company are of the opinion that its fair value cannot be measured
reliably.

20. Deferred Tax

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purposes:

A EFEEMBERERRPEANMLAEER
BEBEITHNIFLMERES - EMSERS
HRERKRBRAGTEN  ARATE
MEEMEFHERK  BARRAESTAR
HAFEEARSEERTE

20. ERERIE
TR B RS BRETHIRRBO DI -

At 31 December

M12831H
2017 2016
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%T ARBTT
Deferred tax assets BIETIEE B 83,836 37,419
Deferred tax liabilities BERIEAE (81,541) (42,602)
2,295 (5,183)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

20. Deferred TaxX (continued)

The deferred tax (liabilities) assets recognised by the Group and

20. EZEBLIE ()

EAFAREERANELCHA(RE)E

movements thereon during the year are as follows: ERESIT :
Unrealised
Fairvalue  Accruedtax  Temporary Unrealised profit on
changeon  forplanned  differences profiton~ transactions Property
investment dividend  on property TaX Accrued  Impairment  intra-group withan — revaluation
properties  distribution  sale and LAT [osses payroll of assets  transactions associate reserve Other Total
WERER H-HHELT
REnz HERE  LMEER SERBRE  RORAN
AVESD  AHWEHRE i HaEg FEitié BERE  FREMR  ARBMA  NREGRR i it
RMBTO0D RIB00 RMB00 RMB000 RMB000 RVB000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI000
ARETT ARETT AR MR ARET ARET ARET ARET ARETr AR ABETr
A1 Sy 206 RI6EIRIR 818 631 290 1% 816 5% - - B8 w7
(Charge)creditto (B8RS
profitor loss ] [vavi) 6 0 = b = o = 5%
Charge o other REREMZENETR
comprefiensive
ncome for the year - - - (8013 - (8013
At31 December 2016 R6E1RANR (84,102 875 3038 1813 64816 30550 2 (8013 (3831 (5183
Oret cherge) to TAlRE)ER
orofitorloss 1088 (30081 12038 2 (75 - (%) 1259 - 4009 1478
At31 December 2017 RATERAYA (83014) (30089 60,784 30 1061 6818 094 129 (8013 78 2%

Details of the Group’s unused tax losses and deductible temporary

REBERERRIEEERATENGRZHR

differences are as follows: BT -
At 31 December
A12H31H

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥F T ANRETT

Tax losses unrecognised for deferred tax assets BB IEEE AN
THIEE 18 115,390 57,720

Deductible temporary differences unrecognised R ptiIEIEF: TH & ERER R
for deferred tax assets BEwilkisE3 = 25,905

Annual Report 2017 %R

167



168

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017F 12531 H 1 F/E

20. Deferred Tax (continued)

21.

The following unrecognised tax losses has fixed expiry date, which will
be expired in the following years:

20. IEZEBLIE (1)

THIEE 2 H A AR R R R B R A A
THEEEIH

At 31 December

®12831H
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
2017 20174 = 673
2018 20184 1,604 1,604
2019 20194 3,344 3,344
2020 20204 6,924 6,924
2021 20214 24,535 24,535
2022 20224 42,969 =
Total 1BET 79,376 37,080

Besides, at the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of RMB36,014,000 (31 December 2016: RMB20,640,000)
available for offsetting against future profits that may be carried forward
indefinitely. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

A deferred tax liability of RMB30,081,000 for undistributed earnings
of the subsidiaries located in Mainland China has been recognised as
there is a plan of the dividends distribution out of Mainland China in the
foreseeable future by these subsidiaries.

In Progress Land Development Arrangements
In progress land development arrangements mainly represent costs
incurred for land development under collaboration arrangements
with the relevant local government authority within the districts of the
development project. Although the Group does not have ownership title
or land use right of such land, the Group is given the right to carry out
construction and preparation works in respect of land infrastructure
in those land development project under agreements with the local
government authority.

21.

R EREETEERE BT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

BEAN - RREHRARE - AEEES KRS
AR TEE B A R#36,014,0007T (201612
A318 : AR¥20,640,0007T) AR K4 7]
BEM R BRI B A AR AT o AR ARAETER
RACEFT - A ER R BEIBRERE
EHIBEE -

H A R B PR 3t B B8 2 AT B0 AT R R R
PEIAMIAIME R 2 IRAE - E it 2 B %
LB AR AR D IR BN HERIRIEN AR
& AR #30,081,0007T °

FELHMARIER
FELMHERETEREERRRANM
R BT RIES FRPPETT LR
EERKAR - RSB NMEFZ S LM
RIFTARES T A EEEERES
IR E R R TR T B RIA A M) T3
HERBAETERREETE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e RS R R AL (]

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

21. In Progress Land Development Arrangements

(Continued)

When the land plots are sold by the local government authority, the
Group is entitled to receive from the local government authority a

proportion of the proceeds from land sales.

As mentioned in the accounting policy of revenue recognition on
income from land development arrangements in note 3, income
from land development which are under collaboration arrangements
with the relevant local government authority are recognised upon
sales of related land plots by the local government authority with the
corresponding costs incurred under such arrangements recognised as

cost of sales.

As at 31 December 2017, certain of the Group's in progress land
development arrangements with carrying amount of approximately
RMB550,000,000 (31 December 2016: RMB41,504,000) was pledged
to a bank to secure certain loan to the Group, details of which are set
out in note 28(a). Certain of the Group’s in progress land development
arrangements with carrying amount of approximately RMB339,000,000
(31 December 2016: RMB339,000,000) was pledged to a third party non-
financial institution to secure a loan of RMB300,000,000 (31 December
2016: RMB300,000,000), details of which are set out in note 28(b)(ii).

21. FE L HBARIEE

(#8)
77 BUR Ry - REI AR
BRAFURER £ 4t Rl 2 0 — AR o i

ey oliogsaeleskraallcola)imub il ik E S EAVON
WA TR ERTBOR - EARR ) BUFAR
BAELHET TR BEEBRN RSN
7T SRR RS TR - MiRIEA B
LHEELE AR E R AHEERA -

M2017912A318 - REBRAEEBEDHA
R # 550,000,000 7C (2016512 A31H : A
R#41,504,00070) B &E FTRHE LR
BAHEERTIET - LMEAMZBITIVE
RNEBMERNEE - FEBHAWE280) ©
N £ B Bk m {2 {8 49 A R % 339,000,000 7T
(2016412 A 318 : A R # 339,000,000
TMETHEL AR BEECEH T
FEMEZHRE  UEADRBARYE
300,000,0007C (2016512 A31H : AR
300,000,0007T) BEFRAIIR IR - FEIE SRR 5E
28(D)(ii) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e RS R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017F 12531 H 1 F/E

22. Amount Due from Customers for Contract 22. EWEEAHNITEZIE

Work
At 31 December
M12831H
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Contracts in progress at the end of W RS R RIS L
the reporting period
Contract costs incurred plus recognised BEAALIKAMN
profits less recognised losses B HERm AR B R E R 1,558,251 799,098
Less: progress billings W EE A (1,473,147) (799,098)
85,104 =
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HBEREINA
Amounts due from contract customers WA B FE A 85,104 -
Amounts due to contract customers &8RP RIE - -
85,104 =

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group entered into
certain land development agreements with the local government
authorities, pursuant to these agreements, the Group is entitled to
receive from the local government authorities income arising from
land development arrangements by reference to the recoverable
costs incurred during the period plus an agreed cost-plus margin.
The Group is also entitled to additional income relating to these land
development activities in the form of marketing and promotional service
in accordance with the specific rate and basis set out in the relevant
service agreements entered into between the Group and the local

government authorities.

B R R A TR EYR A R A 7 China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

HE2016F12A31BIEFE - SEEM
BRI E T BB R - RIEZSH
# o EEE2E IR ATIRE AR 1
TERIP AR IEBUA - EE NG ERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

23. Properties Under Development for Sale 23. SERRPYE

Year ended 31 December

HZE1283101LEE
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARETT
At beginning of year F4 1,347,781 1,382,620
Additions NE 920,551 569,757
Transfer to completed properties for sale EREHEDR T - (447,994)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 39) BTN E AR (F3E39) - (156,602)
At end of year F®, 2,268,332 1,347,781

As at 31 December 2017, certain of the Group’s properties under
development for sale with carrying amount of approximately
RMB140,000,000 (31 December 2016: RMB332,671,000) were pledged to
banks to secure certain banking facilities granted to the Group, details
of which are set out in note 28(a). Certain of the Group’s properties
under development for sale with an aggregate carrying amount of
approximately RMB110,000,000 as at 31 December 2017 (31 December
2016: nil) was pledged to a trust company to secure certain other loan
to the Group, details of which are set out in note 28(b)()).

As at 31 December 2017, properties under development for sale with
carrying amount of approximately RMB1,573,525,000 (31 December
2016: RMB1,239,485,000) were expected to be completed after twelve
months from the end of the reporting period.

R2017F 128318 » AEEE THREE
18 #9 A B #140,000,0007T (2016512 A 31
B : AR#332,671,00070) BF&EHREFR
MECKBETIRIT  UMEARNEBERE
TFHRITRMEMIER - HRFBIAME
28(a) ° AEBR2017F12 31BN E TR
T 4818 #9 A R # 110,000,000 7T (2016 £ 12
A3MA - E)NGFERETMECERTE
AR fEAAEERESETHEMERD
AR - B AR FHE R KT EE28()() ©

R2017F12A31H - BHEEED BIAIA
[K#1,573,525,0007T (2016512 A318 + A
R #51,239,485,0007T ) 1975 6 S R M %
RSB A RAZ M 1218 A 2 122X -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e RS R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017F 12531 H 1 F/E

24.Trade Receivables 24. B 5 EENFKIE
At 31 December
M12A31H

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT

Receivables from land development T HhFAEETE B I FEURIE
arrangements 1,487,011 875,338
Receivables from properties for sale FEMENERGRIE 23,961 67,822
1,510,972 943,160
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B REREM - -
1,510,972 943,160

Analysis for reporting purposes as: MBESIFTAOT -

Current assets MENEE 781,000 943,160
Non-current assets IERBEE 729,972 -
1,510,972 943,160

As at 31 December 2017, certain of the Group’s receivables from land
development arrangements with carrying amount of approximately
RMB124,294,000 (31 December 2016: RMB91,413,000) were pledged to
a bank to secure certain loans to the Group, details of which are set out
in note 28(a).

The aging analysis of the Group's trade receivables, net of allowance
for doubtful debts presented based on revenue recognition date, at the
end of the reporting period are as follows:

20174128318 » AEBEEREEEHOA
R#124,294,0007T (2016F 12 A318 + A
R¥91,413,0007T) B8 T L F 5 TE B fE
W IEIEAR FARIT - BRI T AL E
BB TER - HRFFIEHNHE28@) ©

R & A RE - REBENE 5 EIEK
(kP 25 RERLE R ) RIBKREER A
HIWBREC AT AT

At 31 December

#A12831H
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥F T ARETT
0to 90 days 0ZE90K 579,030 576,666
181 to 365 days 1812 365K 285,323 295,369
1-2 years 18224 640,283 47,589
2-3 years 2E3F 5,779 23,536
Over 3 years 3FLAE 557 -
1,510,972 943,160

B R R A TR EYR A R A 7 China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited



24. Trade Receivables (continuea)

Nil of the trade receivable from land development arrangements as
at 31 December 2017 was settled up to the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements.

In respect of income arising from land development arrangements
for Longhe Park, the successful land buyers would enter into land
acquisition agreements with the local government authority after
public auction, tender or listing procedures. According to these land
acquisition agreements, the respective land buyers are usually granted
a credit period ranging from 1 to 3 months to settle the full amount
of land acquisition consideration with the local government authority.
The Group would normally be able to recover the full amount of trade
receivables from the government authority shortly after the local
government authority has received the full amount of land acquisition
consideration from the land buyers.

In respect of income arising from land development arrangements for
other industrial parks in other regions, the relevant local government
authorities and the Group have entered into service agreements,
according to which the Group would provide construction services to
the relevant local government authorities on a cost-plus basis. The
settlements will be made in accordance with the terms specified in the
agreements governing the relevant transactions. During the year ended
31 December 2017, in accordance with the negotiation with the local
government authorities on the settlement of the construction services,
the Group estimated that certain receivables as at 31 December 2017
will be settled after twelve months, part of which could be charged
with interests according to the relevant service agreements if the local
government authorities are not able to settle the outstanding balances
with the Group within the agreed credit term.

In respect of revenue arising from sales of properties and property
leasing, the Group normally does not grant any credit term to its
customers except for the sale of the whole block of buildings and
factory buildings developed by the Group.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

24. B 5 EWREIE @)

201712 AN AR EZ TMAEEENE
2R AR EREE AR M B RE
HERIELR -

FEETER T RABAENKRAME © &
REAHE - ARREEREF 2% - KB
HWE) B R R E BT 2R i KB
# o REZSIHUBHE  AROED
BEXBTFES—E=EANEES UM
77 BUT B RS T W ER(E - A& E
—RA M) BUF BRI E R 28
o 3 WO ARB A 2 12 W [ FE MR T 1
BB 5 REWOR -

FEAMME TEEEN T HHEEED KA
M - RIEALE D LR 5 BT 6P
BRIWNRGHE - ANEBRE AR A MAE
(A FE b 75 BT B PY IR R AR RS © 45
HIRIBE R B AR 5 81 E T R E B IR
HHETT - RELZ2017E12A31B ILEE -
B4R B b BT W A L B SR AR TS 48 B3 1T
Kt - AEBEETR2017412A3184
ETRUGEBRTZEA%BEE Wik
i BRTREIRER DB ENERERE
AEBBEREELES  BOTERGE
BRI HES

HREEMERMEHREREMS - BER
HEREERZENEFTREREN - AEH
—RIgmMERPREEMEED -
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24. Trade Receivables (continueq)

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not considered to be
impaired is as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017F 12531 H 1 F/E

24. B 5 EWFEIE @)

I AR 23 B IR E R B 5 8 W IR R R R
DT

At 31 December

M12831H

2017 2016

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARET R ARETT

Neither overdue nor impaired W B HASORE 873,478 935,096
Past due but not impaired: BEEBEY RRE

181 to 365 days past due #HR181 R E 365K 636,937 -

110 2 years past due BHE1 =26 = 8,064

2 to 3 years past due BHA2ZE 34 557 -

1,510,972 943,160

The trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired mainly
relate to receivables from the local government authority arising from
land development arrangements. The directors of the Company are of
the view that the credit risk is considered low as the land plots are sold
through public auction, tender or listing to qualified land buyers, whose
qualifications have been verified by the relevant local government
authorities and certain refundable deposits were received by the Group
from interested parties for partial investments in the land development
by the Group.

According to the agreements with the local government authorities
on the settlement of the construction services in respect of land
development arrangements for other industrial parks, the Group initially
granted a credit term of several months to the local government
authorities. During the current year, according to the negotiation
with the local government authorities, the Group estimated that the
receivables of RMB636,937,000 as at 31 December 2017 have been
overdue and part of which will be settled after twelve months from 31
December 2017. The directors of the Company are of the view that the
credit risk is considered low as the local government authorities have
good credit standing and strong economic background.

TEBHRENE ZERHAETEER
T FEE IR B YO T IRAT B R o R
FERARME  BRABEAEEREE
BHEBIBAZENNTEERLHER
HELS  MAKECRERBBEEAE
EES TFAEBREAREMNALTRIET
RERE - A ARREERREER
B imiE o

BEEREZ BT REAREM T EERE
T AEIEE WBRERBEENHE -

SEOFAEHBTEERLSEANE
A - AER - RIEEEHBFEENE
s REBGEN2017F12831HHAR
5 636,937,000 FE U 3K I8 B 80 5 1% 2615 15
H2017F12A3MBR+_EA%LEE - A
REIRTHES Rz A REBREEYS
= AUHARREERAEFEERRRE -

Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts: REREEIE
Year ended 31 December

BE12A31MALEE
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREF T
At the beginning of the year F4 = 1,409
Amounts written off as uncollectible H 8 A PT UL B B 5K IE - (1,409)
At end of the year FR = i

R EREETEERE BT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e RS R R AL (]

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

25. Prepayments and Other Receivables 25. AN RIER H A EFKIE
At 31 December
MA12A31H
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETFT
Prepayments: TEFIE ¢
— Prepayments for construction activities — B TERRIE 98,343 34,911
- Prepayments for taxes —TENHIE 31,317 -
— Others —Hfh 4,995 2,943
Other receivables: HAb RIS -
— Receivables on disposal of properties under —HEERERYENERTIE
development (note a) (Md3Ea) 136,288 136,288
— Compensation receivable (note b) — fEE R YGRIE (Mi3EDb) 119,214 119,214
— Loan receivables (note c) — R E K (MizEc) 40,000 61,453
- Deposits &€ 28,931 42,925
— Interest receivable —EUWF & 25,714 13,114
- Staff advances —BI8X% 10,332 9,391
— Receivable from disposal of a subsidiary — Y& — R B AR FIB = 18,213
- Others —Hh 30,011 52,309
525,145 490,761
Less: allowance for other receivables B A EUGRIE RS = -
525,145 490,761
Analysis for reporting purposes as: FRERBOOT
Current assets MENVEE 500,536 490,761
Non-current assets JFEMENEE 24,609 -
525,145 490,761
Notes: BE -
a. Certain pieces of land of the Group were required to sell back to the local a. ARENBAFERERENE  NEEI

government due to change in local business development plan. The local
government authorities will make compensation to the Group for the loss of
the respective properties under development.

b. The Group incurred loss in a land development sales transaction in 2006. b.
After continuing communication and negotiations with the relevant local
government authority by the Group for years, in 2015, the local government
authority agreed to make compensation to the Group in respect of the
above.

(e The loan to Shenzhen Shunfeng as at 31 December 2017 does not have @l
fixed repayment term, and is unsecured and interest-free.

DR LHE RSN ELGEBERT - B
WBRARESHARESERTYENE
HRAETTHIE -

AEEE20065F LB IER HERZ T
BETER - EAKBEZFEEBRTE
BEAE  EWRAFR20156F R EH® Ll
RS AR EETHE -

R2017412 A31 B T RYINEL R0 &R
I EREE R R B R R o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e RS R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017F 12531 H 1 F/E

26.Bank Balances and Restricted Bank 26.8817&8 KR IR4IBITES

Deposits
At 31 December
M12A31H
2017 2016
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Bank balances and cash in hand RITHER RIS 1,908,670 2,469,524
Time deposits TEHFR 1,006,500 999,500
Total bank deposits, bank balances and RITIER - MITHEBRK
cash in hand ReHRE 2,915,170 3,469,024
Less: Deposits pledged for banking facilities B BIRTTRE ME A
(note a) T (MzEa) (600,000) (700,000)
Deposits pledged for other loans (note b) REMERMERR
TR (MI5ED) (7,100) (6,000)
Deposits pledged for guarantees granted RRPEHERM
to customers (note c) ERIER (WEc) (54,838) (55,495)
Other restricted deposit for H 2R $177 30
property purchase LAREE W3 (136,015) -
2,117,217 2,707,529
Less: Non-pledged time deposits with original B REIEAR
maturity of three months or more HBim =18 A A /Y
when acquired EERTEHTR (406,500) -
Total cash and cash equivalents in the REBRSRERNNRERES
consolidated statements of cash flows ZLEMBE 1,710,717 2,707,529
Bank deposits, bank balances and cash in AT EBFHENRITER
hand denominated in: RITEREFRRS ¢
- RMB(functional currency of the — AR
relevant entities) (MBI EREMTHEEER) 2,836,676 3,351,072
- United States dollars ("US$") —ZEn(lZEx)) 74,303 103,167
- HK$ — B 4,037 14,785
- Singapore dollars ("SG$") —¥hnsg T ([ Tl) 154 -
2,915,170 3,469,024
Analysis for reporting purpose as: BBESITAOT -
- Current assets —mEVAE 2,908,070 2,869,024
- Non-current assets —JERBEE 7,100 600,000
2,915,170 3,469,024

P ERERELTIEEREAR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

26.Bank Balances and Restricted Bank 26.8817&8 R ZR4IEBITE

Deposits (continued) (@)

Notes: BT

a.  The amounts represented bank deposits in RMB pledged to banks as a. SEEEAREEERETRITRENIK
security for certain banking facilities granted to the Group (note 28(a)). M ARITE IR AR EEE R (FIFE28()) °

b.  The amounts represented deposits in RMB pledged to a trust fund company b. SEREAFEEEREMENRRERE MR
as security for the other loan facility to the Group (note 28(b)(i)). —RERELARIKHRNAREFER(HE

28(0)()) =

c.  The amounts represented bank deposits in RMB pledged to banks as C. SHEEEARITHALEERFRHE TR
security for certain mortgage loans granted by the banks to the Group’s BEZROERMABETEROAREIRIT
customers. The restricted bank deposits will be released upon receiving T - ZRHIBITIEZRERETAZE
the building ownership certificate of the respective properties by the banks BEVENFEEMEEEEAERIZIBER
from the customers as a pledge for security to the mortgage loans granted. TRE IR AR PR ) o

Bank balances and cash at 31 December 2017 were mainly R2017F12A318 @ RITEHREIRETE

denominated in RMB which is not a freely convertible currency in WAREESTE I ARBTEEERBR TS

the international market. The exchange rate of RMB is regulated by BEREHE ARBEXRIZIHABEKRAFNR

the government of the PRC and the remittance of these funds out of B BARELELTRANMBERRRSD

Mainland China is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by the B T B B RO SNEEFR ) o

government of the PRC.

The restricted bank deposits and bank balances carry prevailing market BB R B R ESE TR NETT

interest rates as follows: AT -

At 31 December

#A12A31H
2017 2016
% %
Interest rate per annum FF R 0.35-2.25 0.35-2.75
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e RS R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017F 12531 H 1 F/E

27.Trade and Other Payables 27. B 5 R HAESKIE
At 31 December
M12831H
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREBTT
Trade payables B 5 NRIE 880,843 773,224
Property, plant and equipment costs payable FERTZ BB AR RN 438,071 =
Investment properties construction costs payable JE{15% & M2 R A 210,472 231,885
Other deposits received BB WETS 28,784 27,942
Other payables EAb B FIE 47,635 67,117
Advance from government (note a) B (Fizta) 43,402 39,732
Refundable deposits (note b) AR EIRT S (FisED) 44,812 17,142
Accrued expenses FEEHRIS 207 800
1,694,226 1,157,842

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables based on services/
materials received date at the end of the reporting period:

AT RRIERRAERE - BHENHKE
IRBRERAR TS, MR ) B BT BRI 9
#r

At 31 December

M12H31H

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREF T
Less than 1 year DRE 266,668 469,999
1-2 years 1226 426,563 206,087
2-3 years 2E3F 135,426 69,493
Over 3 years 3FELE 52,186 27,645
880,843 773,224

Notes: Bt 5T

a. The amount represents interest-free cash advance received from the local
government authority to assist the Group's operations in the construction
and preparation works in respect of land infrastructure of land development
projects. Such cash advance is repayable to the local government authority
on demand.

b. The amounts represent refundable deposits received from third parties for
potential investments in the land developed by the Group.

178 B R ¥ T E AR A 7 China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

28. Bank and Other Borrowings 28. BT R H M AR
At 31 December
M12831H
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Bank loans IRITER
Secured (note a) AR (FizEa) 2,597,735 1,930,869
Other loans HAER
Secured/guaranteed (note b) B ER (D) 2,449,981 2,659,797
Unsecured (note ¢) AR (P 5Ee) 20,000 20,000
5,067,716 4,610,666
Total borrowings are repayable as follows: EFRENEETROT ¢
- Repayable on demand —REREE 140,202 20,000
- Repayable within one year — AR —FNEE 1,664,936 1,503,229
— Repayable over 1 year and within 2 years —BR—F R EMERER 1,042,437 1,022,713
— Repayable over 2 years and within 5 years —ARMER L TFNEE 2,135,198 2,051,220
— Repayable over 5 years —ARAFRER 84,943 13,504
5,067,716 4,610,666
Less: Amounts shown under current liabilities 5 : B BEE NI RHSE (1,805,138) (1,523,229)
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities R AEE N RNSEE 3,262,578 3,087,437
Floating rate borrowings R EER 2,009,568 1,333,727
Fixed rate borrowings TEBER 3,038,148 3,256,939
Interest-free borrowings EEEDR 20,000 20,000
5,067,716 4,610,666
Bank and other borrowings denominated in: AT SIS B EHERRTT R
HAbER
- RMB — AR 5,052,161 4,593,729
- HK$ — B 15,555 16,937
5,067,716 4,610,666
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017F 12531 H 1 F/E

28. Bank and Other Borrowings (continued)

28. RITREMWER @)

Notes: BT
a. The secured bank loans of the Group were secured by certain assets of the a. AEBNBRIFRTERUAEBETE
Group and their carrying amounts are as follows: EERER - HREEENT ¢
At 31 December
M12A31H
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETT
Property, plant and equipment (note 15) M - BB KR (iEE15) 44,452 46,747
Investment properties (note 16) BEME(HE16) 85,600 208,100
In progress land development arrangements HeELEEEE (FE21)

(note 21) 550,000 41,504
Properties under development for sale (note 23) FEERDYE(HE23) 140,000 332,671
Receivables from land development arrangements 36 + 5 2% 18 B #9 e Y7108

(note 24) (Fi5E24) 124,294 91,413
Restricted bank deposits (note 26) SR HIRITER(HT3526) 600,000 700,000
Equity of a subsidiary —KFRAIRER 620,183 -

2,164,529 1,420,435
b.  The details of secured/guaranteed other loans of the Group are as follows: b. AEEFER FEROEMERFBET :
At 31 December
MA12A31H
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Loans from trust fund companies (note i) EREES R AE R (M) 878,914 984,929
Loans from other third parties (note i) HithE =1 B (M) 1,571,067 1,674,868
2,449,981 2,659,797
()  In November 2015, the Group entered into a loan agreement with ()  M2015F 1A AEEHE—RHET
a trust fund company, pursuant to which loans amounting to %igzq%iiszﬁt”f
f = T ARIRASER L —F
RMBéOO,OOO,OOvaeVre granted by this truost fund company to the E ¥ 600,000,000 7% £ & % - R B
Group at a effective interest rate of 10.936% per annum. The Group R 4E ) & 10, 936%;+ 8. REFR
repaid part of this loan amounting to RMB300,000,000 in December 2017$ 12 B &Y B ARK
2017, the remaining of this loan amounting to RMB300,000,000 will 300,000,0007T * i ﬁ?T WARE
[ ; 300,000,000#% 742018411 A &£ -
be repaid in November 2018. In March 2017, the Group entered into g/ e
o o o b o . o 2017238 - AEBRRERE
ang er loan agreemen wi e trust fun cpmpany, pursuant to S AT BRATY ARG -
which loan amounting to RMB300,000,000, with a three-year term I ZEEESATAAERSE
at an effective interest of 6.99% per annum. As at 31 December —% AR 300,000,000t E K
2017, bank deposits of the Group amounting to RMB6,000,000 (31 Eﬁﬁ;fo ' fi‘i?f? %;;93
X ’ B e IR20174F1 1H > AXEEL
December 2016: RMB6,000,000) were pledged to this trust fund (B AR #6,000,0007T (20162512 A
company. 318 : AR#6,000,0007T) #0977 Z
RIER o
P ERERELTIEEREAR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

28. Bank and Other Borrowings (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

b. The details of secured/guaranteed other loans of the Group are as follows:
(Continued)

()

(in

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2016, a trust loan with the principal amount of
RMB200,000,000 was secured by the equity interest held by the
Group in Langfang VAST Sheng Shi Investment and investment
properties of the Group with an aggregate carrying amount
RMB565,700,000. The Group fully repaid the loan in June 2017.

In May 2016, the Group entered into a loan agreement with a trust
fund company amounting to RMB250,000,000 with a three-year term
at a contractual interest rate of 11% per annum, the Group repaid
part of this loan amounting to RMB75,000,000.00 in June 2017. This
loan was secured by certain investment properties of the Group with
an aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMB250,000,000 as
at 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016: RMB565,700,000).

In February 2017, the Group received a loan of RMB110,000,000 from
a trust fund company, with a two-year term at interest rate of 5.8%
per annum after taking into consideration of certain initial transaction
costs, secured by certain properties under development for sale of
the Group with an aggregate carrying amount of RMB110,000,000
and bank deposits of the Group amounting to RMB1,100,000. And
the loan was also guaranteed by a subsidiary of the Group.

Included therein is a loan from a non-financial institution amounting
to RMB2,400,000 as at 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016:
RMB6,600,000), which is guaranteed by Langfang VAST.

Included therein is an entrusted loan from a non-financial institution
in Mainland China of RMB219,000,000 at a effective interest rate of
11.82% per annum as at 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016:
RMB369,000,000) which was secured by the Group's investment
properties with carrying amount of approximately RMB55,700,000
(31 December 2016: RMB58,100,000) and secured by a third party’s
building.

28. RITREAMWER @)

BRE - (B%)

b AKEAERBRAK M ERFEN
T« ()

0]

(in

(8&)

R20165F12A31H - —EX&£AA
R #200,000,0007TT ) E K2 AR E
B3 BB i AR R A MO AR A
MAEERFENEEEERARE
565,700,0007T K 1% & ¥ 2 (EHK 38 -
AEBER2017F6ATREEZE

Eo
TA °©

R2016F5 8 » AEBE—RE
RESAAETSEAARYE
250,000,000t M EF 2 - A=
FARBERFEFR1%TE - K
EBER2017F6AEEIDPERA
R #75,000,000.007C ° 12017412
A318  ZEFRUAEEFENIER
E{EE A AR%250,000,00075(2016
F12A318 : AR¥565,700,0007T)
METIREMEER -

R2017F28  AEEHR#—KRER
E & A RHE A AR 110,000,0007T
WEXR - BHRE  WHEFRET
183X 5 B AN 14 12 BR 4 F R 5.8% 5T
B UERNAARERZANREDZE
A AR#110,000,000TH & T E
BEEPYE R ARE1,100,0007T K
SRITERIEEIR - ZERIBEASE
E—RIWBRRIEER -

R2017F12 83180 » EF g #E—
ERCREEEBASEAARE
2,400,0007C(20165 128318 : AR
#56,600,0007T) OB K 5% f& B R
B RTRRMER o

R2017412A31H - HhBiE—%
) FR B N b I < R £ A A S R
EN2BHNBERF R ENEEA
AER#219,000,000 L ZEE R &
EBRFERE11.82%51 £.(2016F 128
318 : AR#369,000,0007T) © 2R
EXHASBERAENEABERA
R #55,700,0007T H#% & #1 3 (2016
F12A318 : AR#58,100,0007T)
R—EHEE=FHANYEEER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017F 12531 H 1 F/E

28. Bank and Other Borrowings (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

b. The details of secured/guaranteed other loans of the Group are as follows:
(Continued)

(ii)

(Continued)

In June 2016, a subsidiary of the Group, Langfang Shengshi
Tonghui Park Development Co., Ltd. (“Shengshi Tonghui”) entered
into an agreement with a non-financial institution in Mainland
China pursuant to which the non-financial institution agreed to
contribute RMB700,000 to Shengshi Tonghui as capital injection
and loan amounting to RMB999,300,000 was granted to the Group.
Subsequent to this capital injection, the registered capital of Shengshi
Tonghui was RMB1,000,000 and 70% equity interest of to Shengshi
Tonghui was held by the non-financial institution accordingly. Per
the agreement, Langfang VAST agreed to repurchase and the non-
financial institution agreed to sell the 70% equity interest in Shengshi
Tonghui at a cash consideration of RMB700,000 in July 2021 and
Langfang VAST has the right to early redeem all the equity interest
from 2019 afterwards. Shengshi Tonghui is accounted for as a
wholly owned subsidiary, taking into account that the Group can still
exercise control over Shengshi Tonghui, the compulsory repurchase
arrangement and the non-financial institution does not entitle to any
variable returns (including profit distribution) from Shengshi Tonghui
but receives fixed interest income, the transaction as a whole has
been considered as a loan amounting to RMB1,000,000,000 with
a five-year term at an effective interest rate of 8.67% per annum
in these consolidated financial statements to reflect the economic
substance of the arrangement. This loan was secured by the equity
interest held by the Group in Shengshi Tonghui and guaranteed
by Langfang VAST, Langfang City Property Development Co., Ltd.
(“Langfang City Property”) and China VAST.

In June 2016, the Group entered into a loan agreement with a third-
party company amounting to RMB300,000,000 with a five-year term
at an effective interest rate of 8.63% per annum, secured by certain
in progress land development arrangements of the Group with an
aggregate carrying amount of RMB339,000,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB339,000,000).

In July 2017, the Group received an entrusted loan from a non-
financial institution in Mainland China of RMB48,700,000 at a
contractual interest rate of 5.8065% per annum, secured by the
equity interest of an associate held by the Group.

28. RITREMWER @)

Bt - (B

b. AEEFER FEROEMGERFEN
T: (%)

(ii)

R EREETEERE BT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

()
R2016566 A + A& B i B 2 7] BB
PRt BREREREIEEAR
AR ([BHEE]) B -—RPER
WIS BMEBIT I HRE - Bt
ZHBRERRTEETEAR
%700,0007C © 3 A AN S B R 4 A
R #999,300,000 THE K - &
% BRUEtBENEMEAAEAR
#1,000,0007C - ZIES B ER
L A B BB 70% AR AE - ARIBH
# o BB RERZIES REE S B
A Z 7202147 A LA A R #700,000
THSEEEREEZREREN
B 70% A B R A R A
FE2019 5 14 12 Al B B8 F B AR 4 -
FT AR S B AT AR R EE 1T
HE - RBESRARNARNE
BHBAR - IR BT HERIE
SREESEERE S BT REMNT
AIER(BIFHEFIDE) - RATUE
ELWA  AREZZHNEEER
E o BEXHNREVERRAE
WEAEBHAT  AFFES67%
MERAMESE  2BEAARYE
1,000,000,000 7T H) B ° Z B 5 IA
252 (8 Fr 5 AR IR EE MY AR R IR AR -
W BREE R 2~ BREA T R M EE
FEARAR([BHWERE])
MR B RRRESER -

R20166F6H  REBE-—KE=
7 A 8% 7] A R # 300,000,000 7T
WEXRGE - ARRAFIRFEMNE
8.63% M EBRFIELT B+ ZEHIAKR
£ ERE#E A A K% 339,000,000
TL(2016F12A31H + ARM
339,000,0007T) K& T 6 -0 5
BEER -

R2017F78  AEEHR—RFE
N EFES REEBEA—ZEARKE
48,700,000t EFTE R - BIZRA
[ F 2 5.8065%51 8. © X EFIAA
SEBAN—REE AR ERIE
IR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

28. SRITREMER @)

Bt : (B%)

28. Bank and Other Borrowings (continued)

Notes: (Continued)
c.  The details of unsecured other loan of the Group are as follows: C. AEENEIKREMERNAMANT

At 31 December

M12831H
2017 2016
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TF T ARETT
Loan from a third party (note i) FE=HER (M) 20,000 20,000

HE2017E K20165E12 A3 BMHE
—HERRESEREBRENRE

8o

(i) The above loan from third party as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 (0}
was interest-free and repayable on demand.

The ranges of effective interest rates on the Group’s borrowings are as REBEFNERFZGEOT -

follows:

At 31 December

#M12831H
2017 2016
% %
Effective interest rate per annum: TERREF|X
Floating rate borrowings ZEER 4.90-8.63 4.90-8.83
Fixed rate borrowings TEEMER 4.87-11.84 4.87-11.84

AARBFHER)Z BE W TSR IES
B ARIRITAM B &R KRG E R o LUE

Interest on borrowings denominated in RMB at floating rates is based on

the borrowing rates announced by the People’s Bank of China. Interest on
borrowings denominated in HK$ at floating rate is based on the Hongkong
Interbank Offered Rate and repriced monthly.

BEHERZ B EROF B RIRIEFRRT
B EETEN  YEAENEE-
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29.Convertible Bonds and Notes and

Derivative

On 30 December 2015, the Company issued a three-year term US$
6% convertible bonds due 2018 in an aggregate principal amount of
US$50,000,000 (the “Convertible Bonds”). In addition to which, on
the same date, the Company also issued a three-year term US$12%
secured guaranteed notes due 2018 in an aggregate principal amount
of US$50,000,000 (the “Notes”) to the same holder of the Convertible
Bonds. The total net proceeds from the issue of the Convertible Bonds
and the Notes are used for the purpose of capital expenditure and
general working capital. The Convertible Bonds and the Notes are jointly
guaranteed by the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders and secured by
the pledge of entire equity interests of Shing Cheong Holdings Ltd.
(“Shing Cheong Holdings"), China Vast International Ltd.("China Vast
International”), King Billion Corporation Ltd. (“King Billion”) and Sheng
Shi International (HK) Development Co., Ltd. (“Sheng Shi").

The Convertible Bonds, upon issue, will constitute direct,
unsubordinated, unconditional and secured obligations of the Company
and shall at all times rank pari passu in all respects and without any
preference or priority among themselves.

The Notes, upon issue, will constitute direct, general, unconditional,
unsubordinated and secured obligations of the Company and shall at all
times rank pari passu without any preference among themselves.

R EREETEERE BT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017F 12531 H 1 F/E

29. IERESFREBURITTE

TR

201512 A30H ' "ARETTASLE
%850,000,000% 7T + FF E 6% - BAR3F
WA ERES([TEE]) - ZER—K ' A
RIEMAEENFAART T ACLRE
50,000,000 7T + FFFL12% + HAR3IF I
12018 F RIS A EMEREEE (1
¥E])  c AARBBHITABERDER
ZHETEREFEAEAAAT R — B
BE®  ZFHEBERMESHARKE
REAG R A EER - WEPHSEBERD
A([HAERR]) - FRERERZERER
AR ([FREREE]) - KFEERAQA
(THFDARBHERR(FEB)ERERA
Al([ B ERR ) 2 IR IEARE -

AEERETREBRARTNEE - ¥F
®RE - BIGHEREEREET  BBRHAE
TH-EZBERSMA - Ktz EIEE
B RBIHERRT -

EEBENETEREBRARRNEE - —
R EGM  FRERBERECT LB
—HEARSMAL - Bt 2 I EAEAE
AR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

29.Convertible Bonds and Notes and
Derivative (Continued)
The principal terms of the follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Conversion Right

The holder of the Convertible Bonds has the right to convert all
or any part of the principal amount of the Convertible Bonds into
ordinary shares of the Company at any time from the beginning
on, and including, the issue date of the Convertible Bonds up
to the close of business on the maturity date of the Convertible
Bonds.

For the purpose of determining the number of ordinary shares to
be issued on conversion of the Convertible Bonds, the relevant
principal amount of the Convertible Bonds to be converted shall
be translated into HK$ at the exchange rate of US$1.00:HK$7.75.
The price at which ordinary shares of the Company will be issued
upon conversion (the “Conversion Price”) will initially be HK$3.10
per share, but will be subject to adjustment for, among other
things, consolidation, reclassification or subdivision, capitalisation
of profit or reserves, distributions, rights issues of shares or
options over shares, dividend adjustments and other dilutive
events.

Final Redemption

Unless previously redeemed, converted, purchased and cancelled
as provided herein, the Company shall pay to each holder of the
Convertible Bonds on the maturity date of the Convertible Bonds
an aggregate price of (i) 118% of the outstanding principal amount
on the maturity date of the Convertible Bonds, (i) all accrued and
unpaid interest in respect of such Convertible Bonds and unpaid
default interest in respect of such Convertible Bonds, if any, and (iii)
all other related outstanding amounts payable by the Company to
the holder of such Convertible Bonds.

Convertible Bond Holder's Redemption Rights
for Events of Default

Should any of the events of default set out in the agreements of
the Convertible Bonds occurs, the holder of the Convertible Bonds
may elect to require the Company to redeem the outstanding
Convertible Bonds in full in the amount equivalent to the sum of
(i) 118% of the outstanding principal amount of the Convertible
Bonds, (ii) all accrued and unpaid interest in respect of such
Convertible Bonds and unpaid default interest in respect of such
Convertible Bonds, if any, and (iii) all other related outstanding
amounts payable by the Company to the holder of such
Convertible Bonds.

29. EBREFREBURITE
oy g =R
A ENEEAREROT :

(a)

(b)

(c)

L E Y

AT ER A AN BRI AT S R BT
2z ARE(ReE) THEDHA 2
¥EAR I BEREABRHNESR
AR FHRBIRE S T HER T2 5
REMBHREELSBHRALRE
P& o

RTHEEMBEITOREBERE RN T
BEREE - HENTEERASRR
1,003 7T S #7758 TTEVE RIT R
BREITEHE - AR RN E IR
TTEE B E ([ERE R HEE
RERII0ET - BEZERBERE
(B Elm)ast EnEzdn - Ik
mRFEBNEARE - ERITA - R
SAREHIRNTTRE RN ARFH M
BinthiE A g mAEITHRE -

RATEE

BROEERIMER - 8k BE R
o BAARFREREMBEREEE
FRBANTIIAEM : (WVEAEE
REHAMKREERNSREN118%
(NERRBENMA R RSHE
Kt A R R R A 5 FE AT RO R TR 4
MBE) + RNRRFIRERZ HX
HRERA AT ER A A NNME
HAARNFOR -

REFEARREENSH
BB E R

MR EROEMH G - THEFBA
EEEBRAARNEYERSBEER
Tl AR EE : (VEAE
EEREERSEN118%  (DBA
R R O T AT AR R -
RAAR A S E R ORTROF S
(mA) : R(iyARRERA B HE
B AR B R FOR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017F 12531 H 1 F/E

29.Convertible Bonds and Notes and
Derivative continued)
The details of the redemption of the Notes are as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Final Redemption

Unless previously redeemed, purchased and cancelled, the
Company shall pay to each holder of the Notes on the maturity
date of the Notes an aggregate price of (i) the outstanding
principal amount on the maturity date of the Notes, (i) all accrued
and unpaid interest in respect of the Notes and unpaid default
interest of the Notes, if any, and (iii) all other related outstanding
amounts payable by the Company to the holder of such Notes.

Company'’s Early Redemption Rights

The Company shall have the right to redeem all or any part of the
outstanding principal amount of the Notes at any time during the
period between the day immediately after the second anniversary
of the issue date of the Notes and the last day immediately
preceding the maturity date of the Notes, provided that no event
of default has occurred on or before the date of full payment
of the redemption price by the Company to the holder of the
Notes. The redemption price payable by the Company for such
early redemption shall be the amount equivalent to the sum of (i)
the outstanding principal amount of the Notes to be redeemed,
(i) all accrued and unpaid interest accrued from the issue date
of the Notes or (if any interest payment date has occurred) the
latest interest payment date up to (and including) the date of full
payment of the redemption price by the Company to the relevant
holder of the Notes and unpaid default interest (if any) accrued,
and (iii) all other related outstanding amounts payable by the
Company to the holder of such Notes.

Note Holder's Redemption Rights for Events of
Default

Should any of the events of default set out in the agreements of
the Notes occurs, the holder of the Notes may elect to require
the Company to redeem the Notes in full in an amount equivalent
to the sum of (i) the outstanding principal amount of the Notes,
(ii) all accrued and unpaid interest accrued from the issue date
of the Notes up to (and including) the date of full payment of the
redemption price by the Company to such holder of the Notes and
unpaid default interest (if any) accrued, and (iii) all other related
outstanding amounts payable by the Company to the holder of
such Notes.

29. MEREFREBEURITTE
BT B

REENTESRIGEK

(a)

(b)

(c)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

29.Convertible Bonds and Notes and
Derivative (continued)
The terms of the Convertible Bonds and the Notes are negotiated with
the holder collectively and the issuance of the Convertible Bonds and
the Notes are inter-conditional, accordingly, the total net proceeds
received by the Company from the issue of the Convertible Bonds and
Notes have been allocated to a debt component of the Convertible
Bonds, the Notes and the derivative component in its initial recognition
as follows:

@

Debt component is initially measured at fair value amounted to
approximately RMB583,652,000, which represents the present
value of the contractually determined stream of future cash
flows discounted at the prevailing market interest rate at that
time applicable to instruments of comparable credit status and
providing substantially the same cash flows with the Convertible
Bonds and the Notes. It is subsequently measured at amortised
cost by applying an effective interest rate of 16.10% per annum
after considering the effect of the transaction costs;

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the economic
characteristics and risks of the early redemption option of
the Notes are closely related to the host debt contract of the
Notes. Therefore, the Company does not account for the early
redemption option separately; and

Derivative component, which is equal to the difference between
the net proceeds of the Convertible Bonds and the Notes received
and the fair value of the debt components of the Convertible
Bonds and the Notes, is measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss.

29. MEBELEREZBEURITE
BT R
AERES AL ENIERS BEEEE

[

HKAVERK - WEATEBESREEE

HEITREA ERGMEN - Bt - AR
MR EREECREMSRBFEROR
A RRIRA T I A D EE A RRES
MEERND  EEERITETAD :

BEHIDMBERRAFEHOARE
583,652,0007T51 & © %<& FENA HIFT
BEARRBESRRITREHIRE - §
BITREAEARNELUERBRILETS
REAREHRES R DEBABAERE
SRMNITAENERNMISHE - BEE
DHIZ G R AR AR TR
" EEEIRHEAMFIRT © Z
O EBRENEH16.10%

RAEFERR MHREBELR
EERp B R EREDXEN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e RS R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017F 12531 H 1 F/E

29.convertible Bonds and Notes and 29. MEBRE4XREELRITE

Derivative (continued)
The movements of the debt component and derivative component of
the Convertible Bonds and the Notes for 2017 and 2016 are set out

BT R
20174 2016 E AT HRE A BA 2 ER
S BEITE T AR S BB :

below:
Debt Derivative
component  component
of the of the
Convertible Convertible
Bonds Bonds The Notes
AEE AEE
a8&8s TEIARS EE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
As at 31 December 2015 2015124318 283,377 62,643 296,337
Fair value change recognised in BamRPRERN
profit or loss N EE = (5,302) =
Interest charged for the year FANERFE 49,512 = 49,512
Interest paid BASHHFLE (30,528) - (30,528)
Exchange realignment b H SRR 17,089 4,278 17,969
As at 31 December 2016 201612 A31H 319,450 61,619 333,290
Fair value change recognised BamRPERN
in profit or loss NEEE) - 1,513 =
Interest charged for the year FRFERF B 51,650 - 51,650
Interest paid BT AEFLE (29,944) - (29,944)
Exchange realignment PE H 8% (16,962) (3,578) (17,766)
As at 31 December 2017 2017412 A31H 324,194 59,554 337,230
No conversion or redemption of the Convertible Bonds and the Notes AEEREMEEEHE2017F12A318H

has occurred up to 31 December 2017.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e RS R R AL (]

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

30. Share Capital

Share capital of the Group includes only issued and fully paid share
capital of the Company as set out below.

30. lA
AR ERAR B EA T30 BT L
RARFRA -

Equivalent
Nominal nominal
Number of value of value of
ordinary ordinary ordinary
shares shares shares
ZER ZER HER
R HE LEREE
HK$'000 RMB'000
BT ARETT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each: EREESE0.01 T TR
As at 31 December 2016 and H2016F 128318 &
31 December 2017 2017%12A31H 5,000,000,000 50,000 39,792
Issued and fully paid: BITWHRE -
As at 31 December 2016 and MR2016F12A318 &
31 December 2017 2017%12A31H 1,637,641,000 16,376 13,031
31.Reserves 31. #E

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for
the reporting period are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

The principal reserves of the Group consist of the following:

(i) Merger reserve
The merger reserve in these consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 represented the share
capital of Shing Cheong Holdings.

AEBEREHEANRESRARAE
HEE  ERaERBPRPETIIR -

AEEFBNHEERIETISE
(i) Ept#E
2017412 A31 H &20164 12 A 31

REREHMIBMORE P IR A GHEE
IR E AR o
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31. Reserves (continued)

Share premium at 31 December 2017 represented share premium
of the Company. The share premium account is governed by the
Cayman Companies Law and may be applied by the Company
subject to the provisions, if any, of its memorandum and articles
of association in (a) paying distributions or dividends to members;
(b) paying up unissued shares of the Company to be issued to
equity shareholders as fully paid bonus shares; (c) the redemption
and repurchase of shares (subject to the provisions of section 37
of the Cayman Companies Law); (d) writing-off the preliminary
expenses of the Company; and (e) writing-off the expenses of, or
the commission paid or discount allowed on, any issue of shares
or debentures of the Company.

No distribution or dividend may be paid to the equity shareholders
out of the share premium account unless immediately following
the date on which the distribution or dividend is proposed to be
paid, the Company will be able to pay its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business.

Pursuant to the relevant rules and regulations in Mainland China,
those subsidiaries of the Group established in Mainland China are
required to transfer no less than 10% of their profits after taxation,
after offsetting any prior years' losses as determined under the
relevant accounting policies and financial regulations applicable
to entities established in Mainland China, to the statutory reserve
until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered capital.
The transfer to this reserve must be made before the distribution
of a dividend to equity owners of these subsidiaries located in
Mainland China. Statutory reserve is non-distributable other
than in liquidation and can be used to make good previous
years' losses, if any, and may be converted into paid-in capital
in proportion to the existing interests of equity owners, provided
that the balance after such conversion is not less than 25% of the
registered capital.

FEIRREEMEREARR AT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e RS R R AL (]

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

32. Capital Risk Management 32. EXRERER
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will REEERHER AR E B S r] #8
be able to continue as a going concern; to maintain the confidence BEKE  @EERANEGED - WRESE
of creditors; to sustain future development of the Group entities BEESRERZTE  SHEETEL
and to maximize the return to the owners of the Company through RRER - UARAKRAGHEBE ASRZEA
optimisation of debt and equity balances. B2k -
The capital structure of the Group consists of borrowings, convertible REBHERNEERAEBNER(FNBRIR
bonds and notes, net of cash and cash equivalents, and total equity of SRS EEY)  ERESNRNEEME
the Group. AR,
The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular AArEEEeTHBRENERE - 1E45
basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company consider WIBBZE—Z)  NAFIEESEEER
the cost of capital and the risks associated with the capital. Based on KA KR EARIBERRE - BRIEANREE
recommendations of the directors of the Company, the Group will HiEs  AEEEEBRRNIRE - B
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of dividend, BN - BITHEREBIBRAER - AEE
raise of new capital, issue of new debt or the reduction of existing HiBpa g ARGeE -
debts.
33. Financial Instruments 33.MEITA
a. Categories of financial instruments a. HMBEIAER
At 31 December
M12831H
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥F T ARETT
Financial assets at amortised cost RIS R T BB
Trade receivables B Z WA 1,510,972 943,160
Other receivables At YR 380,158 443,516
Amounts due from related parties FE IS RRES 5 s IE 160,395 1,209
Restricted bank deposits ZRRERITIFRR 797,953 761,495
Bank balances and cash BITER LR 2,117,217 2,707,529
Available-for-sale financial assets at cost FZL A AR 7 (B 5l AR A AT £
less impairment HEHBEEE
Available-for-sale investment AR ERE 3,300 3,300
Financial liabilities at amortised cost RIS A S BRI TS B E
Trade and other payables B 5 Ik E eI RIE 1,698,881 1,156,894
Amounts due to related parties FERAESE A 300,844 67,036
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER 5,067,716 4,610,666
Convertible Bonds and Notes AERES R RR 661,424 652,740
Financial liabilities at fair value through FAB A N FEFER)
profit or 10ss HHEE
Derivative PTHEMBET A 59,554 61,619
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33. Financial Instruments continued)

The Group’s financial instruments consisted of bank balances
and cash, restricted bank deposits, trade receivables, other
receivables, available-for-sale investment, amounts due from/
to related parties, trade and other payables, bank and other
borrowings, Convertible Bonds and Notes and derivative. Details
of the financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments include interest
rate risk, credit risk, foreign currency risk and liquidity risk. The
Company does not have any significant exposure to financial
risks.

The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
directors of the Company manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
fixed-rate trade receivable, other receivables, Convertible Bonds
and Notes (note 29) and fixed-rate bank and other borrowings (note
28).

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk due
to the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate on cash
and cash equivalents and bank and other borrowings carried at
prevailing market interest rates based on or by reference to the
interest rates promulgated by the People’s Bank of China, London
Interbank Offered Rate and Hongkong Interbank Offered Rate.

The Group currently does not have a specific policy to manage
their interest rate risk and has not entered into interest rate swaps
to hedge its exposure, but will closely monitor its interest rate
exposure in the future.

The variable rate sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable rate
borrowings at the end of the reporting period and assumed that
the amounts outstanding at the end of reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year. Bank balances are excluded form
sensitivity analysis as the directors of the Company consider that
the exposure of cash flow interest rate risk arising from variable
rate bank balances in insignificant.

FEIRREEMEREARR AT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

33. Financial Instruments (continued) 33. M T A
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. MERMREEEEZERBK®

policies (continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued) Fl = B ()
Sensitivity analysis BRE DT
If interest rates on borrowings had been 50 basis points (2016: EERHEE FiZes T BS0E 2
100 basis points) higher or lower and all other variables were held (20164 : 100EBL) MAAEEMEE
constant, there would have no impact on the Group'’s total equity HWIETE > B THREFEI  KEH
apart from retained profits and the potential effect on profit after BRI S RS2  MEBEF
tax, after taking into account the interest capitalisation effect, for BERNML T ER  JSMEHABETFE
the each of reporting period is as follows: EAEBERENT

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31ALEE
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARETT
Change in post-tax profit for the year F A& B B 4,059 5,292
Other price risk HitEE R
The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its derivatives. AEBERITETRAEZREEBEHERE
However, no sensitivity analysis is presented as the directors of %o AT - BARRESFTRBTED
the Company consider the impact is insignificant. BR - WARIITERESHT
Foreign currency risk HMEE R B
The carrying amount of the Group's foreign currency denominated AEBNERE ML REFLAIMNES
monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of each of BENEEEEREEAGBKRAMABN
reporting period are as follows: N
At 31 December
M12A31H
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT ARETT
Assets BE
uss$ ET
Bank balances and cash RITREB IR S 74,303 103,167
HKS ok
Bank balances and cash RITREB LIRS 4,037 14,785
Amounts due from related parties FEUR BRES 5 3 IE 1,795 1,209
SG$ T
Bank balances and cash RITHER RS 154 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e RS R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017F 12531 H 1 F/E

33. Financial Instruments continued)

b.

B R R A TR EYR A R A 7 China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
Foreign currency risk (Continued)

3. I AW

BREREEEERBE
SN JEL B ()

At 31 December

M12831H
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARET T
Liabilities =R
uss$ ETT
Convertible Bonds and Notes AIEIRESER 661,424 652,740
HKS ok
Bank and other borrowings HRITREMER 15,555 16,937
Amounts due to a related party FEA— 2 B8 5 508 272,309 44,657
Sensitivity analysis BREE DT
The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuation in US$, HK$ and AEBHETZERRIRBEET - BER

SG$ against RMB.

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% (2016:
5%) increase and decrease in the exchange rates of RMB
against relevant foreign currencies. 5% (2016: 5%) represents
the directors' assessment of the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the end of reporting period for a 5%
(2016: 5%) change in foreign currency rates. A positive (negative)
number below indicates an increase (decrease) in post-tax
profit for the year where RMB strengthens against the relevant
currency. For a 5% (2016: 5%) weakening of RMB against the
relevant currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact
on the profit for the year.

OB AR HIEE B -

TREIAE@ME AR K BRAINE
fER FF & T B5% (20165 : 5%) 2
BRRE RIS © 5% (20165 : 5%) K&
EERHINEEREEEZEFHNT
o GURE D ITEBRIEAINEHED
MAZTEREIER - W SRS HAM
AE R LASNEE B - _EFH5% (20164F -
5%)ERE T - TIEH(BH)IE
AR HGRINEE AR - FRE
BFBEREMMCRD) - ARBRER
#555% (20164 : 5%) 85 - HENE
FBEBREENERTE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

33. Financial Instruments (continueq) 33. B I A
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. MEEKBEEBEREEK®

policies (continued)
Foreign currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

1 BEE JeEL Bk (4)

HRES (R

Year ended 31 December

HBZ12831HLLEE
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARET T
Increase in profit for the year (US$) FRE G (ETT) 30,276 28,707
Increase in profit for the year (HK$) F RGN CEE) 13,979 107
Decrease in profit for the year (SG$) F R R A (BTN ) (8) -

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk
as the year end exposure at the end of reporting period does not
reflect the exposure during that particular year.

Credit risk

At the end of reporting period, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties and
financial guarantees issued by the Group is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position and the
amount of contingent liabilities in relation to financial guarantee
issued by the Group as disclosed in note 36.

The Group’s credit risk primarily relates to the Group's trade
receivables, other receivables, bank balances and restricted bank
deposits. The credit risk on bank balances and deposits is limited
because the bank balances and restricted bank deposits are
maintained with large commercial banks in Mainland China and
Hong Kong.

AABEERR > ARBREHRE
REFNFREARIT TRERZFENR
2 AUBURED T T EERREAR
SNE LR o

FERR

NEREHEERE - AEEREY
FREBITEERASBEELIEE
RMEEHARERZI BRI &
REERBKBHFAHBRARAH
BIREHRV B EENREERNME
36FT# A B AR B (F B SRR e X
faES®E-

AEENEERRTIEHAAEENE
SRR - ERIIR - SR1TH
PR RBIRITERERE - ARRTT
B R ZRBIRITEREEFRFEAK
BE R BB AR ERTT - EUARIR
THEBREERNEERREBR -

Annual Report 2017 %R

195



196

33. Financial Instruments continued)

Credit risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2017, 98% of trade receivables were from
income derived from land development arrangements (31
December 2016: 93%), details of which are set out in note 24, and
therefore there is concentration of risk as all these receivables
would be settled by the local government authorities to the Group
after the local government authorities received the proceeds from
the successful land buyers and/or by other income of the relevant
local government authorities. As for Longhe Park, the directors
of the Company consider that the credit risk is low as in progress
land development arrangements is sold through public auction,
tender or listing to qualified land buyers, whose qualifications are
verified by relevant government authorities and buyers have paid
a portion of proceeds to the Group as performance bonds which is
disclosed as refundable deposits received for land auction, tender
and listing in note 27. As for other industrial parks, the directors
of the Company consider that the credit risk is low as the rising
land prices, driven by the fine location of the parks and the strong
economic growth of the local areas, will enhance the capacity of
the local government authorities to pay for the services provided
by the Group.

In addition, the Group has concentration of credit risk in respect of
trade receivables in respect of sale of the whole block of buildings
to entities controlled by local government authorities (note 24) and
other receivables from the local government authority (note 25(a)
and (b)). In order to minimize the credit risk on trade receivables
and other receivables, the directors of the Company continuously
monitor the credit quality and financial conditions of those debtors
and the level of trade receivables and other receivables to ensure
that follow-up action is taken timely to recover overdue debts.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group's credit risk in respect of the above is significantly reduced.

FEIRREEMEREARR AT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017F 12531 H 1 F/E

3. I AW
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

33. Financial Instruments (continued) 3.8 TR

Credit risk (continued)

For properties that are presold but development has not been
completed, the Group typically provides guarantees to banks
in connection with the customers’ borrowing of mortgage
loans to finance their purchase of the properties for an amount
up to 70% of the purchase price of the individual property. If
a purchaser defaults on the payment of its mortgage during
the period of guarantee, the bank holding the mortgage may
demand the Group to repay the outstanding loan and any interest
accrued thereon. Under such circumstances, the Group is able
to forfeit the sales deposit received and resell the repossessed
properties. Therefore, the directors of the Company consider
the Group would likely recover any loss incurred arising from the
guarantees. The directors of the Company consider the credit risk
exposure to financial guarantees provided to property purchasers
is limited because the facilities are secured by the properties
and the market price of the properties is usually higher than the
guaranteed amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

Liquidity risk

The Group finances its working capital requirements through a
combination of funds generated from operations, bank and other
borrowings and convertible bonds and notes.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. Specifically, bank loans and other borrowings
with a repayable on demand clause were included in the earliest
time band regardless of the probability of the lenders choosing to
exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates.

EER(®)
REFEEBHATRBERNDE K
B — R RS MRS KL B AR
ﬁwﬁrﬁ UABEFIRHESBE
¥ SEERYERE S EH70%
AR - ¥ ERERRANBITMER
RIB BB ARIBMRITABRAE
BB BT REOFE - 7
BRBERT - AEETRE K
ETe RGREN MEEE - B -
K@ﬂ%%%ﬁv$%§ﬁﬁﬂ%%
Bl RFTE 4 WIS - AAF
ERA ARANEE %h#%ﬁﬁ
ROEERBRAR - I ERERY
EERER - MPLEOTE—REE
REEAS - Rt - AARNEERA
AEBENEERRE AERE

REBES R
REBUGEFRBES  BITREM
BRI SRS R EE AL LES
SEFRUES -

TRAVNAEEREITERBEE
M ERA HHR - TRIRBEASZER
WEREFNRF A RUBAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e RS R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017F 12531 H 1 F/E

33. Financial Instruments (continuea)
b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from interest rate at the end of reporting

3. I AW
b. BEREEEZERBEG)

RBESER®)
TRABRSENERASESE -
BRI ERBRILHE  RIFHEE
€ [ #5725 HA 0 A SRS O UK o

period.
Undiscounted cash flows
ARRERE
Weighted Overone  Overtwo
average  On demand, yearbut  years but Total
interest  orlessthan  lessthan  lessthan  Morethan undiscounted  Carrying
rate oneyear  twoyears  fiveyears  fiveyears  cashflows amount
MEHT  SR-FR  -FRESR WEREIR AERS
b3 fE WEARE TEAME GEAEE -1 BEE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
% ARBTn ARETn ARETn  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
At 31 December 2017 ROT7E12R318
Trade and other payables ECLECEEN 1,698,881 - - - 1,698,881 1,698,881
Amounts due to related parties JE B 3R 314,279 - - - 314,279 300,844
Bark and otfer borrowings TR
- Fixed rate -E8 8.47 1,292,686 877,952 1,247,933 - 3418571 3,038,148
- Floating rate -2 6.34 794,732 371,683 973,069 87,635 2,221,119 2,009,568
- Interest free -%8 20,000 - - - 20,000 20,000
Convertinle Bonds and Notes ERERREE 16.10 771,036 - - - 771,036 661,424
Financial guarantee contracts BBERAY 1,163,206 - - - 1,163,206 -
Total E) 6,054,820 1,249,635 2,221,002 87,635 9,613,092 7,728,865
At31 December 2016 H06F 128318
Trade and other payables BHREMERTE - 115689 - - - 115689 1,156,894
Amounts due to related parties JE s 3R - 67,03 - - - 67,0% 67,03
Bark and otfer borrowings RAREMER
- Fixed rate -E& 8.12 1.411,764 984,862 1258213 - 3,654,899 3,256,939
- Floating rate -2 641 383,152 23109 869,928 13937 1,498,046 1333721
- Interest free -%8 - 20,000 - - - 20,000 20,000
Convertile Bonds and Notes EREAREE 16.10 62433 818,566 - - 880,999 652,740
Financial guarantee contracts BBERAY - 98211 - - - 98211 -
Total E) 406949 2,034,457 2128201 13937 8,246,085 6,487,336

B R R A TR EYR A R A 7 China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

33. Financial Instruments continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The amounts included above for bank and other borrowings
with floating interest rate is subject to change if changes in
floating interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.

Bank and other borrowings with a repayment on demand clause
are included in the “on demand, or less than one year” time
band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2017,
the aggregate carrying amount of these borrowings amounted to
RMB140,202,000 (31 December 2016: RMB20,000,000).

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts are
the maximum amounts on the basis of the earliest date on which
the Group could be required to settle under the arrangement
for the full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by
the counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations at
the end of each reporting period, the Group considers that it is
more likely than not that such amount will not be payable under
the arrangement. However, this estimate is subject to change
depending on the probability of the counterparty claiming
under the guarantee which is a function of the likelihood that
the financial receivables held by the counterparty which are
guaranteed suffer credit losses.

3. ITRe

b.

)
BHRREERBERBR

REBESER®)

HFE B RINERE LR
B e R L e e R
B MRIT R AR R EN S
BEFEE -

SR1T R H A fE SR DA L EIHR A o 47
A+ LRI A BR BB RIEKR A IRTT
REMERGT A BRERL DR —
FAEE |NREBMEER - R20174F
12A318 ' ZEBRNBEEREES
AR #140,202,0007t (2016512 A 31
B : AR%20,000,0007T) °

N EMBRERAOMEENRSSHE
RERETARRARRZ SRR -
FEBERRETEHEERDBERT
MEFBERY - REERSHERRK
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BEZ SR - A - ZEFTREIR
BRREARLDPROATEMETE - M
TRERBPREHETHENER
M BRKRERREEEBERM

.
TE °

Annual Report 2017 %R

199



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017F 12531 H 1 F/E

33. Financial Instruments continueq) 3. I AW

This note provides information about how the Group determines
fair value of certain financial assets and liabilities.

Fair value of the Group’s financial liabilities
that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

Certain of the Group's financial liability is measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair value of this financial liability is
determined (in particular, the valuation technigues and inputs
used).

sE P FERR M T AR B R AT B —
U BEEMPERENAFE -

DEEERTEBNAEET K
BENAFE

AEERN—LPHEBERSHRRE
AATFEFERN - U TFRBREERE
MR ERN N FERINAREENER
(5 B2 ETEME AR EIER)

Fair value (RMB'000)
AFEARYEF )
asat asat  Fairvalue Valuation techniques Significant unobservable
Financial liability 31 December 2017 31December 2016 hierarchy and key inputs input(s)
BRaE 2017%12A31A 2016512A318  AVELE HEFENEZRAYE BEERNETRAHE
Conversion option derivative 59,554 61619 Level3 Binominal Tree Pricing Model ~ Binominal Tree Pricing Model
FEARRITET A %= X EEERE ZXEEERR
The key inputs are: The inputs is:
1) US§ Risk Free Rate 1) Volatility: 41.99%
2) HK$ Risk Free Rate (2016: 41.48%)
3) Dividend Yield KIE : 41.99%
4) Underlying Asset Value (2016%F : 41.87%)
5) Exercise Price
6) Volatility
EELIN VR
1) EEERRE
2) AEEERE
3 REYE
4 HEEEEE
5 118
6) KiE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

33. Financial Instruments (continued) 33. M T A
c. Fair values of financial instruments (continued) C. ﬁjﬁiIEH’J’L\SFTE
Reconciliation of level 3 fair value measurement of financial F=EBHNFKEEATETENZ
liability: S
RMB'000
ARBTT
As at 31 December 2015 M20155F 123318 62,643
Fair value change recognised in profit or loss ERmERN AT EZ L (5,302)
Exchange realignment RS 4,278
As at 31 December 2016 R2016F 124318 61,619
Fair value change recognised in profit or loss EREERN AT EE 1,513
Exchange realignment B 3, a2 (3,578)
As at 31 December 2017 2017912 A31H 59,554
There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the years. FR - WEEASLEBHE=ER -
Fair value of the Group's financial assets and AFEFREBIAE(ERSE
financial liabilities that are not measured at EREAFE)NAEENE
fair value on a recurring basis (but fair value EENMBEENATE
disclosure are required)
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts NEEERBEEMBIHREPER
of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the El’]ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁiuﬁﬁ%% BERERE %
consolidated financial statements approximate to their fair values. EREMERTEE -
34. Operating Lease Commitments 4. BEBEHAE
The Group as lessor rEBEEREHEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with RS ERAERE - NREERUATRKRK
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments. EMRENFEBLETER ©

At 31 December

#A12831H

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETT
Within one year —F R 35,181 27,581
In the second to the fifth year, inclusive FE_ERF(RIEERMWE) 72,842 40,206
After the fifth year FRFR 36,583 39,319
144,606 107,106

None of the leases includes any contingent rentals and renewal options. LA T EE A B S RELRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017F 12531 H 1 F/E

34. Operating Lease Commitments (continued)

35.

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under a non-cancellable operating
lease which fall due as follows:

34. REHERHE @
AEBEREAHEA
MR RIS RS - AR EEA AT B
51| 5t 7R T B o TR 1 48 A TR A R
=

At 31 December

M12A31H
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT
Within one year —FLAR 21,809 25,325
In the second to the fifth year, inclusive FoFEERF(RIEEEMTE) 38,293 41,801
After the fifth year FRFE 7,350 9,450
67,452 76,576

Operating lease payments with terms of between 1 to 10 years,
represent rentals payable by the Group for certain of its office premises.
None of the leases includes any contingent rentals and renewal options.

Commitments
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following
commitments:

REMENFINF—FE2+F KRR
SEETHLOZMERNES - WHEET
BEEASEEEREDE -

B EGH

PR IR TRES - AEA LA TR -

35.

At 31 December

#H12831H
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Contracted but not provided for in the BREFIARBEREGE B
consolidated financial statements: WP
Expenditure in respect of in progress land BRFETHEREENS L
development arrangements 62,792 19,151
Expenditure in respect of properties under BRFESEEPYENSTH
development for sale 684,323 234,755
Expenditure in respect of investment BREEMENTH
properties 23,052 912
Expenditure in respect of property, BREAMIZE - BEM
plant and equipment RENZ W 264,857 -
1,035,024 254,818

The commitments above at the end of the reporting period are to be
settled according to the progress of the future development of the
underlying projects which might not be necessarily incurred within
twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

VA 7 SR 45 R 45 SR B O B N I R R
HEEENARREREZHE - HHEA
B E AR E G N —E R RS M A RZA12
B A ARELE -

B R R A TR EYR A R A 7 China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

36.

37.

e RS R R AL (]

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Contingent Liabilities
Mortgage loan guarantees

36. HBEE

BIBERER

At 31 December

Mortgage loan guarantees provided by the Group AREEAEZFMIBITIZMHL
RiIBE R (Ha)

to banks in favour of its customers (note a)

®W12A31H
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARBTT
1,189,307 968,211

Note:

a. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair values of the
financial guarantee contracts of the Group are insignificant at initial
recognition, taking into consideration the possibility of default by the
relevant buyers and, in case of default in payments, the net realisable value
of the related properties can recover the repayment of the outstanding
mortgage principals together with the accrued interest and penalty.
Accordingly, no provision has been made in these consolidated financial
statements for these guarantees.

Retirement Benefit Plans

The employees of the Group are members of the state-managed
retirement benefits scheme operated by the PRC government authority.
The subsidiaries located in Mainland China are required to contribute
specified rate of the employees’ salaries to the retirement benefits
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

In accordance with the relevant mandatory provident fund laws and
regulations of Hong Kong, the Group operates a Mandatory Provident
Fund scheme ("MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying Hong Kong employees.
The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group
and under the control of an independent MPF service provider. Under
the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are
required to make contributions to the scheme at rates specified in the
rules separately. The only obligation of the Group in respect of the MPF
Scheme is to make the required contributions under the scheme.

PAE -

a.  ARAEERR FARENUBEREHD

RPEREERHLTEKN - ZET
HBAETERAAAENE  MEERER
IR BRMENRZTFE TN A E R
BERBASMER - ERER S RE
e Bt - BERAGA M RERARZ
EERIFHRAE

37. R ARERIGHE

REEE T Ak E AR KN BUS AR
TEMERMRKBNETENKE - £F
BIAREH M E AR ERZRE THOT
B IREBE—TER L DI A R R4 N AT B4
TR - REEE - EEREAERKE
FEH BB TOR

BREEEFHERNERESNERERE
B ARBRMBENAKRENTEETH
ERtIEAEeB([RESFE ) - &%
AETHMEERASHEEENHIA I
BB SRR S RIS HERES - RIBRA
SEFERA - BREERRBREHOF D HIRER
AR E ML R A B - AREER
ME 3P —nE IR A& EEL
REHK -

Annual Report 2017 %R

203



204

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017F 12531 H 1 F/E

38. Share-based Payment Transactions

0]

Details of the employee share option plan of
the Company

The Company'’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”), was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed on 21 July 2015 for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to directors of the Company and
eligible employees. Under the Scheme, the Company may grant
to eligible employees including Directors, employees, consultants,
business partners or advisers, to subscribe for shares in the
Company. As 31 December 2017, the number of shares in respect
of which options had been granted under the Scheme was
90,750,000 (31 December 2016: 90,750,000).

Among the total share options, one-third of which are exercisable
during the periods from 28 July 2016 to 31 July 2019, from 28
July 2017 to 31 July 2019 and from 28 July 2018 to 31 July 2019,
respectively. The exercise price of HK$3.02 per share represents
a premium of 0.07% over the highest of (i) the closing price of
HK$2.80 per share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued
by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; and (ii) the average
closing price of HK$3.018 per share as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant.

38. LR AERNZNARS

(M

B R R A TR EYR A R A 7 China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

ARATEE TR R0 EET
NS
ARBHRHBES RIS GBS
BEIMBEH » 20157 A21888
SRERRIWERMN T D B /OB AR AT
2I([z5T8l) - ZEZGTEIT - AQF]
AIAR AR BRI AR 1% T 385 R & 1K
HHET  BIEEE - EE - BRI
RARNREBEOEERES - HE
20174F12A 318 - EZAT B T E B
% 17 814 90,750,000 % (2016 4F 12 A
318 : 90,750,000) °

RGBT - =52 — KR
JBRA20164E7 A28 B £201947 A31RH
1E - BI=5 2 —HHAREAR 2017
F7R28AE2019F7 A3MHITE + £
T=9 2z — 8 EIREAEN201857 A28
HZE2019F7A31RT{E - 1TRES
AN B30 TE TG ERS
B0.07%E)HE : ()RR B HIfER R
M A RERMBHUMES
PEREAD 5 852.807T ¢+ M (A BER S
BHEIRT A A ¥ B EB I TIENS
BHREXRMHRNFHRTESRARN
30187 °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

38. Share-based Payment Transactions continues) 38. AR HERHN AR F @)
(i) Details of the employee share option plan of (i) XATFEEIEHIRMEREST

the Company (continued) €D
The following share-based payment arrangements were in HZE2017F 12 A31 B FERN ARG
existence as at 31 December 2017: BEMROZAZHNT
Number Grant date Expiry date Exercise price
IR REE R R A8 )= 1TREME
62,550,000* 28 July 2015 28 July 2019 HK$3.02
20157 A 28H 201947 A28H BH#3.027T

The following share-based payment arrangements were in
existence as at 31 December 2016:

B ZE20165F12 A31 B NFTTFEE) PARR
D RER I ZHmT

Number Grant date Expiry date Exercise price
P HERRE S B R A Z|8 A THEE
72,000,000% 28 July 2015 28 July 2019 HK$3.02
20157 A28H 201947 A28H B13.027T
& Certain employees, who have been awarded 9,450,000 (2016: o BZE2017F12A3181EFE - HEF
10,350,000) share options were ceased their services with the Group DA T B (% BARE $£519,450,000%
during the year ended 31 December 2017. Hence, these share (20164 : 10,350,0000% ) BBE THE X
options will not vest under the employee share option plan. AIBERY: - B LEPTETRE RO AR 1D BRRE S
TEBRNZE IRE S EEs A -
(ii) Fair value of share options granted (i) REHBDHENQTE

HEEAREBMNRAFEEAEE
46,581,000 T 2 1R & — THHA#E E (B
EUFTHEE M) o A N RARHEWE T

The fair values of the options determined at the date of grant using
the Binomial Model amounted to HK$46,581,000. The following
assumptions were used to calculate the fair values of share

options: i85 BRtE A FERRX
Options granted
on 28 July 2015
HARER
2015%7H 28R H
Grant date share price HK$2.80 per share
RHARE FRZE2.807T
Exercise price HK$3.02 per share
TREE FRE®E3.027T
Expected volatility 37.73%
Bt R B
Expected option life 3years
TastH S 3%
Risk-free interest rate 3.00%
R b A=
Dividend yield 5.36%
e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e RS R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017F 12531 H 1 F/E

38. Share-based Payment Transactions (continves) 38. AR HERHN AR F @)

(ii) Fair value of share options granted (ii)
Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility
of the Company’s share price over the previous years. The
expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on the
directors' best estimate, for the effects of exercise restrictions
and behavioural considerations.

The Binomial Model has been used to estimate the fair value of
the options. The variables and assumptions used in computing the
fair value of the share options are based on the directors of the
Company's best estimate. Changes in variables and assumptions
may result in changes in the fair value of the options.

As at 31 December 2017, the number of share in respect of which
options awarded outstanding under the Scheme was 62,550,000
(31 December 2016: 72,000,000). Included therein 41,700,000 (31
December 2016: 26,350,000) share options are exercisable.

The Group recognised the total expense of RMB6,619,000 for the
year (2016: RMB9,149,000) in relation to share options granted by
the Company.

&R R DB

MRS R RIBE AR RN FE
MR £ AR B AT HIE R - BT MRS
BRBBEENESITEOE I E
PIA R 8 TITRE BOREMEHAT

=]
= °

Z IR B B NME R B
MV RFE o At E R BHEATED
HENNBRBEEREAARER
[E B AT M fEfEt - REEUARER
MBS SRR IR T ENE
g

HE2017F12A318 © %:t8ET
i® AR AT R B B 2B HA R P K B AR B
/562,550,000 0% (2016412 A318 :
72,000,0008% ) + £ 5 £ #E541,700,000
AT B AR 19 BRHE (20165 12 A 31
H : 26,350,00013) °

FR - AEEERQRR TN EE
WREE R AR6,619,0007T (2016
&+ AR¥9,149,0007T) °

39. Disposal of a Subsidiary 39. EEF A
In 2016, the Group has entered into an agreement with an independent E2016F - REEEBYE=FHEFELH
third party to dispose of its entire equity interest in a subsidiary of the HEREEHBARZIRE  KEAA
Group, for a consideration of RMB525,220,000. R#525,220,0007T °
The net assets of the subsidiary disposed of: HEKE R RIRFEE
RMB'000

ART T
Properties under development for sale HFEHEPME 156,602
Total net assets disposed of BEFEAEMERE 156,602
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 8) B & M A R s (T =E8) 368,618
Consideration received B UE| SR IE 525,220
In 2017, the Group received the residual consideration of this R20174F » AEEWEGZR 5T (E
transaction.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

40. BB F &R R S

BRIRE MR EMELHREIN  BEA
HASEENTEBRETEASLHRE
ARG - (VRAIERRRZ R EBE
T (DAREEBE AT (I)VANEBNEE
PERRAE]  (VRIERRER - R(V)EF—
BEREIEBRBRRITEFINAR «c RHEEH
2 B TE B EFRETT o

40. Related Party Balances and Transactions
Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements,
the following is a summary of significant balances and significant
transactions carried out between the Group and (i) Ms. Wang Wei, the
daughter of the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders, (ii) associates of the
Group, (i) immediate holding company of the Group, (iv) the Ultimate
Controlling Shareholders and (v) a company controlled by one of the
Ultimate Controlling Shareholders. The transactions with these related
parties were made on terms agreed among the parties.

(@) Related party balances () BEEER &tk
Balances as at the end of each reporting period with related NEHE AR EBAR O
parties: £
Amounts due from: PEWBAT =B FRIE -

At 31 December

M12A318
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETF T
Associates: iG] IR
- Shengshi zhiye — Rt EZE 157,100 -
- Sinomerco —silae 1,500 -
158,600 -
Ultimate Controlling Shareholders’ daughter: &4 IEARIER AL R -
- Ms. Wang Wei —I#Ht 586 -
Immediate holding company: BEEZRAR -
— Profit East — & 1,209 1,209

The above outstanding receivables from related parties are of
non-trade nature, unsecured and recoverable on demand. The
receivables from Ms. Wang Wei and Profit East are denominated
in HKS, while the receivables from Shengshi Zhiye and Sinomerco
are denominated in RMB. The receivable from Shengshi Zhiye
is interest bearing at 6% per annum, while the receivables from
Sinomerco, Ms. Wang Wei and Profit East are interest-free.

bt B BT R BB IA R IE R
ZIE IR R ERE R o fE
W E B A £ R A R A FRIB A TTRT
18 - MREER B X N e /R
FRIAARBHE - R ERMD
FRIRAE RN R 6%t 0 FE Y 8
AR FRLERAERNFRIBRIAE

B o

o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017F 12531 H 1 F/E

40.Related Party Balances and Transactions 40.BEA &8RS @)

(Continued)
(@) Related party balances (continued) (a) BAEE L &fR(®)
Amounts due to: AT =B850 -
At 31 December
M12A831H
2017 2016
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETT
Associates: /NI
— Huayuan — R 23,226 22,179
- Shengshi zhiye — Rt EE 109 -
23,335 22,179
A company controlled by one of the Ultimate B fh — 5 S A& AR AR B

Controlling Shareholders PEHIF A R]

- China Wan Tong Yuan (Holdings) Limited — B ERE ()

(“Wantong”) ARAE(ER]) 2,084 -
Ultimate Controlling Shareholder: ARV AR R -

—Mr. Wang Jianjun —TEELRE 5,200 200
Immediate holding company: BEERATR :

— Profit East —FE 270,225 44,657
The above outstanding payable to Huayuan is of trade nature, FHENERNOFIELAESHIEE - B
denominated in RMB, unsecured, interest-free and repayable ARBHE - B 2EWREXK
on demand. The above outstanding payables to Shengshi zhiye g - FilENRtEEMTES T
and Wang Jianjun are of non-trade nature, denominated in RMB, ERRERIEZEZHEE - LARKER
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The above B BER REWREREER - L
outstanding payable to Wantong and Profit East is of non-trade iE BT RAFTIBERIEE S
nature, denominated in HK$, unsecured, and the outstanding F o DUBHEEHE - EEE - mENA
payable to Profit East is of interest bearing at 8% per annum and BAFRIBAF R 8% BN EE—F
repayable within one year. NEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

40. Related Party Balances and Transactions 40. ¥ EBRXS @)

(Continued)

(@) Related party balances (continued) (a) BAEE L &8k

The following is an aged analysis of the outstanding payable with
trade nature, presented based on service or payment received
date, at the end of each of the reporting period:

REREHBERE - BIEEIRE
FWEFIRN B - HE S LR
NFIBHERER DT

At 31 December

M12A31H
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T AERETT
Less than 1 year DR1E 1,584 19,075
2 to 3 years 283F 19,070 -
3to 4 years 3E4F - 3,104
4t0 5 years AZE5F 2,572 -
23,226 22,179

(b) Related party transactions

(b) EABERZ

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HLEE
2017 2016
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥F T AREFT
Shengshi Zhiye Sales of land plots
R EE SHETH 358,322 -
Profit East Interest cost
F= F BR A 10,639 -
Shengshi zhiye Interest income
BREEE FLEHA 4,331 -
Huayuan Purchase of heat supply services
IR B B HRBE AR 75 1,584 19,075
Shengshi zhiye Provision of rental services
BB HERE 99 -
Wantong Sales of assets
=i HEAE 30 -

(c) The Ultimate Controlling Shareholders provided joint guarantee
to the holders of the Convertible Bonds and Notes. Details are set

out in note 29.

(C) BUIEIRIRE AR EIRES REZEN
BEEREARER BB RM
29 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e RS R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & F20174F 12531 H 1 F/&E

40.Related Party Balances and Transactions 40.BEA &8RS @)

(Continued)

(d) Compensation of key management personnel
Key management personnel are those senior management
having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly. The
key management personnel compensation is as follows:

(d) EEEEASHMH

TEEREABRERINREBELERE
BEREERE  HRRENAREEE
BEBHERERE  TEEEAR

EMAT -

Year ended 31 December

HBZ12A31BLEE
2017 2016
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT
Fee e 753 774
Salaries and other benefits e REAIEF 7,158 6,742
Contribution to retirement benefit scheme  R{KEFIEH 24 3R 179 182
Discretionary performance - related bonus BB RIE —#METEAT 3,628 3,736
Share-based payment expense iR in 21 & A 2,381 2,859
14,099 14,293

Bonuses are calculated based on the Group's performance for
such financial year.

(e) Bank borrowings, Convertible bonds and notes
guaranteed by related parties

AR BZIREEREBRR

-

(e) HEMLERERNRITEE A

BREFRR

At 31 December

M12A31H

2017 2016

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARETT

Ms. Zhao Ying Wzt 15,527 -

The Ultimate Controlling Shareholders AR R 400,000 -
Profit East and the Ultimate Controlling B Ko B 44 B A R

Shareholders 661,424 652,740
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e RS R R AL (]

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

41.Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from

Financing Activities

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

M. BEERBEENREEYHR

TRAVAGEHREFHELZAEZ
28 FHERRSRIERSEPHME -
HRERHELZABTVBERAERA
SESABESRBRADBERREEHR

EREZRERE -

Amounts
Borrowings Convertible due to
and other Bondsand  an related
loans Notes party
(note 28) (note 29) (note 40) Total
TR AIERES R
Hin &M REE BRI 5 TRIE
(Pff=£28) (Pf=£29) (Pff=£40) B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AR¥F T AR¥F T AR¥T T
At 1 January 2017 7H2017F1 418 4,610,666 652,740 44,657 5,308,063
Cash flow: e
Principal additions EINAE 2,181,361 - 224,285 2,405,646
Principal payments SANPNG (1,824,364) - - (1,824,364)
Interests payment SRS (406,101) (59,888) - (465,989)
Non-cash items: JERLIEA -
Foreign exchange translation  #NE#RE (897) (34,728) (9,356) (44,981)
Interests accrual FEZTFIE 507,051 103,300 10,639 620,990
At 31 December 2017 H2017%12 8318 5,067,716 661,424 270,225 5,999,365

Annual Report 2017 %R

211



212

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017F 12531 H 1 F/E

42. i 8 A 7]
RIREHEGERE AR EANTEE

42. Subsidiaries
As of the end of the reporting period, the Company has the following

principal subsidiaries:

MEARE :

Place and date of  Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid capital/ Equity interest attributable
Name of company establishment registered capital to the Group Principal activities
MR ERTRARN
ek B AR b5 B/ ERE R AEBEGES TRER
At 31 December
W12A318
2017 2016
% %
Shing Cheong Holdings Ltd. BVI US$7,000 100 100 Investment holding
(note ii) ("Shing Cheong Holdings")  EBRELES (Ordinary shares) BB
HEBRERAR (HEER]) 12 April 2007 7,000 7T (¥ @A%)
CiEiD) 200744128
Langfang VAST Urban Development ~ Mainland China RMB150,000,000 100 100 Planning, design and
Co., Ltd. (notes i and i) elEigi) (Paid up capital) development of industrial
("Langfang VAST") 3 August 2005 AR#150,000,0007T town projects
BOTAREEMRREGRAR  200548A3A (BREXK) RE RARBERES
(T Essh R ]) (B iAnii) miRIER
Langfang City Property Development  Mainland China RMB150,000,000 100 100  Property development
Co., Ltd. (notes i and iii) BRI, (Paid up capital) MEERE
("Langfang City Property”) 22 May 1995 AR#150,000,0007¢
BHTHERHEREERAR 199554228 (BRER)
(T B3 4t | ) (PR i)
Langfang Vast Zhanyao Property Mainland China 1S$29,800,000 100 100 Property development
Development Co., Ltd. hEIA, (Paid up capital) MEBE
(notes i and iv) 5 June 2007 29,800,000 7T
("Langfang Vast Zhanyao") 200756 A5H (HREX)
BHRRERREHELZREERAR
(TEssh R =R ) (MsHAv)
Langfang Vast Zhuoyou Development  Mainland China US$6,550,000 100 100 Property development
Co., Ltd. (notes i and iv) IR, (Paid up capital)) MEER
("Langfang Vast Zhuoyou") 5 June 2007 6,550,000 7T
BHRREBEHELZRERAR 20076 A58 (HREX)

((EHERZE ) (i)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

42. Subsidiaries (continued) 42. B A T m)
Place and date of  Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid capital/ Equity interest attributable
Name of company establishment registered capital to the Group Principal activities
ML, ERITRARN
ARER AVA=E)EE BA/ERER AEEEEER TEEH
At 31 December
®12A318
2017 2016
% %

Tangshan Zhanyao Property Mainland China US$29,800,000 100 100 Property development
Development Co., Ltd. FEAt (Paid up capital) WEBE
(notes i and iv) 25 June 2007 29,800,000 7T
("Tangshan Zhanyao") 200756 A25H (BREX)

BLREFEREARAR
(B ILER]) (FiaiFv)

Langfang Hongsheng Property Mainland China RMB50,000,000 100 100 Property development
Development Ltd. (notes i and iv) elEig: ) (Paid up capital) and property leasing
("Langfang Hongsheng") 14 August 2007 AR#50,000,0007 MERERNERE

BhmAERHEREERAR 200758 A 14H (BREX)

(TEssh =R ]) (BitaEiFTiv)

Langfang Honghao Investment Co., Mainland China RMB620,000,000 100 100 Infrastructure investment
Ltd. (notes i and iii) hE R, (Paid up capital) HRERE
("Langfang Honghao Investment”) 7 July 2008 AR ®620,000,0007T

BHTERREBRAR 20084 7A78 (BRER)

(TEsh B 2RE 1) (T

Langfang Goodman Vast Park Service  Mainland China US$30,000,000 100 100 Infrastructure investment
Co., Ltd. (notesiand iv) (‘Langfang ~ FEIAH (Paid up capital) BRI E
Goodman Vast Park Service”) 12 April 2012 30,000,000 7T

By EREHEERBERRR 2012647128 (BRER)

(TEhEREtER |) (V)

Zhangjiakou Vast Industrial Urban Mainland China US$20,000,000 100 100 Planning, design and
Development Co., Ltd. FEIR (Paid up capital) development of industrial
(notes iand iv) 10 December 2014 20,000,000% 7T town projects
("Zhangjiakou Vast") 20144128108 (HREX) HE B R

RROLRELMRERERAF BREXTEER

(TRROEZR]) (V)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017F 12531 H 1 F/E

42.

Subsidiaries continued)

42. M B A Rl o)

Place and date of  Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid capital/ Equity interest attributable
Name of company establishment registered capital to the Group Principal activities
ML, BRITRMEN
AR EB B B E R BA/ERER AEEELER TEER
At 31 December
M12A318
2017 2016
% %

Shijiazhuang Vast Urban Mainland China RMBA47,882,000 100 100 Planning, design
Development Co., Ltd. IR (Paid up capital) and development of
(notes i and i) 16 December 2015 AR#47,882,0007C industrial town project
("Shijiaznuang Vast") 20155128168 (BREX) RE - LA REE

ARENEREXTHERBRRA EXMHEER
(TEREER]) (HEHiAi0)

Ezhou Vast Urban Development Mainland China RMB53,381,000 100 100 Planning, design
Co., Ltd. (notes i and i) B A (Paid up capital) and development of
(“Ezhou Vast") 25 January 2016 AR 53,381,0007C industrial town project

PNEREXTHERERAA 2016514258 (HREXK) RE R RER
(TSP )) (B sEiAmiin) EXMEER

Shijiazhuang Gaocheng Vast Urban Mainland China RMB30,000,000 100 100 Planning, design and
Development Co., Ltd. IR (Paid up capital) development of industrial
(notes i and ii) 19 August 2016 AR 30,000,0007C town project
("Shijiazhuang Gaocheng”) 20168 A19H (HREX) HE - RHRERE

AREMENEREEMERS EXMAER
(TBEREEH ) BRAT
(B siAniin)

Shijiazhuang Shengxin Weichuang Mainland China RMB20,000,000 100 100 Planning, design and
Development Co., Ltd. FEIRL (Paid up capital) development of industrial
(notes iand ii) 30 August 2016 AR #20,000,0007C town project
(“Shijiazhuang Shengxin ) 20168 A30H (HREX) A BERERE

AFEMEERRZRERERLF

(IBZ S |) (PEE)

R EREETEERE BT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

EXMEARR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e RS R R AL (]

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

42. Subsidiaries (continuea)

Notes:
English name for identification only.

ii. Shing Cheong Holdings is directly held by the Company. Other subsidiaries
are indirectly held by the Company.

ii.  These subsidiaries are domestic wholly-owned enterprises established in
Mainland China.

42. M B A Rl )

PE -

HXEIBEMES] o

MEBRBMARAERFTHE - HuHEA
AIHARBRERA ©

A % ) A A R B e B A7 ) B

iv.  These subsidiaries are wholly foreign owned enterprises established in v.  EWEARRRA BRSNS
Mainland China. B¥ -
Composition of the Group KEBHEBK
Place of
incorporation/
establishment Number of subsidiaries
AL, BRI i R MEARNHE
2017 2016
Investment holding WEER BVI 2 2
EBETEHS
Investment holding KEER Hong Kong 2 2
aBE
Property leasing FEMRE Hong Kong 1 1
B
Planning, design and development REN - R R Mainland China 7 7
of industrial town projects BREEMEATER AR A
Property development MEEE Mainland China 7 7
A3
Property development and leasing VEEREEE Mainland China 1 -
HEI A
Infrastructure investment ERREIE Mainland China 4 4
AR A
Project investment, lease, consulting HEWE - HE - Mainland China 2 2
and asset management BAMEEER AT
Consulting and maintenance service AT AEERE Mainland China 3 3
H IR
Internet information technology service W= B R SR Mainland China 2 2
AR A
Not yet commence business REIAAEE Mainland China 30 11
A3
61 41
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43. Financial Information of the Company

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company as

at 31 December 2017 is as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017F 12531 H 1 F/E

43. A T AR R
BRAARRIN2017F12 A31 BB AR
EOERMT :

At 31 December

M12A31H
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Non-current asset IERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries (Note) MIB A RIEE (MisE) 1,639,533 1,627,033
Current assets RENVEE
Bank balances and cash RITERKRBES 4,283 17,282
Other receivables b EYGRIE 190 -
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NG 91,457 -
Total assets BERE 1,735,463 1,644,315
Current liabilities mEALE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEASB B A RFIE 354,432 354,373
Amounts due to related parties FE < REBS 5 T IB 272,308 44,657
Other payables H fth JE A 5RIE 713 255
Convertible Bonds and Notes ATERES R EE 661,424 -
Derivative TTHEBIT A 59,554 =
1,348,431 399,285
Net current liabilities RBAEFE (1,252,501) (382,003)
Total assets less current liabilities BEBERREAE 387,032 1,245,030
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Convertible Bonds and Notes AIEERE S TR = 652,740
Derivative PTHEMBIA = 61,619
- 714,359
Net assets BEEFE 387,032 530,671
Capital and reserves & R i
Share capital i@ 13,031 13,031
Reserves i) 374,001 517,640
Total equity R 387,032 530,671
Note: BIaE -

The amounts represents the deemed cost of investment made in Shing Cheong

Holdings and Shenzhen Foresea Vast.

IS ERKRRERBRERHEZBRINRIFER
FRHIFRAS

B R R A TR EYR A R A 7 China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited



43.Financial Information of the Company

(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company received a
Shareholder’s Loan of US$38,270,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB234,216,000) from Profit East. After receiving this Shareholder’s
Loan, the Company immediately advanced the full amount to Shing
Cheong Holdings. In August 2014, Shing Cheong Holdings issued
new shares to the Company to fully settle this outstanding amount
payable to the Company. In addition to which, the Company also
made an advance of RMB1,096,177,000 and RMB296,640,000 to Shing
Cheong Holdings during the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2015
respectively. Prior to the end of 2014 and 2015, the Company decided
to waive for the settlement of the receivables of RMB1,096,177,000 and
RMB296,640,000, respectively, from Shing Cheong Holdings which was
accounted for as further capital contribution to Shing Cheong Holdings
by the Company. Prior to the above transactions, the deemed cost of
the Company’s investment in Shing Cheong Holdings was recognised
at nil as Shing Cheong Holdings was in a net liability position on 21
February 2014, the date on which the Company became the holding
company of the Group.

Information about the statement of change in equity of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2017 is as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

43. D B B AR R )

HE2014F12A3181EFE - ARF 8
HES — 538,270,000 7T (FHE RO A
R #234,216,0007T ) HIBRWE X o WX
ERBERE - NAREBEERIER
NFHE MR - R20144FE8H » #E
MARRRETHRG  UBBEMLEXR
EERMNARBMNRIE o 1o - ARER
H E 20144 %2015 12 A 318 L F E I8
2 B & 2R 2 AT A R #51,096,177,000
7T & A R 296,640,000 7T © 20144 &
2015F FEAT * NABIRE D BIEA RS
B (B8 A R #51,096,177,0007C & A R
296,640,000 7T #) FE WK IE + I 45 7% F K18
AR B M EERE - PFTEAR - B
ERR SETA - AR E ERN2014F2
A218 (AR AR ARNEBIERARNAE
H)ERFEERR - BURIERQ AR E
ERMIEERAERAE

FARARABEE2017F12 831 B &
EEYONE

Share
Share Share option  Accumulated
capital premium reserve losses Total
[N RIVEE REDERE RitEE A&t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE AR¥Trn AR®Tr AR¥Trn AR%T:R
At 1 January 2016 201651818 13,031 860,542 4,751 (67,751) 810,573
Total comprehensive expense FREERYER
for the year - - - (149,087) (149,087)
Dividend distribution &S5k - (139,964) - - (139,964)
Recognition of equity-settled HERAR ARG
share-based payments SRR - - 9,149 - 9,149
At 31 December 2016 R20165124318 13,031 720,578 13900 (216,838) 530,671
Total comprehensive income FREERSAE
for the year - - - 19,841 19,841
Dividend distribution &S5k - (170,099 - - (170,099)
Recognition of equity-settled AR E R
share-based payments SNAHR - - 6,619 - 6,619
At 31 December 2017 20174126318 13,031 550,479 20,519 (196,997) 387,032

Annual Report 2017 %R

217



218

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 22017F 12531 H 1 F/E

44. Events After the Reporting Period

i)

issue of 6% guaranteed convertible notes due
2021 and 6% guaranteed note due 2019, 2020
and 2021

On 9 January 2018, the Company issued a three-year term US$
6% convertible notes due 2021 in an aggregate principal amount
of US$50,000,000 (the "Convertible Notes"). In addition to which,
on the same date, the Company also issued three US$ 6%
guaranteed notes due 2019, 2020 and 2021 respectively in an
aggregate principal amount of US$110,000,000 (the "Notes") to
the same holder of the Convertible Notes. The total net proceeds
from the issue of the Convertible Notes and the Notes are used
for the purpose of general working capital. The Convertible Notes
and the Notes are jointly guaranteed by the Ultimate Controlling
Shareholders, Profit East Ltd. and four subsidiaries of the
company.

Each of the Notes and the Convertible Notes, when issued, will
constitute direct, general, unsubordinated and unconditional
obligations of the issuer which will at all times rank at least pari
passu with all other present and future unsecured payment
obligations of the issuer, except for obligations mandatorily
preferred by law applying to companies generally.

44, HEHIREE

)

B R R A TR EYR A R A 7 China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

B1T2021F R Bl 6% R T
B EE K2019 ~ 2020 &
2021F 2 H6%IER EE
R2018F1 A9 + RRAIEEITT A
%50,000,000% 7T + FHFEe% - HIR
3%+ 20214 B HAR) PT 3R AR ZE B ([ 7]
BRER]) - ER—KX - AQRIER
AR EEOREARIT T AL LT
110,000,000 7T + FHE6% © = 5K
2 BIFE2019 ~ 2020702021 4F 2 HR Y
ER(ZEZR]) - ARREEZE
ISR FERAE—REEES - 7]
MIREE R ZE R B HRRIERR
B - FRFOEAA R B AR
FAR -

HZERBRATBERERETRSE
RARBNEE - — & FFRENE
RHEE Y- EREARENME
HARE R AREERGRELTED
ZARSWA - HEEREE AR
BT RAINEERI -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12531 H 1 F/Z

44.Events After the Reporting Period continued) 44, SEPEREE ()

On 12 March 2018, certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company received a notice on Members of Collegial Panel
((2018) Ji Min Chu No.19) from the Higher People’s Court of Hebei
Province that Langfang Jingyu Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(the “Plaintiff”) launched a lawsuit against Langfang City Property
Development Co., Ltd. (“Langfang City Property”, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company), and Langfang VAST
Zhanyao Property Development Company Limited (an indirect
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and the immediate
holding company of Langfang City Property), among others,
on the dispute over an equity transfer agreement in 2016. The
lawsuit has been accepted by the Higher People’s Court of Hebei
Province.

The Plaintiff has claimed that the project development activities
on the land underlying the aforesaid equity transaction could
not be timely started as planned due to the default of Langfang
City Property, and is seeking for the court to order its release
from the equity transfer agreement entered into between the
Plaintiff and Langfang City Property, and to order Langfang City
Property to return the consideration amount of approximately
RMB525,220,000 paid by the Plaintiff for such equity transfer and
pay a liquidated damage of approximately RMB158,566,000.

Since the legal proceeding is still in its early stage, the board of
directors of the Company considers that it is impractical to assess
the potential impact of the legal proceeding on the Company.

ARRITBZET2EWBR AN
2018F3A 2B Z R TILESRAR
AR (2018) ER 195 A MK A
BRME « BiBEMNE R R
B ERZEARAR(RE])ERSE
E 20165 B —1n i i e R e iR
TEF - AR R EB T EE E
FABEERAR ([ERHHESHE] -
ARAREEEZENBAR) » REH
RREREMEREBRAR (AR
AIfE 2 AN B A A R BRI & R i
EMEEZERAR) - ZHFRELH
tEBRRARERZE -

REBTE LMRER SIS L R
18 B M8 SN A Rk & 55 1o EE FY RS
REARBEIRET I RS - BIES SRR
BT H L AR BR IR 2 B BRI [ S b EE 35
IR RS RIE R T - AR RS
WEEEREREE TR
FEUERIBEL ARES525,220,0007T bA
R 375449 AR 158,566,000 KA 6
BHE

ERZFDIEF HER PR - &
RAEZERS  NURFHEEA

RAZBEZEWTER -
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Five Year Financial Summary

EEMBERBE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the — AEEZA AAMREE 2 EEREE N B E]
last five financial years, as extracted from the audited financial statements is ~ E&FI40T + JyiEsk A L BAZI S RFE o
set out below.

Results ¥E

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLEE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT ARBFTrT ARETT ARETT

Revenue e 2,935,017 1,965,181 1,423,706 2,391,205 1,212,904
Gross profit EF 1,966,076 624,395 610,983 1,128,092 818,192
Profit before tax Rk T4 A Y58 ) 1,497,530 941,317 680,964 931,647 799,461
Income tax expense FiSBiF X 416,696 (272,945) (167,383) (231,049) (36,000)
Net profit for the year FRF RN 1,080,834 668,372 513,581 700,598 763,461
Total comprehensive income for — FRE2E K

the year 4a%E 1,080,834 692,413 513,581 700,598 763,461
Assets and Liabilities EERERE

As of 31 December
MA12A31A
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTL ARBTI ARBTI ARBTE

Non-current assets EMBENEE 3,106,805 2,169,583 1,217,959 925,741 996,305
Current assets MBEE 10,607,607 9,156,829 7,091,304 6,014,520 5,757,628
Total assets BEHEE 13,714,412 11,326,412 8,309,263 6,940,261 6,753,933
Non-current liabilities ERBAE 3,431,897 3,844,398 2,214,954 1,138,756 1,452,599
Current liabilities mEBAE 5,975,280 4,097,133 3,272,986 3,300,697 4,603,332
Total liabilities BfERE 9,407,177 7,941,531 5,487,940 4,439,453 6,055,931
Equity attributable to owners ViN/NEIE Y= IN

of the Company e 4,301,864 3,383,535 2,821,323 2,500,808 698,002
Non-controlling interest PR 5,371 1,346 - - -
Total Equity BT 4,307,235 3,384,881 2,821,323 2,500,808 698,002

220 B R ¥ T E AR A 7 China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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